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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

  
Note  

At 31 December 
2019 

At 31 December 
2018  

(restated*)  

At 1 January 
2018  

(restated*)    

ASSETS 
    

Non-current assets      
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,563,522 1,471,101 1,188,748 
Intangible assets 6 44,819 35,751 5,451 
Right-of-use assets 7 20,430 - - 
Prepayments for non-current assets   3 3 3 
Investments in associates 8 2,628 2,459 2,382 
Other financial assets 9 415 210 849 

Total non -current assets   1,631,817 1,509,524 1,197,433 
 
Current assets     

 

Inventories 10 1,892 1,992 2,135 
Trade and other receivables 11 65,744 115,427 64,052 

Prepayments, deferred expenses and assets under contracts with customers 12 917 2,226 7,224 
Prepaid income tax  1,461 2,779 174 
Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,775 2,266 6,449 

Total current assets   74,789 124,690 80,034 

Total assets   1,706,606 1,634,214 1,277,467 
     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
    

Equity     
 

Authorised share capital 14 259,443 259,443 259,443 

Revaluation reserve 15 141,020 154,834 44,680 

Legal reserve 15 25,944 25,944 25,910 

Retained earnings  237,510 189,413 214,957 

Total equity   663,917 629,634 544,990 
     

LIABILITIES      
Non-current liabilities      
Borrowings 17 465,633 448,534 239,648 
Lease liabilities 18 15,555 - - 
Deferred income tax liabilities 19 8,417 8,441 370 
Liabilities under contracts with customers 20 205,332 193,736 186,520 
Grants and subsidies  21 15,156 13,052 19,758 
Long-term employee benefits 22 2,575 1,710 1,763 
Other non-current liabilities  3 3 3 
Provisions 23 23,018 27,982 - 

Total non -current liabilities   735,689 693,458 448,062 
 
Current liabilities     

 

Borrowings 17 176,268 182,930 133,040 
Current portion of lease liabilities 18 5,029 - - 
Trade and other payables 24 67,351 77,045 116,529 
Accrued expenses and contract liabilities 25 46,131 51,147 34,846 
Provisions 23 12,221 - - 
Total current liabilities   307,000 311,122 284,415 
Total liabilities   1,042,689 1,004,580 732,477 

Total equity and liabilities   1,706,606 1,634,214 1,277,467 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with the financial statements of 2018 due to the changes in accounting methods as disclosed in Note 4. 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

    Note  2019 
2018  

(restated*)  

Revenue from contracts with customers  26 413,144 463,048 
Other income  32 5,706 20,367 
Purchases of electricity and related services   (180,830) (278,094) 
Purchase (expenses) of natural gas and transmission services   (5,268) (4,404) 
Depreciation and amortisation   (81,621) (57,353) 

Employee benefits and related social security contributions  27 (45,999) (41,542) 
Repair and maintenance expenses   (21,745) (13,810) 
Transport   (3,874) (4,823) 
Telecommunications and IT services   (9,058) (9,095) 
Utilities   (2,012) (4,032) 
Impairment and write-off expenses  28 (8,712) 24,068 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  5 - (78,382) 
Other expenses  29 (15,494) (16,483) 

Operating profit    44,237 (535) 

     
Finance income  30 27 89 
Finance costs  30 (10,265) (6,627) 

Finance costs �± net    (10,238) (6,538) 
     
Share of profit of associates   292 179 

     
Profit before income tax    34,291 (6,894) 
Income tax  19 22 12,159 

Net profit for the period    34,313 5,265 

     
Other comprehensive income (loss)  
 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:      
Gains (losses) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment  5 - 134,713 
Effect of deferred income tax  5 - (20,207) 
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan obligation, net of deferred income tax  22 (30) 77 

Other comprehensive income (loss)    (30) 114,583 

Total comprehensive income for the period    34,283 119,848 

     
Weighted average number of shares   16 894,630,333 894,630,333 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in EUR) attributable to owners of the Company  31   0.038   0.006 
 
 
 
* Part of amounts does not agree with the financial statements of 2018 due to the changes in accounting methods as disclosed in Note 4. 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 

 Note  
Authorised 

share 
capital  

Revaluation 
reserve  

Legal 
reserve  

Retained 
earnings 

(restated*)  

Total equity 
(restated*)  

       

Balance at 1 January 2018   259,443 44,680 25,910 214,957 544,990 

Net profit for the period (restated*)  - - - 5,265 5,265 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment, net of 
deferred income tax  - 114,506 - - 114,506 
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan obligation, 
net of deferred income tax  - - - 77 77 

Total comprehensive income for the period   - 114,506 - 5,342 119,848 
Transfers to retained earnings (transfer of depreciation, 
net of deferred income tax) (Note 15)  - (4,352) - 4,352 - 
Transfer to the statutory reserve  - - 34 (34) - 
Dividends 16 - - - (35,204) (35,204) 

Balance at 31 December 2018 (restated*)   259,443 154,834 25,944 189,413 629,634 

       
Restated balance as at 1 January 2019 (restated*)   259,443 154,834 25,944 189,413 629,634 

Net profit for the period  - - - 34,313 34,313 
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan obligation, 
net of deferred income tax  - - - (30) (30) 

Total comprehensive income   - - - 34,283 34,283 
Transfer to retained earnings (transfer of depreciation, 
net of deferred income tax) (Note 15)  - (13,814) - 13,814 - 

Balance as at 31 December 2019   259,443 141,020 25,944 237,510 663,917 

       
       

* Part of amounts does not agree with the financial statements of 2018 due to the changes in accounting methods as disclosed in Note 4. 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

  
Note  2019 2018  

(restated*)  

Cash flows from operating activities  
   

Net profit for the period  34,313 5,265 

Adjustments for:     
Income tax expenses 19 (22) (12,160) 
Depreciation and amortisation 5,6,7 82,695 58,467 
Result of revaluation of property, plant and equipment 5 - 78,382 

Change in value of property, plant and equipment 5 4,020 (28,791) 

Amortisation of grants 21 (1,074) (1,114) 
Gain on transfer of the public supply activities 32 - (17,330) 
Share of (profit) of associates 8 (292) (179) 
(Gain)/loss on disposal and write-off of assets  3,703 4,752 
Finance (income) 30 (27) (89) 
Finance costs 30 10,265 6,627 
Elimination of other non-cash activities  1,272 (45) 

Changes in working capital:  
   

Trade and other receivables  21,566 (40,581) 
Inventories, prepayments, deferred expenses and assets under contracts with customers  1,763 (1,712) 
Trade and other payables, advance amounts received and liabilities under contracts with 
customers   (4,503) (18,504) 

Amounts payable for property, plant and equipment  9,607 39,395 

Cash generated from operations   163,286 72,383 
(Paid)/Realized income tax paid  - (1,128) 

Net cash flows generated from operating activities    163,286 71,255 

Cash flows from investing activities     
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (187,900) (302,933) 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  910 146 
Grants received 21 3,178 4,411 
Dividends received 8 123 102 
Interest received 30 27 - 
Transfer of public electricity supply activities 32 27,441 - 
Cash flows from other investing activity  (261) 5,560 

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (156,482) (292,714) 

Cash flows from financing activities     
Proceeds from borrowings 17 50,000 266,287 
Repayments of borrowings 17 (57,401) (95,052) 
Proceeds from cash-pool (net) 17 16,813 94,843 
Lease payments 18 (4,543) - 
�'�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G�V���S�D�L�G���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V  (26) (35,105) 
Interest paid  (9,138) (3,042) 

Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities   (4,295) 227,931 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   2,509 6,472 
Cash and cash equivalents (including the overdraft balance) at the beginning of the period 13 2,266 (4,206) 

Cash and cash equivalents (including the overdraft balance) at the end of the period  13 4,775 2,266 

    
Increase in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities over the financial period is equal to 20,430 thousand euros. 
 

* Part of amounts does not agree with the financial statements of 2018 due to the changes in accounting methods as disclosed in Note 4. 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 General information 
 
Energijos �6�N�L�U�V�W�\�P�R���2�S�H�U�D�W�R�U�L�X�V���$�%�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���³�W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�´�����L�V���D���S�X�E�O�L�F���O�L�P�L�W�H�G���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�\���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���U�H�J�L�V�W�H�U�H�G���L�Q���W�K�H���5�H�S�X�E�O�L�F���R�I���/�L�W�Kuania. The 
Company was registered with the Register of Legal Entities on 11 December 2015. The Company started its activities with effect from 1 January 
2016. The shares of the Company have been listed on the main list of NASDAQ Vilnius Stock Exchange since 11 January 2016. The address 
of its registered office is as follows: 
 
�$�J�X�R�Q�Ð���J���������� 
LT-03212 Vilnius, 
Lithuania 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�Rre lines of business include electricity supply and distribution, and natural gas distribution. 

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Company's shareholder structure was as follows: 

  
At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Number of shares held  
Ownership 

interest  Number of shares held  Ownership interest  

�8�$�%���³�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�´�� 849,743,761 94.98% 849,743,761 94.98% 

Other shareholders 44,886,572 5.02% 44,886,572 5.02% 

Total  894,630,333 100% 894,630,333 100% 

 
As at 31 December 2019 �D�Q�G�� ������������ �8�$�%�� �³�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�³, previously named Lietuvos energija UAB (company code 301844044, registered 
�D�G�G�U�H�V�V�����ä�Y�H�M�Ð���V�W�������������9�L�O�Q�L�X�V�����Z�D�V���W�K�H���S�D�U�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���L�V���Z�K�R�O�O�\���R�Z�Q�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�Q���*�R�Y�H�U�Q�P�H�Q�W���U�H�S�U�H�V�H�Q�W�H�G��
by the Lithuanian Ministry of Finance. 
 
All the shares of the Company with the nominal value of EUR 0.29 each are ordinary registered shares. 

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Company's investments in associates were as follows: 

Associate  Country  Year of 
acquisition*  

The Company's ownership interest  
Profile of activities  

At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�V�� �S�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð��
centras UAB (previously 
named Technologiju ir 
�,�Q�R�Y�D�F�L�M�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�� 

Lithuania 2013 26.84% 29.012% 
Information technology and 
telecommunication, and other services 
to the shareholders 

Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras 
UAB Lithuania 2014  22.25% 22.25% 

Public procurement organisation and 
performance, accounting and 
personnel administration services, 
customer service 

* The  Company  was  established  following  the  reorganisation  of  LESTO  AB  and  Lietuvos  Dujos  AB  by  way  of  merger. The investments 
in associates were made by LESTO AB and Lietuvos Dujos AB. 
 
As at 31 December 2019, the number of the Company's employees was 2,374 (31 December 2018: 2,387).  
 
�5�H�J�X�O�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V���D�U�H���U�H�J�X�O�D�W�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�Q���/�D�Z���R�Q���(�Q�H�U�J�\�����W�K�H���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�Q���/�D�Z���R�Q���(�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\�����W�K�H���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�Q���/�D�Z on Natural Gas 
and other regulatory legislation.  
 
The Company carries out the following licensed activities: 
 

�x electricity distribution; 
�x until 30 September 2018 - public supply of electricity; 
�x distribution of natural gas. 
 

The licences are issued and licensed activities are controlled by the National Energy Regulatory Council (hereinafter "the Council", 
�³�&�R�P�P�L�V�V�L�R�Q�´�����1�(�5�&������ 
 
The Council sets the price caps for the services of electricity distribution, public supply of electricity and natural gas distribution. 
 

1. The setting of price caps in the electricity sector 

The price caps of electricity distribution, public supply services are established according to the Methodology for the Determination of the Price 
Caps of Electricity Transmission, Distribution and Public Supply Services ("the Methodology") approved by Resolution No O3-3 of 15 January 
2015 of the Council. 

The price caps of electricity distribution and public supply services are established for the regulatory period of 5 years (the 2016-2020 regulatory 
period is currently applicable to the electricity sector) and they can be adjusted not more than twice per year if substantial changes in one or 
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several factors, based on which the price caps were determined, occur, including a substantial change in the scope of services, inflation, taxes 
and other objective (outside the control of the market participant) factors.  

On 17 October 2019, the Council established the price caps for the electricity distribution services for the year 2020 as follows: 

�x electricity distribution services via medium voltage networks �± 1.076 EUR ct/kWh (excl. VAT) (2019: 0.862 EUR ct/kWh (excl. VAT));  
�x electricity distribution services via low voltage networks �± 2.092 EUR ct/kWh (excl. VAT) (2019: 1.871 EUR ct/kWh (excl. VAT)). 

An increase in the electricity distribution service price cap was determined by provisions of the Law on Special Conditions of Land Use, which 
will take effect as from 1 January 2020. They provide for the obligation to register special conditions for the use of land in cases where the 
Company's facilities necessary for electricity distribution activity are installed on land plots. The distribution service price cap is also affected by 
expenses of payment and administration of one-time compensations for land easements approved by the Government on 25 July 2018. 

 
2. The setting of price caps in the natural gas sector. 

The pricing of the natural gas distribution service is regulated by the Council according to the Procedure for Determining Regulated Prices in 
Natural Gas Sector approved by Resolution No O3-367 of 13 September 2013 of the Council. 

The price cap and/or revenue cap of natural gas distribution service is established for the regulatory period of 5 years (the 2019�±2023 regulatory 
period is currently applicable to the natural gas sector) and it can be adjusted once per year if there is a change in the inflation level, prices of 
imported (transported into the country) natural gas, taxes, requirements of regulatory legislation, also when the investments agreed with the 
Council have been implemented by natural gas companies, when those companies do not reach or exceed the revenue cap or deviate from the 
indicators determined under the methodology approved by Resolution No O3-367 of 13 September 2013 of the Council. On 31 October 2019, 
the Council established the price cap for the natural gas distribution service for the year 2020 as follows: 

On 31 October 2019, the NERC set the revenue cap at EUR 36,965,476 for the natural gas distribution services effective for the year 2020, and 
if dividing this cap by the projected annual gas distribution volume 7,254 GWh effective for the year 2020, forecasted price of natural gas 
distribution service for the year 2020 will amount to 5.10 EUR ct/MWh (excl. VAT) (2018: 5.32 EUR ct/MWh (excl. VAT)). 
 
Approval of financial statements 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���W�K�H�V�H���Iinancial statements on 10 March 2020. �7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V���K�D�Y�H���D���V�W�D�W�X�W�R�U�\���U�L�J�K�W���W�R��
approve or not to approve these financial statements and to require the preparation of a new set of financial statements. 
 
The Company shareholders have the right to request the amendment of these financial statements after their approval in accordance with the 
laws and regulations of the Republic of Lithuania. 

2 Accounting policies  
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently 
applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by property, plant and equipment measured 
at revalued amount. 
 
All amounts in the financial statements of the Company are presented in the euros (EUR). All amounts in these financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand (in thousand EUR), unless otherwise stated. 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���K�D�Y�H���E�H�H�Q���S�U�H�S�D�U�H�G���L�Q���D�F�F�R�U�G�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���,�Q�W�H�U�Q�D�W�L�R�Q�D�O���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���5�H�S�R�U�W�L�Q�J���6�W�D�Q�G�D�U�G�V�����,�)�5�6������as adopted 
by the European Union (EU). 
 
The Company's financial year coincides with a calendar year. 

2.2 Accounting policies 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the following amended IFRSs which have 
been adopted by the Company as of 1 January 2019. 
 

a) New or amended standards and interpretations 
 

�x IFRS 16: Leases  
 
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has applied IFRS 16 Leases for the first time, which had significant impact 
�R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V�� 

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and 
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.  The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize most leases on the statement of financial position. 
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance 
leases using similar principles as in IAS 17.  

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January 
2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is recognized in 
retained earnings at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated. 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

The impact of the first-�W�L�P�H���D�G�R�S�W�L�R�Q���R�I���,�)�5�6���������/�H�D�V�H�V���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���L�V���V�K�R�Z�Q���Ln the table below: 
 

   At 31 December 
2018 

  IFRS 16   At 1 January 
2019        

ASSETS  
     

Non-current assets   
     

Right-of-use assets  -  15,864  15,864 

       
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        
Non-current liabilities        

Lease liabilities  -  12,984  12,984 

Current liabilities        
Current portion of lease liabilities   -  2,880  2,880 

 

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to non-cancellable operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 as follows: 

  1 January 2019  
   
Future minimal payments for non -cancellable operating lease agreements as at 31 December 2018  

 
32,028 

To deduct: servicing costs of the lease contracts of vehicles*  (7,532) 
To deduct: contracts unrenewed or terminated before 1 January 2019*  (147) 
To deduct: differences between maximum and actual amounts of use or payments of contracts of vehicles*  (13,741) 
To add: differences between maximum and actual amounts of use or payments of contracts of buildings*  3,964 
To add: contracts of right of use of land*  1,309 
To add: correction of initial recognition  776 
Adjusted future minimal payments for non -cancellable operating lease agreements as at 31 
December 2018  

 

16,657 
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019  1.05 % 
Calculated lease liabilities with applied interest rate as at 1 January 2019  15,864 
Lease liabilities recognized as at 1 January 2019  15,864 
whereof:   
Short-term lease liabilities  2,880 
Long-term lease liabilities  12,984 

*In 2018, under IAS 17 leases were initially measured at possible maximum amount of use or maximum payments, since the actual need of 
usage was unknown. The initial valuation also included maintenance and servicing costs under the contracts. Moreover, initial valuation included 
agreements that were later scoped out from IFRS 16 Leases �± in particular leases of assets for which the lessor has substantive substitution 
rights. Contracts of right of use of land were not included in the initial valuation. Following the review of lease contracts due to IFRS 16 Leases 
implementation, future payments under non-cancellable leases were restated to actual contract utilisation amounts and payments, less 
maintenance and servicing costs and less agreements out of scope of IFRS 16 Leases. 

The Company has lease contracts for various items of land, premises, vehicles and other assets. Before the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, the 
Company classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as operating lease. Refer to Note 2.13 for the accounting policy applied 
before 1 January 2019. 

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. Refer to Note 2.13 for the accounting policy applied after 1 January 2019. The following specific transition 
requirements and practical expedients that the standard provides were applied by the Company: 
 
The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it: 
 

�x Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics, 
�x Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application, 
�x Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application, 
�x Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease. 

 
 

�x IFRS 9: Prepayment features with negative compensation (Amendment)  
The Amendment allows financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a party to a contract either to pay or receive 
reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract (so that, from the perspective of the holder of the asset there may be 
�µ�Q�H�J�D�W�L�Y�H���F�R�P�S�H�Q�V�D�W�L�R�Q�¶�������W�R���E�H���P�H�D�V�X�U�H�G���D�W���D�P�R�U�W�L�]�H�G���F�R�V�W���R�U���D�W���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���W�K�U�R�X�J�K���R�W�K�H�U���F�R�P�S�U�H�K�H�Q�V�L�Y�H���L�Q�F�R�P�H����Management assessed 
that adoption of new standard amendment for the first time had no significant effect on financial statements of the Company. 
 

�x IAS 28: Long -term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)  
The Amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular impairment requirements, of long term interests in associates and joint 
ventures that, in substance, f�R�U�P���S�D�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���µ�Q�H�W���L�Q�Y�H�V�W�P�H�Q�W�¶���L�Q���W�K�H���D�V�V�R�F�L�D�W�H���R�U���M�R�L�Q�W���Y�H�Q�W�X�U�H���V�K�R�X�O�G���E�H���J�R�Y�H�U�Q�H�G���E�\���,�)�5�6���������,�$�6���������R�U���D��
combination of both. The Amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, before it applies IAS 28, to such long-
term interests for which the equity method is not applied. In applying IFRS 9, the entity does not take account of any adjustments to the 
carrying amount of long- term interests that arise from applying IAS 28. Management assessed that adoption of new standard amendment 
for the first time had no significant effect on financial statements of the Company. 
 

�x IFRIC INTERPETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments  
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12. 
The Interpretation provides guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separately or together, examination by tax authorities, the 
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appropriate method to reflect uncertainty and accounting for changes in facts and circumstances. Management has assessed that adoption 
of interpretation for the first time had no significant effect on financial statements of the Company 

 
�x IAS 19: Plan  Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)  

The Amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder 
of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement has occurred. The Amendments also clarify how the 
accounting for a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement affects applying the asset ceiling requirements. Management assessed that 
adoption of new standard amendment for the first time had no significant effect on financial statements of the Company. 

 
The IASB has  issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 �± 2017 Cycle , which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. 
 
�¾ IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements : The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains 

control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 
clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held 
interests in that business. 

�¾ IAS 12 Income Taxes : The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified 
as equity should be recognized according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits has been 
recognized. 

�¾ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs : The amendments clarify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a qualifying asset is ready for its intended 
use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related to that qualifying asset remains outstanding at that point, that borrowing is to 
be included in the funds that an entity borrows generally. 

 
Management assessed that adoption of Annual improvements for the first time had no significant effect on financial statements of the Company. 
 
b) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted 
 
�x Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or 

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Vent ure 
The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the 
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.  The main consequence of the amendments is that a 
full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is 
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. In 
December 2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the 
equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. Management has assessed that adoption of new 
standard will have no significant effect on financial statements of the Company. 
 

�x Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards  
The IASB issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting on 29 March 2018. The Conceptual Framework sets out a 
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies 
and assistance to others in their efforts to understand and interpret the standards. IASB also issued a separate accompanying document, 
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which sets out the amendments to affected standards in 
order to update references to the revised Conceptual Framework. Its objective is to support transition to the revised Conceptual Framework 
for companies that develop accounting policies using the Conceptual Framework when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction. 
For preparers who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework, it is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2020.  
 

�x IFRS 3: Business Combinations (Amendments)  
The IASB issued amendments in Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise when an 
entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The Amendments are effective for business combinations for 
which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on 
or after the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. At the 
moment Management is assessing the effect of new standard amendment on financial statements of the Company. 

 
�x IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definit ion 

�R�I���µ�P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O�¶�����$�P�H�Q�G�P�H�Q�W�V�� 
The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted. The Amendments 
�F�O�D�U�L�I�\���W�K�H���G�H�I�L�Q�L�W�L�R�Q���R�I���P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O���D�Q�G���K�R�Z���L�W���V�K�R�X�O�G���E�H���D�S�S�O�L�H�G�����7�K�H���Q�H�Z���G�H�I�L�Q�L�W�L�R�Q���V�W�D�W�H�V���W�K�D�W�����¶�,�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���L�V���P�D�W�H�U�L�Dl if omitting, misstating or 
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on 
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specif�L�F���U�H�S�R�U�W�L�Q�J���H�Q�W�L�W�\�¶�����,�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�����W�K�H���H�[�S�O�D�Q�D�W�L�R�Q�V��
accompanying the definition have been improved. The Amendments also ensure that the definition of material is consistent across all IFRS 
Standards. At the moment Management is assessing the effect of new standard amendment on financial statements of the Company. 
 

�x Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendments)  
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and must be applied retrospectively. Earlier 
application is permitted. In September 2019, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, which concludes phase one of 
its work to respond to the effects of Interbank Offered Rates (IBOR) reform on financial reporting. Phase two will focus on issues that could 
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with a risk-free interest rate (an RFR). The amendments 
published, deal with issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an 
alternative interest rate and address the implications for specific hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, which require forward-looking analysis. The amendments provided temporary 
reliefs, applicable to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform, which enable hedge accounting 
to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative nearly risk-free 
interest rate. There are also amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures regarding additional disclosures around uncertainty 
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform. At the moment Management is assessing the effect of new standard amendment on financial 
statements of the Company. 
 

�x IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non -current ( Amendments)  
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier application permitted. The 
amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of financial 
position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current or non-current. The amendments affect 
the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position and do not change existing requirements around measurement or timing 
of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, nor the information that entities disclose about those items. Also, the amendments 
clarify the classification requirements for debt which may be settled by the company issuing own equity instruments. These Amendments 
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. At the moment Management is assessing the effect of new standard amendment on financial 
statements of the Company. 

 
The management of the Company does not believe that other new and amended standards and their interpretations which the Company is 
required to apply from 1 January 2019 will have a material effect on financial statements of the Company. 
 

2.3 Investments in associates 

Investments in associates over which the Company has a significant influence are accounted for using the equity method, except for the cases 
when the investment is acquired and held solely for the purpose of selling it in the near future (not later than within 12 months from the date of 
acquisition) and the management is engaged in active search for buyers. 

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the 
�L�Q�Y�H�V�W�R�U�¶�V���V�K�D�U�H���R�I���W�K�H���F�Kange in net assets of the investee after the date of acquisition. 

�7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �V�K�D�U�H�� �R�I�� �S�R�V�W-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. 
�:�K�H�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�K�D�U�H���R�I���O�R�V�V�H�V���L�Q���D�Q���D�V�V�R�F�L�D�W�H���H�T�X�D�O�V���W�R���R�U���H�[�F�H�H�G�V���L�W�V���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���L�Q���W�K�H���D�V�V�R�F�L�D�W�H�����L�Q�F�O�X�G�L�Q�J���D�O�O���X�Q�V�H�F�X�U�Hd receivables, the 
Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has assumed obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

At each reporting date the Company reviews investments in associates to assess whether there is objective evidence that investments in 
associates may be impaired. If such indications exist, the Company calculates the amount of impairment, which is equal to the difference 
between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of the associate, and recognises this amount under the line item of share of profit 
(loss) of associates in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

2.4  Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief 
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified 
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.  

According to the management, the Company has two operating segments, i.e. supply and distribution of electric power, and distribution of gas. 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V���D�U�H���O�R�F�D�W�H�G���L�Q���W�K�H���5�H�S�X�E�O�L�F���R�I���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D���D�V���R�Q�H���J�H�R�J�U�D�S�K�L�F�D�O���V�H�J�P�H�Q�W�����7�K�H���F�K�L�H�I���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���G�H�F�L�V�L�R�Q-maker monitors 
the results with reference to the financial reports that have been prepared using the same accounting policies as those used for the preparation 
of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, i.e. information on profit or loss, including the reported amounts of income and expenses. 
The chief operating decision-maker does not analyse operating segments on the basis of information about assets and liabilities. 

2.5 Intangible assets 

(a) Computer software 
 
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These 
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 years). 
 
(b) Servitudes 
 
�7�K�H���F�D�W�H�J�R�U�\���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�W�D�Q�J�L�E�O�H���D�V�V�H�W�V���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�V���µ�6�H�U�Y�L�W�X�G�H�V�¶���Z�K�L�F�K���F�R�P�S�U�L�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�L�J�K�W�V���W�R���X�V�H���W�K�H���O�D�Q�G���S�O�Rts owned by 
third persons on the basis of servitudes. Servitudes comprise statutory and contractual servitudes. Statutory servitudes comp�U�L�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
rights to use the land plots owned by third persons in which electric networks were established up to 10 July 2004 on the basis of statutory 
�V�H�U�Y�L�W�X�G�H�V�����&�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W�X�D�O���V�H�U�Y�L�W�X�G�H�V���F�R�P�S�U�L�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�L�J�K�W�V���W�R���X�V�H���W�K�H���O�D�Q�G���S�O�R�W�V���R�Z�Q�H�G���E�\���W�K�L�U�G���S�H�U�V�R�Q�V���L�Q���Z�K�L�F�K���H�O�H�F�W�Uic networks were 
established since 2018 on the basis of servitudes. The useful life of an intangible asset (right to use the land which has a servitude) is indefinite, 
therefore, these assets are not subject to amortisation. Useful life of intangible assets are indefinite since the right to use the land is granted for 
an indefinite period of time according to the conditions of agreements for compensation for servitudes as well as Clause 4.130 of Civil code. 
Accordingly, right to use the land (to which servitude is applied) is retained by the Company regardless of the condition, repairs or renewals of 
Compa�Q�\�¶�V���D�V�V�H�W�V���F�R�Q�V�W�U�X�F�W�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���P�H�Q�W�L�R�Q�H�G���O�D�Q�G�����6�L�Q�F�H�����U�L�J�K�W-to-use the land is indefinite both contractual and statutory servitudes are out 
of scope of IFRS 16 lease. However, the Company has accounted for provision to compensate land owners for servitudes in accordance with 
requirements of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (see Note 2.17 Provisions). If provision is remeasured due to 
�F�K�D�Q�J�H�V�� �L�Q�� �X�Q�G�H�U�O�\�L�Q�J�� �D�V�V�X�P�S�W�L�R�Q�V�� �D�F�F�R�U�G�L�Q�J�� �W�R�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�L�Q�J�� �S�R�O�L�F�\�� �F�K�R�L�F�H�� �U�H�V�S�H�F�W�Lve adjustment is recorded in caption of 
intangible assets.  
  
The Company tests the intangible assets of servitudes for potential impairment, by comparing their recoverable value with the carrying value at 
least once per year or when there are signs of impairment. If the value of the asset changes, such change is accounted for by 
decreasing/increasing the value of the servitudes.  
 
(c) Special conditions on land use (protection zones) 

 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�W�D�Q�J�L�E�O�H���D�V�V�H�W�V���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�V���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�E�O�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q�V���W�R���U�H�J�L�V�Wer and the right to use a third-party land on the basis of special 
�F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V���R�Q���O�D�Q�G���X�V�H�����7�K�H���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�L�Q�J���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V���D�S�S�O�L�H�G���D�U�H���V�L�P�L�O�D�U���W�R���W�K�R�V�H���D�S�S�O�L�H�G���I�R�U�����E�����µ�6�H�U�Y�L�W�X�G�H�V�¶. 
 
(d) Other intangible assets 
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Other intangible assets expected to provide economic benefits to the Company in future periods are stated at acquisition cost, less any 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 3 to 4 
years. 
 

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is shown at revalued amount based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and impairment, except for gas distribution pipelines and their equipment, gas technological equipment and 
installations that are accounted for under the cost method. Valuations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from the value that would have been established based on the fair value at the balance sheet date. Any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is 
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Class of property, plant and equipment measured using the cost method are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

The initial value of property, plant and equipment comprises acquisition cost, including not refundable acquisition taxes and all directly 
attributable costs associated with the preparation for its intended use and borrowing costs (Note 2.12). 

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to other comprehensive income and shown 
as revaluation reserve in the equity of the Company. Decreases arising on subsequent revaluation that offset previous increases of the same 
asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against revaluation reserve in equity; all other decreases are charged to profit 
or loss. Increases in the carrying amount that offset previous decreases that were recognised in profit or loss, are recognised in profit or loss. 
All other increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluations of property, plant and equipment are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and credited to revaluation reserve directly in equity. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amount of 
the asset charged to profi�W���R�U���O�R�V�V�����D�Q�G���G�H�S�U�H�F�L�D�W�L�R�Q���E�D�V�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���R�U�L�J�L�Q�D�O���F�R�V�W���L�V���W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U�U�H�G���I�U�R�P���U�H�Y�D�O�X�D�W�L�R�Q���U�H�V�H�U�Y�H���W�R���U�H�W�D�L�Q�H�G���H�D�U�Q�L�Q�J�V��
taking into account the effect of deferred income tax. 
 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to write off the revalued amount or cost of asset to its 
residual value over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Accounting method Useful life 
Buildings Revaluation 15�±60 years 
Whereof:   

Engineering constructions Revaluation 50 years 
35-110 kV transformer substation constructions Revaluation 35 years 
6-10 kV electricity distribution constructions Revaluation 35 years 
10/0.4 kV transformer constructions Revaluation 35 years 
Communication and operation system constructions Revaluation 15�±25 years 

Structures, equipment, and electricity networks Revaluation 5�±50 years 
Whereof:   

35-110 kV transformer substation equipment (excl. constructions) Revaluation 30 years 
6-10 kV distribution equipment (excl. constructions) Revaluation 30 years 
10/0.4 kV capacity transformers Revaluation 30 years 
35 kV cables and lines Revaluation 40-45 years 
0.4-10 kV cables and lines Revaluation 15�±40 years 
35-110 kV capacity transformers  Revaluation 40 years 
Communication and operation system equipment (excl. constructions) Revaluation 5�±45 years 
Hydrotechnical structures and equipment Revaluation 50�±75 years 

Gas distribution pipelines and their equipment Cost 13�±55 years 
Gas technological equipment and structures Cost 18�±36 years 
Other property, plant and equipment Revaluation 3�±50 years 
 
The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed regularly and adjusted, if appropriate, according to the 
procedure established at the Company. 
 
When assets are written off or otherwise disposed, the acquisition cost and related accumulated depreciation charges are derecognised from 
the financial statements, and gain or loss on such disposal is recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between proceeds and the net book value of assets disposed. Upon disposal of revalued asset, the 
corresponding amount included in revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.  
 
S�X�E�V�H�T�X�H�Q�W���F�R�V�W�V���D�U�H���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�G���L�Q���W�K�H���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J���D�P�R�X�Q�W���R�U���U�H�F�R�J�Q�L�V�H�G���D�V���D���V�H�S�D�U�D�W�H���D�V�V�H�W�����D�V���D�S�S�U�R�S�U�L�D�W�H�����R�Q�O�\���Z�K�H�Q���L�W���Ls probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period when such 
costs are incurred. 
 
Construction in progress is reclassified to corresponding class of property, plant and equipment when it is completed and ready for the intended 
use. 
 

2.7 Financial assets 

The Company recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. The purchase or sale of financial assets accounted for using trade date accounting. 
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�7�K�H�� �F�O�D�V�V�L�I�L�F�D�W�L�R�Q�� �R�I�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �D�V�V�H�W�V�� �D�W�� �L�Q�L�W�L�D�O�� �U�H�F�R�J�Q�L�W�L�R�Q�� �G�H�S�H�Q�G�V�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �D�V�V�H�W�¶�V�� �F�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W�X�D�O�� �F�D�V�K�� �I�O�R�Z�� �F�K�D�U�D�F�W�Hristics and the 
�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���E�Xsiness model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component 
or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case 
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in Note 2.18. 
Transaction costs comprise all charges and commission that the Company would not have paid if it had not entered into an agreement on the 
financial instrument.  
 
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), it needs 
�W�R���J�L�Y�H���U�L�V�H���W�R���F�D�V�K���I�O�R�Z�V���W�K�D�W���D�U�H���µ�V�R�O�H�O�\���S�D�\�P�H�Q�W�V���R�I���S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O���D�Q�G���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W�����6�3�3�,���¶���R�Q���W�K�H���S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O���D�P�R�X�Q�W���R�X�W�V�W�D�Q�G�L�Q�J�����7his assessment is 
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and 
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. 
 
The Company subsequent to initial recognition classifies its financial assets into the following 3 categories: 
 
(i) financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost;  
(ii) financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and  
(iii) financial assets subsequently measured at fair through profit or loss (FVPL).   
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are classified into the afore-mentioned categories based on the business model the Company 
applies when managing its financial assets and cash flow characteristics of the asset. The business model applied to the group of financial 
assets is determined at a level that reflects how all groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective 
of the Company. The Company may apply more than one business model to manage its financial assets.  
 
The business model for managing financial assets is a matter of fact and not merely an assertion. It is typically observable through the activities 
that the Company undertakes to achieve the objective of the business model. In determining the business model applicable for managing 
financial assets, the Company justifies its decision not by a single factor or activity, but in view of all relevant evidence that is available at the 
date of the assessment. 
 
In view of the business model applied for managing the group of financial assets, the accounting for financial assets is as follows: 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

 
Loans granted by the Company, amounts receivable, and cash and cash equivalents are accounted for under the business model the purpose 
of which is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that can contain cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest. These assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is the amount at which the 
financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any 
allowance for expected credit losses. The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income over the relevant period, so as to 
achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, if appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
 
Financial assets are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the date of the statement of financial 
position. These are classified as non-current assets. 
  
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are 
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. 
Any gain or loss arising on write-off of the assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Impairment 
losses are presented as impairment and write-off expenses in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  
 
The Company does not have financial assets accounted for at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 
The Company did not have these types of financial instruments. 
 
Expected credit losses 
 
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost 
regardless of whether there are any impairment indicators. 
 
Credit losses incurred by the Company are calculated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument through the expected 
life of that financial instrument, including cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms.  
 
Expected credit losses are measured in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a 
range of possible outcomes; the time value of money; and reasonable and supportable information about past events and current conditions, 
and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date.  
 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the period from the date of initial 
recognition of a financial asset to the subsequent date of settlement of the financial asset or ultimate write-off of the financial asset.  
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Expected credit losses are recognised by taking into consideration individually or collectively assessed credit risk of loans granted and trade 
receivables. Credit risk is assessed based on all reasonable information including forward-looking information. 
 
For short-term trade receivables without a significant financing component the Company applies a simplified approach required by IFRS 9 and 
measures the loss allowance at expected lifetime credit losses from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses a provision matrix 
in which loss allowances are calculated for trade receivables falling into different ageing of overdue periods. To measure expected credit losses, 
trade receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, i.e. receivables from UA�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���J�U�R�X�S���F�R�P�S�D�Q�L�H�V�����U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V��
from other corporate customers and receivables from private individuals. The non-recoverability analysis is conducted for the last 3 years in 
order to determine the general default ratio. Forward looking information is featured in to determinte the appropriate loss rate.  
 
The lifetime expected credit losses of other receivables (e.g. receivables for transferred public supply business) are assessed on individual 
�E�D�V�L�V�����7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�V���W�K�H���D�V�V�Hssment on an individual basis reflecting the possibility of obtaining information on the 
credit history of a particular borrower, its financial position as at the date of assessment, including forward-looking information that would allow 
to timely determine whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk of that particular borrower, thus enabling making judgment 
on the recognition of lifetime expected credit losses in respect of that particular borrower.  
 
When granting the loan the Company assesses and recognises 12-month expected credit losses.  In subsequent reporting periods, in case 
there is no significant increase in credit risk related to the borrower, the Company adjusts the balance of 12-month expected credit losses in 
view of the outstanding balance of the loan at the assessment date. Having determined that the financial position of the borrower has deteriorated 
significantly compared to the financial position that existed upon the issue of the loan, the Company records all lifetime expected credit losses 
of the loan. The latest point at which the Company recognises all lifetime expected credit losses of the loan granted is identified when the 
borrower is late to pay a periodic amount or the total debt for more than 30 days. In case of other evidence available, the Company accounts 
for all lifetime expected credit losses of the loan granted regardless of the more than 30 days past due presumption.  
 
The stages of the recognition of expected credit losses of loans granted: 
 
1 stage - upon granting of a loan, the Company recognises the expected credit losses for the twelve-month period. Interest income from loans 
(finance leases) or cash and cash equivalents is calculated on the carrying value of the financial assets, without adjusting it by the amount of 
expected credit losses. 
2 stage - upon establishing that the credit risk related to the recipient of the loan has significantly increased (which is indicated by the receivables 
overdue by at least 30 days, there is significant negative information about changes impacting the borrower, etc.), the Company accounts for 
the lifetime expected credit losses of the loan. All lifetime expected credit losses of a financial instrument are calculated only in the presence of 
a significant increase in the credit risk related to the recipient of the loan. Interest income on the loan (finance lease) is calculated on the carrying 
value of the financial assets, without adjusting it by the amount of expected credit losses. 
 
3 stage �± the Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the 
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to 
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the.  
 
Interest income on the loan (finance lease) or cash equivalents is calculated on the carrying value of the financial assets, reduced by the amount 
of expected credit losses. 
 
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 
 
The lifetime expected credit losses of loans receivable and trade receivables is recognised in profit or loss through the contrary account of 
doubtful receivables.  
 
Derecognition of financial assets 

 
The Company derecognises financial assets in case of the following:  
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
- the Company has retained the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material 

�G�H�O�D�\���W�R���D���W�K�L�U�G���S�D�U�W�\���X�Q�G�H�U���D���³�S�D�V�V���W�K�U�R�X�J�K�´���D�U�U�D�Q�J�H�P�H�Q�W�����R�U 
- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset: 
�x if the Company has not retained control, it shall derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any 

rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer;  
�x if the Company has retained control, it shall continue to recognise the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the 

financial asset. 
 
Whether the Company has retained control of the transferred asset depends on the transferee's ability to sell the asset. If the transferee has the 
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to 
impose additional restrictions on the transfer, the Company has not retained control. In all other cases, the Company has retained control. 
 

2.8 Right-of-use assets 

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019. 
 
Right-of-�X�V�H�� �D�V�V�H�W�� �L�V�� �D�Q�� �D�V�V�H�W�� �W�K�D�W�� �V�K�R�Z�V�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �U�L�J�K�W�� �W�R�� �X�V�H�� �W�K�H�� �O�H�D�V�H�G�� �D�V�V�H�W�� �Z�L�W�K�L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �O�H�D�V�H�� �S�H�U�L�R�G���� �6�L�Q�F�H�� ���� �-�D�Q�X�D�U�\�� ������������ �Whe 
Company recognises right-of-use assets for all leases, including the subleases of right-of-use assets, except for leases of intangible assets, 
short-term leases and low-value leases. 
 
Initial measurement of right-of-use assets 

At the commencement date, a lessee measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the following: 
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease 
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incentives received. The Company incurs the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used 
the underlying asset during a particular period. The Company recognises such costs as part of the cost of the right-of-use asset when it incurs 
an obligation for those costs. 

Subsequent measurement of right-of-use assets 

After the commencement date, the Company measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost model. Applying the cost model, the Company 
measures the right-of-use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of the lease liability. 
 
The Company applies the depreciation requirements in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment in calculating the depreciation of the right-of-use 
asset. 
 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as 
follows: 
   
�‡���/�D�Q�G     from 2 to 99 years  
�‡���%�X�L�O�G�L�Q�J�V    from 2 to 10 years 
�‡���9�H�K�L�F�O�H�V     from 3 to 5 years 
�‡���2�W�K�H�U���U�L�J�K�W-of-use assets    from 3 to 38 years 
 
 
If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset 
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option, the Company calculates the depreciation of the right-of-use asset from the 
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Company calculates the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.  
 
The Company presents right-of-use assets in the statement of financial position separately from intangible assets and property, plant and 
equipment. 

2.9 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of the remaining amount of natural gas is established using the 
weighted average and the cost of all other inventories is estimated using the FIFO method. Acquisition cost of inventories includes purchase 
price and related taxes (other than those subsequently recovered by the Company from tax authorities), transportation, handling and other costs 
directly associated with acquisition of inventories. The acquisition cost excludes borrowing costs.  
 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated selling expenses. 
 

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with maturities 
up to 3 months.  
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held in settlement bank accounts, 
and other short-term highly liquid investments with maturities up to 3 months, and bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank 
overdrafts are included in current borrowings. 

2.11 Trade payables 

Trade payables are recognised when the other party has performed its obligations under the contract, and are initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
 

2.12 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any 
difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method. 
 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
month after the balance sheet date. 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial 
period of time (longer than 6 months) to get ready for their intended use and its cost is greater than 100,000 EUR, are added to the cost of 
those assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred. 
 

2.13 Lease liabilities 

 
a) Accounting policy applicable from 1 January 2019 

 
Initial measurement of lease liabilities 
 
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
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At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease 
term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot 
�E�H���U�H�D�G�L�O�\���G�H�W�H�U�P�L�Q�H�G�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���X�V�H�V���W�K�H���O�H�V�V�H�H�¶�V���L�Q�F�U�H�P�H�Q�W�D�O���E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J���U�D�W�H�� 

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right 
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date: fixed payments (including in substance lease 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date, amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees, the exercise 
price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate include, 
for example, payments linked to a consumer price index, payments linked to a benchmark interest rate (such as LIBOR) or payments that vary 
to reflect changes in market rental rates. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.    

Subsequent measurement of lease liabilities 
 
After the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability by: increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or 
lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
 
Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the lease liability. The periodic rate of interest is the discount rate, or if applicable the revised discount rate. 
 
After the commencement date, the Company recognises in profit or loss unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset 
applying other applicable standards, both: interest on the lease liability and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the 
lease liability in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs. 
 
Reassessment of lease liabilities 
 
After the commencement date, the Company remeasures the lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments. The Company recognises 
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining 
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.  
 
Revised discount rate 
 
The Company remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate if there is a change in the 
lease term. The Company determines the revised lease payments based on the revised lease term, or if there is a change in the assessment 
of an option to purchase the underlying asset, assessed considering the events and circumstances in the context of a purchase option. The 
Company determines the revised lease payments to reflect the change in amounts payable under the purchase option. 
 
If the lease terms have changed or if the assessment of an option to purchase an asset changes, the Company determines the revised discount 
rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that rate can be readily determined, �R�U���W�K�H���O�H�V�V�H�H�¶�V���L�Q�F�U�H�P�H�Q�Wal 
borrowing rate at the date of reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. 
 
Unchanged discount rate 
 
The Company remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments, if either:  
 
- there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable by the Company under a residual value guarantee. The Company determines the 
revised lease payments to reflect the change in amounts expected to be payable under the residual value guarantee. 
 
- there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments, including, for 
example, a change to reflect changes in market rental rates following a market rent review. The Company remeasures the lease liability to reflect 
those revised lease payments only when there is a change in the cash flows (i.e. when the adjustment to the lease payments takes effect).  
 
The Company determines the revised lease payments for the remainder of the lease term based on the revised contractual payments.  
 
In discounting the revised lease payments, the Company uses an unchanged discount rate, unless the change in lease payments results from 
a change in variable interest rates. In that case, the Company uses a revised discount rate that reflects changes in the interest rate. 
 
Lease modifications 
 
The Company accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:  
- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and 
- the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate 
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract. 
 
For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease modification, the Company does the 
following: 
 - allocates the consideration in the modified contract; 
- determines the lease term of the modified lease; and 
- remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 
 
For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Company accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:  
- decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease 
the scope of the lease. The Company recognises in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease; 
- making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all other lease modifications. 
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The Company presents lease liabilities separately from other liabilities in the statement of financial position. Interest expenses of a lease 
liability is presented separately from the depreciation of right-of-use assets. Interest expenses of a lease liability are a component of financial 
costs, presented in the statement of profit (loss) and other comprehensive income. 
 

b) Accounting policy applicable before 1 January 2019 
 
In the comparative period, the Company as a lessee classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership as 
finance leases and all other leases as operating leases. For the purpose of a finance lease, upon initial recognition the leased assets were 
measured at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequently, the assets 
were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Assets held under operating leases were not recognized 
�L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�R�V�L�W�L�R�Q����Instead, payments made under such leases were recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
 
The Company is a lessor 
 
At inception of a contract, the Company, as a lessor, determines whether the lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. If the Company 
determines that the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset, the lease is a finance lease. 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as 
operating leases. Lease payments are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term and recognised as revenue in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income based on its lease nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent 
payments are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.   
 
The accounting policies applied by the Company as a lessor in the comparative period were similar to those in IFRS 16. 
 

2.14 Income tax 

Income tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax.  
 
(a) Income tax 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are recognised to the extent their recovery from or payment to tax authorities is probable. Income tax 
is determined in accordance with laws on taxes and using the tax rates that have been enacted by the date of the statements of financial position. 
In 2019, an income tax at a rate of 15 per cent was applicable in Lithuania (2018: 15 per cent).  
 
(b) Deferred income tax 
 
Deferred income tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on all temporary differences that will 
increase the taxable profit in future, whereas deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that they will reduce the taxable 
profit in future. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from initial recognition of goodwill 
(or negative goodwill); or if they arise from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 
 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each date of the statement of financial position and if it is not probable that the Company will generate 
sufficient taxable profit to realise these assets, they are reduced to an amount which is likely to reduce the taxable profit in future.  Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are estimated using the tax rate that has been applied when calculating income tax for the year when the related 
temporary differences are to be realised or settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where they relate to income tax assessed by the same fiscal authority or where there is a right 
to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities. 
 
(c) Current tax and deferred tax 
 
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised as income and expenses and included in net profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that 
they relate to the amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and relate to transactions or events that are recognised directly in equity 
in the same or the next period.  
 
Disposal of accumulated tax losses 
 
Upon disposal of accumulated tax losses carried forward to the Group companies, the Company derecognises deferred income tax asset (if 
such was recognised for disposed tax losses carried forward), consideration for disposed accumulated tax losses is recognised in Statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income under deferred tax expenses caption. 
 
�&�R�Q�V�L�G�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q���U�H�F�H�L�Y�H�G���L�V���G�L�V�F�O�R�V�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���³�5�H�D�O�L�V�H�G�����S�D�L�G�����L�Q�F�R�P�H���W�D�[�´���F�D�S�W�L�R�Q���L�Q���W�K�H���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���F�D�V�K���I�O�R�Z�V�� 

2.15 Employee benefits 

(a) Social security contributions 
 
The Company pays social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its employees based on the defined 
contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as 
expenses on an accrual basis and are included in payroll expenses.  
 
(b) Termination benefits 
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�7�H�U�P�L�Q�D�W�L�R�Q�� �E�H�Q�H�I�L�W�V�� �D�U�H�� �S�D�\�D�E�O�H�� �Z�K�H�Q�H�Y�H�U�� �D�Q�� �H�P�S�O�R�\�H�H�¶�V�� �H�P�S�O�R�\�P�H�Q�W�� �L�V�� �W�H�U�P�L�Q�D�W�H�G�� �E�H�I�R�U�H�� �W�K�H��normal retirement date or whenever an 
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either: terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan and agreements signed with 
employees without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy 
that cannot be withdrawn. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are recognised at present value discounted using 
market interest rate. 
 
(c) Pension benefits to employees of retirement age  
 
Each employee of retirement age who terminates his/her employment with the Company upon retirement is entitled to receive a payment equal 
to 2 monthly salaries as stipulated in the Lithuanian laws. If an employee belongs to labour union of the Company, he/she is also entitled to 
additional retirement benefit according to the collective agreement of the Company. A liability for such pension benefits is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and it reflects the present value of these earned benefits at the date of the statement 
of financial position. The aforementioned non-current liability for pension benefits to employees at the date of the statement of financial position 
is determined with reference to actuarial valuations. The present value of the defined non-current liability for pension benefits to employees is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the effective interest rates as set for long-term government debentures, i.e. the 
�W�H�U�P���R�I���Z�K�L�F�K���L�V���Q�R���O�H�V�V���W�K�D�Q�������\�H�D�U�V�����$�F�F�R�U�G�L�Q�J���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�����V�X�F�K���G�L�V�F�R�X�Q�W���U�D�W�L�R���E�H�V�W���U�H�I�O�H�F�W�V���W�Ke value of future benefits. 
 

2.16 Government grants 

Asset-related grants 
 
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company 
will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current 
liabilities in the statement of financial position and are recognised in the profit or loss account in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets. 
 
On revaluation of non-current assets, the grants related to non-current assets, for which impairment was recognised and reported in profit or 
loss, are reduced by the same amount by which the value of the respective asset had been reduced and accounted for in profit or loss (presented 
net of decrease in carrying amount). 
  
Income-related grants 
 
Government grants received as a compensation for costs or unearned income for current or previous reporting period, and all grants other than 
those related to assets, are considered as grants related to income. The income-related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of 
the expenses incurred during the reporting period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant. These grants are presented in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, less related expenses. 
 

2.17 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal obligation or irrevocable commitment as a result of the past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. When the Company expects that provision amount in part or in full will be compensated, compensation to be received is 
recorded as a separate asset, but only when it is virtually certain. Expenses related to provisions are recorded in profit or loss in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, net of compensation receivable. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount 
of provision is discounted using the effective pre-tax discount rate set based on the interest rates for the period and taking into account specific 
risks associated with the provision as appropriate. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as finance costs. 
 
Provisions for servitudes 
 
Provisions for servitudes are recognised only when the Company has a legal obligation or irrevocable commitment as a result of past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. Expenditures related to provision for servitudes are recognised as non-current intangible assets in 
view of amounts to be compensated.  If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of provision is discounted using the effective 
pre-tax discount rate based on the interest rates for the period and taking into account specific risks associated with the obligation. Where 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance costs. 
Payments of compensations to land owners are recorded as decreases of provision, while remeasurement of provision due to changes in 
underlying assumptions is recorded as change in respective intangible asset (Note 2.5). 
 
Provisions for registration of protection zones 
 
Provisions for registration of protection zones, compensations are recognised only when the Company has a legal obligation or irrevocable 
commitment as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expenditures related to provision for registration of protection 
zones and compensations are recognised as intangible assets based on the amounts to be compensated. If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, the amount of provision is discounted using the effective pre-tax discount rate based on the interest rates for the period and 
taking into account specific risks associated with the obligation. When discounting is applied, increase in the provisions reflecting the period of 
past time is accounted for as finance expense. 
 
Payments related to registration of protection zones are recorded as decreases of provision, while remeasurement of provision due to changes 
in underlying assumptions is recorded as change in respective intangible asset (Note 2.5). 
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2.18 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which control of the services are passed to the customer, which is 
when the service is rendered. For certain service contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the 
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. When 
recognising revenue the Company takes into consideration terms of contracts signed with customers and all significant facts and circumstances, 
including the regulatory environment, nature, amount, timing and uncertainty relating to cash flows arising from the contract with the customer.  
 
(a) Revenue from supply and distribution of electricity  
 
Revenue from supply and distribution of electricity to household customers is recognised in each reporting period on the basis of declared or 
actual, i.e. determined upon inspection or received via smart meters, readings. If declared or actual meter readings are not available, revenue 
from supply and distribution of electricity is recognised based on the average usage estimation method. From 1 October 2018 the Company no 
longer directly engages in supplying and distribution of electricity to household customers (refer to Note 32). 
 
Revenue from supply and distribution of electricity to business customers is recognised over time based on the actual electricity supplied which 
is determined according to the readings of electricity meters.  
 
Revenue from electricity distribution services is recognised over time referring to the readings of measuring devices as submitted by customers. 
 
Revenue from supply and distribution of electricity is regulated. 
 
(b) Revenue from distribution of natural gas 
 
Revenue from non-household customers for the distribution of natural gas is recognised over time based on to the readings of measuring 
devices provided by users or, if users did not provide the readings of measuring devices, referring to the quantities of gas calculated according 
to the approved methodology for the calculation of quantities of natural gas, as agreed with the Council (an accrual basis).  
 
Revenue from household customers is recognised over time based on the quantities of gas calculated according to the approved methodology 
for the calculation of quantities of natural gas, i.e. the calculation of revenue takes into account mismatches between quantities of gas declared 
by household customers and quantities of gas distributed to them (an accrual basis). Revenue from household consumers does not form a 
significant part of revenue from natural gas distribution activities. 
 
(c) Connection fees 
 
Connection fees obtained by the Company are non-refundable upfront fees paid by the customers for the connection to electricity and gas 
distribution network. The Company signs separate agreements with customers for connection services. Company also signs a distribution 
agreement with business customers for electricity distribution or has an implied contract (refer to Note 4 for a significant judgment applied) for 
electricity distribution service with private customers and gas distribution service with business and private customers. Connection fees do not 
represent a separate performance obligation from the sale of ongoing distribution of electricity or gas services as are highly interrelated. 
Therefore, revenue from connection fees is deferred and recognized as revenue over the the estimated average useful life of assets providing 
the connection service, being 27 years for electricity grid and 46-55 years on for gas grid. Connection fees received from customers which are 
deferred are accounted as liabilities under connection contracts with customers in the statement of financial position. 
 
(d) PSO Services 
 
Public Service Obligations (PSO) funds are integral part of electricity tariff to the customer. The Company collects PSO funds from business 
customers, connected to electricity distribution grid and electricity public supplier, who provides supply services to private individuals. Collected 
PSO funds are transferred to PSO fund administrator Baltpool. PSO funds are used to support and promote local production from renewable 
energy sources, to secure reserves of the electricity system at designated power plants, which is necessary for ensuring the state's energy 
security and to ensure other services related to public interest. The list of services supported by PSO is determined by the Government of the 
Republic of Lithuania.  
 
Management has applied a significant judgment and as further discussed in Note 3 concluded that the Company acts as an agent in relation to 
PSO funds collection from customers. Accordingly PSO funds are considered as amounts collected on behalf of third parties and not reflected 
�L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H���I�U�R�P���F�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W�V���Z�L�W�K���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V��  
  

2.19 Impairment of assets 

Non-financial assets 
 
The Company's non-financial assets are assessed for impairment when events and circumstances indicate that the value of assets may not be 
recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, impairment loss is accounted for in profit or loss. The 
�U�H�F�R�Y�H�U�D�E�O�H���D�P�R�X�Q�W���L�V���W�K�H���K�L�J�K�H�U���R�I���D�Q���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H�����O�H�V�V���F�R�V�W�V���R�I���G�L�V�S�R�V�D�O and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). The previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed when there are indications that recognised loss on impairment of an asset no longer exists or has reduced 
significantly. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit (loss) and other comprehensive income under the same item as impairment expenses. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating 
unit level.  
 

2.20 Dividend distribution 

�'�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V���L�V���U�H�F�R�J�Q�L�V�H�G���D�V �D���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�\���L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���L�Q���W�K�H���S�H�U�L�R�G���L�Q���Z�K�L�F�K���W�K�H��
�G�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G�V���D�U�H���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V�� 
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2.21 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary 
registered shares in issue during the period. Where the number of shares changes without causing a change in the economic resources, the 
weighted average number of ordinary registered shares is adjusted in proportion to the change in the number of shares as if such change 
happened at the beginning of the previous reporting period presented.  The Company has no dilutive instruments, therefore, basic and diluted 
earnings per share do not differ. 
 

2.22 Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote.  
 
A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of income or economic benefits is probable. 
 

2.23 Related parties 

Related parties are defined as shareholders, heads of administration and their deputies, their close family members, state-owned  enterprises  
and companies that directly  or indirectly (through the  intermediary) control the Company or are controlled by, or are under common control 
with the Company,  provided such relationship empowers one of the parties to exercise control or significant influence over  the other party in 
making financial and operating decisions.   

 

2.24 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty. 
 

2.25 Fair value 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 

�x In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
�x In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset 
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

  
Level 1: fair value of assets is based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.    
Level 2: fair value of assets is based on other observable market data, directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: fair value of assets is based on non-observable market data. 
 

2.26 Events after the reporting period 

All events after the reporting period (adjusting events) are accounted for in the financial statements provided that they are related to the reporting 
period and have a significant impact on the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are significant but are not adjusting 
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.   
 

2.27  Regulated activities 

The National Energy Regulatory Council regulates the Company's level of profitability by approving the prices of services for the next year. The 
level of prices depends on expected costs of the next year, expected volume of services provided, the variance between profit earned during 
the prior periods and the regulated amount of profit and other matters.  
 
Actual costs incurred by the Company during the year may differ from budgeted costs at the time of the approval of prices and the actual volume 
of services may differ from the expected volume. As a result, the Company's actual profit may deviate from the regulated level and the difference 
will affect the prices of future services.  
 
The Company does not recognise regulatory assets or liabilities that would be used to adjust the current year profit in order to arrive at the 
regulated level of profit, if this difference is recovered / returned in the course of service provision in future.  
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3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 

The prepar�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���W�R���P�D�N�H���M�X�G�J�H�P�H�Q�W�V�����H�V�W�L�P�D�W�H�V���D�Q�G���D�V�V�X�P�S�W�L�R�Q�V���W�K�D�W���D�I�I�H�F�W���W�K�H 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgments 

In the process of applying the �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�L�Q�J���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V�����P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���K�D�V���P�D�G�H���W�K�H���I�R�O�O�R�Z�L�Q�J���M�X�G�J�H�P�H�Q�W�V�����Z�K�L�F�K���K�D�Y�H���W�K�H���P�R�V�W���V�L�J�Q�L�I�L�F�D�Q�W��
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements: 

Determinining whether contract is a lease 

Management of the Company analyzed whether statutory and contractual servitudes are in scope of IFRS 16 Lease and concluded that is is 
not in scope since both statutory and contractual servitudes are not limited in time and can be used by the Company for a indefinite period of 
time. 

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options �± the Company as lessee 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the 
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 
exercised. 

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating 
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors 
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses 
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise 
the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). 

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of premises and infrastructure with shorter non-cancellable period 
(i.e., one to three, three to five, five to seven years, etc.). The Company usually exercises its option to renew for these leases. There are no  
renewal options for leases of premises with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e. 10 years). The renewal options for leases of motor vehicles are 
not included as part of the lease term because the Company typically leases motor vehicles for not more than five years. Lease of the state-
owned land is not subject to an extension clause, after which the lessee has a pre-emptive right to extend the lease. The periods covered by 
termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain to be exercised. 

Determining whether the Company acts as a principal or agent in relation to electricity transmission  

In providing electricity distribution service, the Company acquires electricity transmission services from transmission grid operator. Management 
of the Company analysed related contracts with transmission grid operator and contracts with customers, also evaluated applicable regulatory 
environment and having considered arguments provided further concluded that it acts as a principal in relation to transmission services: 

�x According to the Law on electricity electricity distribution service comprise of electricity transmission over high voltage grid, systemic 
and distribution over low and mid-voltage grid services. Electricity distribution services are provided by the distribution grid operator 
(i.e. the Company). 

�x The Company controls tramission services before transferring it to the end customer on the following grounds: 

o The Company is primarily responsible for electricity distribution service towards end customers. 
o The Company bears a risk of loss in case of outage of electricity, regardless of whether there was transmission or 

distribution grid failure. 
o The Company has discretion in establishing the final distribution price and transmission component is not re-charged on a 

pass-through principle.  

Determining whether the Company acts as a principal or agent in relation to PSO 

Management has applied a significant judgment and concluded that the Company acts as an agent in relation to PSO funds collection from 
customers due to the following argumentation: 

1) the Company is not responsible for PSO projects / initiatives, accordingly it is not responsible that PSO funds are used for their 
intended purpose, 

2) the Company is not charged to any inventory risk,  
3) the Company has no legal power to establish pricing of this component. 

Determining whether connection of a new customer to the grid is a separate performance obligation from ongoing distribution service 

Management concluded that the Company has an implied contract for distribution service with private customers for electricity and gas 
distribution and business customers for gas distribution due to the following: 

�x the Company is a major gas and electricity distribution system operator in Lithuania;  
�x the Company is ultimately responsible for distribution service to end customers according to the laws and regulations applicable for 

�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V�� 
�x Electricity and gas distribution price caps are approved by the Council and charged to end customers by electricity and gas suppliers. 
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Having considered that the Company has either an ongoing distribution service contract or an implied distribution service contract (refer above) 
with a new customer for both gas and electricity distribution, management of the Company also concluded that connection fees do not represent 
a separate performance obligation from the sale of ongoing distribution service, since they are both highly interrelated due to the following: 

�x Majority of new customers pay the the connection fees with the only reason being to get an ongoing access to the grid, so from the 
perspective of a customer there is one single service the Company is providing to its customers, which is ongoing access to the grid, 

�x connection fee does not represent 100% of connection costs incurred by the Company and significant part of connection costs is 
collected by the Company through the distribution tariff,  

�x connection and ongoing distribution services are highly interdependent, as ongoing access can not be provided without providing the 
connection of the customer to the grid first. 

b) Estimates and assumptions 

Revaluation and impairment of property, plant and equipment in year 2018 

The Company accounts for the property, plant and equipment of the electricity business segment (CGU) at a revalued amount in accordance 
with IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2018, valuation of property, plant and equipment of the Company was carried 
out. The fair value was determined with reference to the PP&E valuation report by independent valuator. The fair value of assets was determined 
using the income and cost approach (Note 5). 

Having performed the valuation of property, plant and equipment attributed to the electricity business segment, the Company identified and 
accounted for an increase in the value of assets in the amount of EUR 46.3 million as at 31 December 2018. An increase in the value of assets 
in the amount of EUR 134.7 million, without deductions for deferred income tax, was recognised in other comprehensive income and charged 
in the revaluation reserve. Impairment amounting to EUR 88.4 million, without deductions for deferred income tax, was recognised in profit or 
loss. The grants related to non-current assets, for which impairment was established, and amounting to EUR 10 million were written-off in profit 
or loss (Note 5). 
 
Property, plant and equipment of gas business segment comprises property, plant and equipment stated at acquisition cost and revalued 
amount, i.e. gas distribution pipelines and their equipment, technological gas equipment and structures that are stated using the cost method 
and the remaining assets are recorded at the revalued amount. As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable and fair values of these assets were 
assessed by forecasting cash flows until 2073, because the gas distribution activity is regulated with reference to the regulated asset base, 
which mainly consists of assets with long-term useful life, e.g. gas distribution pipelines (55 years) (Note 5). 

Having assessed all principal assumptions and performed the recoverable value assessment, the Company had identified that the increase in 
the value of property, plant and equipment attributed to the gas business segment was equal to EUR 29.8 million as at 31 December 2018. 
Since the increase in value is significant (15%), the management made a decision to reverse the previously recorded impairment of the gas 
business segment (Note 5). 

 
Test on the need for revaluation and impairment of property, plant and equipment in year 2019 

�$�W���W�K�H���U�H�S�R�U�W�L�Q�J���G�D�W�H���R�I���������'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�V�V�H�W�V���Z�H�U�H���W�H�V�W�H�G���I�R�U��significant changes in fair value (electricity operating segment) 
or impairment (for intangible assets with indefinite useful life and for gas operating segment) using the discounted cash flow method. Discounted 
cash flows were calculated in accordance with the legal acts and methodologies regulating the activities of gas, electricity distribution and supply 
activity, effective as at 31 December 2019. 

The assessment of the fair value of property, plant and equipment used in the electricity operating segment as at 31 December 2019 included 
the cash flow forecasts until 2059 as the distribution activity is regulated on the basis of the regulated base of property, plant and equipment, 
which mostly consists of assets with long useful life (40 years) �± electricity lines. The Company has determined that the fair value of property, 
plant and equipment of electricity operating segment differs from the carrying value of this property not more than by 5 percent. In the opinion 
of the management, this difference is not �P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O���� �W�K�H�U�H�I�R�U�H�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�� �G�H�F�L�G�H�G�� �W�K�D�W�� �Q�R�� �D�G�M�X�V�W�P�H�Q�W�V�� �I�R�U�� �F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J���Y�D�O�X�H�� �L�V��
needed.  

An impairment test for property, plant and equipment used in the gas operating segment (measuring the recoverable amount) was carried out 
by making cash flow forecasts until 2074 for the natural gas operating segment as the gas distribution activity is regulated on the basis of the 
regulated base of property, plant and equipment, which mostly consists of assets with long useful life (55 years); a continuous cash flow has 
been estimated beyond the year 2074. �7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���I�R�X�Q�G���Q�R���Q�H�H�G���W�R���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W���I�R�U���D�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O���L�P�S�D�L�U�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H�V�H���D�V�V�H�W�V���R�U��
a reversal of existing impairment, since recoverable value does not differ by more than 5% from carrying value.  

For more information on tests performed refer to Note 5. 

Provision for statutory servitudes 

On 1 November 2017, amendments to the Law on Electricity of the Republic of Lithuania came into effect. The amendments set forth 
compensation for servitudes established for the construction of electricity networks in land not owned by the operator. The Electricity Law 
provides that the construction of electricity transmission and distribution networks or other types of electricity installations will be subject to the 
payment of one-off compensations for damages related with the establishment of statutory servitudes (which came into effect on 10 July 2004). 
The methodology on the payment of servitudes came into force as of 31 July 2018. Under this methodology, an estimated gross amount of 
payments for servitudes was assessed and accounted for in 2018. This estimate included a significant assumption on the number of land owners 
�Z�K�R���Z�L�O�O���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���I�R�U���F�R�P�S�H�Q�V�D�W�L�R�Q�����V�L�Q�F�H���W�K�H���O�D�Z���S�U�H�V�F�U�L�E�H�G���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶s obligation to compensate those land owners which 
approached the Company for it. At the date of initial recognition, the Company recognized EUR 28,563 thousand of intangible assets (assets 
with indefinite useful life carried at cost less impairment) and EUR 28,725 thousand (at discounted value) of non-current liability provision under 
IAS 37. The amount of compensations paid in the period from 2018 until 2019 was EUR 1,674 thousand. Provision for compensation for servitude 
was reduced accordingly.  
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At the end of 2019, the Company assessed the key assumptions used to estimate the provision, i.e. the expected timing of compensation, the 
number of claimants, the period over which full payment will be made, and the discount rate. On the basis of the historical information available 
as well as updated assumptions, the following was calculated and accounted for: (a) EUR 26,426 thousand of the intangible assets; (b) EUR 
23,018 thousand of the provision for non-current obligation; (c) EUR 3,893 thousand of the current portion of the provision for non-current 
obligation. For the purpose of the calculation of the provision, the discount rate was applied with reference to the lending rate of similar liabilities 
and was equal to 0.559% (31 December 2018 �± 1.135%). In calculating the total amount of compensations, the percentage of customers who 
are unlikely to apply for compensations used was 15% (5% in 2018) based on the management estimates and the number of clients who actually 
applied during the period from 2018 to 2019. The period during which the customers will apply for compensation is 10 years from the effective 
date of the methodology with additional period of 1 year of the date of the submission of the request to pay the compensation (the terms of the 
methodology provide for two years from the date of the submission of the request to pay the compensation, but effectively the Company pays 
within one year). It should be noted that the value of the provision may vary depending on the number of actual applicants, a sensitivity analysis 
of this significant assumption is provided below: 

Number of applicants, % 80 proc. 85 proc. 90 proc. 95 proc. 100 proc. 
Change in provision for compensations of servitudes  
(thousand EUR) -1,725 - +1,770  +3,530  +5,280  

See Note 23 for more details. 

Provision for special conditions on land use (protection zones) 
 

On 6 June 2019 the Lithuanian Republic Law on Special Conditions on Land Use introducing obligation for the Company to register special 
protection �F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V�� ���S�U�R�W�H�F�W�L�R�Q�� �]�R�Q�H�V���� �R�I�� �D�� �O�D�Q�G�� �R�Z�Q�H�G�� �R�U�� �Q�H�D�U�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �L�Q�I�U�D�V�W�U�X�F�W�X�U�H�� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �V�W�D�W�H�� �U�H�D�O�� �H�V�W�D�W�H�� �U�H�J�L�V�W�U�\�� �D�Q�G�� �S�D�\��
compensations to land owners for the land covered by the protection zones. This Law defines the procedure and principles for registration of 
these special land areas and requires to pay compensations for the use of special land areas under the procedure approved by the Government 
of the Republic of Lithuania. 
 
When providing information to the Council on the price caps for electricity and gas for the year 2020, the Company assessed that the Lithuanian 
Republic Law on Special Conditions on Land Use will come into force on 1 January 2020 and that all special conditions on land use must be 
registered within 3 years period and compensation paid accordingly. Accordingly, the Council has included the cost of the registration of 
protection zones in the revenue cap for electricity and gas distribution effective for the year 2020. Compensation costs for protection zones were 
excluded from the price cap for distribution for the year 2020. Electricity distribution price for the year 2020 includes EUR 8,059 thousand of 
protection zone registration costs, while gas distribution price �± EUR 269 thousand. The provision of EUR 8,328 thousand was therefore 
recognized as the best management estimate (Note 23). 
 
No provision is accounted for protection zone registration costs expected to be incurred in 2021 and 2022, as the new wording of the regulation 
on Real Property Register is not yet approved by the relevant authorities and there is an uncertainty over the exact scope of work needed to 
register the protection zones.The management estimates that the compensation costs for the registration of protection zones in 2021 and 2022 
could be similar to those of 2020 and amount to EUR 8.3 million annually, and EUR 24.9 million in the period from 2020 to 2022, taking into 
account that the registration process will require the assistance of surveyors and/or other qualified professionals to develop plans/maps for 
special land use conditions.  In case the Government of the Republic of Lithuania approves the new wording of the Regulations of the Real 
Estate Register and services of surveyors and/or other qualified professionals are not needed to develop plans/maps for special land use 
conditions, additional service costs for the registration of protection zones (registration, customer information, communication and other costs) 
associated with this obligation would amount to EUR 3.6 million. 
No provision is accounted for compensation of land owners for the protection zones since the Government has not yet passet a methodology 
for payment of compensations for special protection zones that would describe the compensation mechanism and terms and therefore the 
Company is not able to determine reliably the amount of expenditures expected to be incurred for it. 

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure 
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the 
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. 

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables  

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of 
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e. by customer type). 
 
�7�K�H�� �S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�R�Q�� �P�D�W�U�L�[�� �L�V�� �L�Q�L�W�L�D�O�O�\�� �E�D�V�H�G�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �K�L�V�W�R�U�L�F�D�O�� �R�E�V�H�U�Y�H�G�� �G�H�I�D�X�O�W�� �U�D�W�H�V���� �7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �F�D�O�L�E�U�D�W�H�V�� �W�K�H�� �P�D�W�U�L�[ to adjust the 
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., changes in gross domestic 
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates are 
adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.  
 
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. 
�7�K�H�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�� �R�I�� �(�&�/�V�� �L�V�� �V�H�Q�V�L�W�L�Y�H�� �W�R�� �F�K�D�Q�J�H�V�� �L�Q�� �F�L�U�F�X�P�V�W�D�Q�F�H�V�� �D�Q�G�� �R�I�� �I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W�� �H�F�R�Q�R�P�L�F�� �F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V���� �7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �K�L�V�W�R�U�L�F�D�O�� �F�U�Hdit loss 
�H�[�S�H�U�L�H�Q�F�H���D�Q�G���I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W���R�I���H�F�R�Q�R�P�L�F���F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V���P�D�\���D�O�V�R���Q�R�W���E�H���U�H�S�U�H�V�H�Q�W�D�W�L�Y�H���R�I���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�¶�V���D�Ftual default in the future. The information about 
�W�K�H���(�&�/�V���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���W�U�D�G�H���U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V���L�V���G�L�V�F�O�R�V�H�G���L�Q���1�R�W�H�������� 

Accounting for long-term employee benefits 

The amount of present value of the retirement obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases, future turnover of employees and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 
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benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For more information refer 
to Note 22. 

Estimation of overdeclaration of electicity usage by private customers and accounting for deferred revenue  

In the circumstances when the tariff in subsequent period is higher than in current period according to the historical evidence of the Company it 
has been identified t�K�D�W���S�U�L�Y�D�W�H���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���W�H�Q�G���W�R���R�Y�H�U�G�H�F�O�D�U�H���W�K�H���F�R�Q�V�X�P�S�W�L�R�Q���R�I���H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���L�Q���W�K�H���O�D�V�W���P�R�Q�W�K�V���R�I���W�K�H���\�H�D�U�����6�L�Q�F�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
electricity distribution revenue depends on declarations of electricity consumed by the customers, overdeclaration increase C�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���Uevenue 
and therefore the Company needs to estimate the amount of the overdeclared consumption to evaluate the amount of deferred revenue. 
�(�V�W�L�P�D�W�L�R�Q���L�V���E�D�V�H�G���R�Q���K�L�V�W�R�U�L�F�D�O���F�R�Q�V�X�P�S�W�L�R�Q���E�\���W�K�H���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���D�V���Z�H�O�O���D�V���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�V�V�H�V�V�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�H�F�K�Q�R�O�R�J�L�F�D�O���O�R�V�V�H�V in the electricity grid. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For more information refer to Note 25. 
 
 

4 Change in management judgment on applying accounting methods 
 
Connection fees 
 
The Company accounted for the impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 15 starting from 1 January 2018 using the modified retrospective 
approach. Due to adoption of IFRS 15 the Company reduced its retained earnings by EUR 73 million (which represented the deferred new 
customers connection fees for electricity segment) and increased deferred revenue by a respective amount. The tax impact was equal to EUR 
11 million and was accounted for within retained earnings as well. 
 
Upon initial application of IFRS 15 with respect to revenue from new customer connection the Company assessed the existence of separate 
performance obligation through the legal point of view, i.e. if the Company had a new connection contract with the customer and the distribution 
as a service was provided to the end customer through the �F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�¶�V��contract with supply company (not the Company itseld), the new 
connection contract was treated as separate performance obligation, accordingly revenue received from the customer was recognized as 
income, when the connection service was provided. In case the Company signed two separate agreements with the customer �± one for 
connection service, another for distribution service, these two were treated as a single performance obligation, accordingly the connection fees 
paid by the customers were recognized as revenue through the useful life of new infrastructure created. 
  
Following this judgment starting from 2018 the connection fees in gas segment were recognized when connection service was provided. In 
electricity segment from 1 January 2018 to 1 October 2018 connection fees were deferred over the period of estimated customer relationship, 
which is determined based on the useful life of the related newly created property, plant and equipment (the connection infrastructure).  
 
Following the transfer of electricity public supply activities as of 1 October 2018 (as described in Note 32), new customer connection in electricity 
segment was reconsidered as a separate performance obligation under IFRS 15, accordingly related revenue from 1 October 2018 was 
recognized when connection service was provided. The accumulated deferred connection fee revenue for electricity segment as at  
1 October 2018 continued to be recognized over the time. 
 
Management of the Company has extensively analysed IFRS 15 accounting policies, which were also reviewed by the Bank of Lithuania as an 
oversight body of listed entities, also auditors were involved in the discussions. The accounting policy applied upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 
was assessed as appropriate after evaluating management judgement made in a number of areas. However, one year after mandatory 
implementation of the new standard, the Company observed the development of relevant industry practice, referred to the developing 
authoritative guidance on IFRS 15 application, analysed �³�L�P�S�O�L�H�G�� �F�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W�´�� �F�R�Q�F�H�S�W�� ���D�V�� �S�H�U�� �,�)�5�6�� ������ �U�H�T�X�L�U�H�P�H�Q�W�V������ �D�Q�G��consulted with its 
auditors, and as a result the Company has reconsidered its accounting treatment.  
 
The Company changed the accounting treatment of new customer connection fees by deferring all gas and electricity fees over the useful lives 
of the related assets (which represents the best management estimate for customer relationship period). According to the management such 
accounting treatment would more fairly �U�H�I�O�H�F�W���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���D�Q�G��ongoing provision of access to distribution service to 
the customer, as well as will allow the Company to be better comparable to its peers within the industry. This change in accounting treatment is 
accounted for retrospectively and comparative information is restated (see below).  
 
PSO Services 
 
Public Service Obligations (PSO) funds are an integral part of electricity tariff to the customer. The Company collects PSO funds from business 
customers, connected to electricity distribution grid and from the electricity public supplier, who provides supply services to private individuals. 
Collected PSO funds are transferred to PSO fund administrator Baltpool. PSO funds are used to support and promote local production from 
renewable energy sources, to secure reserves of the electricity system at designated power plants, which is necessary for ensuring the state's 
energy security and to ensure other services related to public interest. The list of services supported by PSO is determined by the Government 
of the Republic of Lithuania.  
 
PSO component as integral part of distribution service tariff was not identified as a separate performance obligation. The distribution service as 
a whole, including transmission, distribution and PSO was treated as one performance obligation (PSO component cannot be separated). PSO 
component generally is treated as a tax collected from customers, however this tax cannot be treated as sales tax, or vaue-added tax (VAT), 
since: (1) PSO is charged based on production or distributed energy unit, rather than sales amount, as is applied in VAT case; (2) the Company 
cannot claim a refund of the tax in the event the related the customer fails to pay for the services being sold; (3) the Company is charged to 
price risk - �L�Q���F�D�V�H���R�I���L�O�O�H�J�D�O���F�R�Q�V�X�P�S�W�L�R�Q�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�H�W�W�O�H�P�H�Q�W���D�P�R�X�Q�W���D�V PSO component to Baltpool will be determined based on current 
�S�H�U�L�R�G�¶�V���S�U�L�F�H�V�����K�R�Z�H�Y�H�U�����W�K�H��customer will be charged based on historical prices. Following the above, the Management treated the Company 
as Principal in relation to PSO component.  
 
During year 2019 the Company changed the method of accounting for PSO Services by treating the Company as an Agent in relation to the 
PSO Services. Such decision has been taken after extensive analysis of relevant industry practice and taking into consideration the facts, that 
the Company is not responsible for PSO projects / initiatives, accordingly not responsible that PSO funds are used for their intended purpose. 
The Company is not charged to any inventory risk, as well as the Company has no legal power to establish pricing of this component. 
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The changed accounting policy allows the Company to be better comparable to its peers within the industry (especially, where such PSO 
component is not included in the tariff). This change in accounting treatment is accounted for retrospectively and comparative information is 
restated (see below). 
 
 
 
The table below represents restatement impact on the statement of financial positition of the Company as at 1 January 2018:  
 

  
1 January 2018  

after IFRS 15 adjustments 
(previously reported) 

  
Deferral of 

connection fees in 
gas segment* 

    
1 January 2018  

 (restated*) 
       

ASSETS       

Non-current assets  1,153,921  43,512   1,197,433 
Property, plant and equipment 1,145,236  43,512   1,188,748 

Current assets  80,034  -   80,034 
Trade and other receivables 64,052  -   64,052 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,233,955  43,512   1,277,467 
       
Equity  544,990  -   544,990 

Retained earnings (deficit) 214,957  -   214,957 
Non-current liabilities  405,427  42,635   448,062 

Deferred income tax liability 370  -   370 
Liabilities under contracts with customers 143,885  42,635   186,520 

Current liabilities  283,538  877   284,415 
    Liabilities under contracts with customers 4,366  877   5,243 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,233,955   43,512     1,277,467 
 
*Upon transition to IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018 the Company increased retained earnings by EUR 44 million and reduced the deferred 
revenue by a respective amount due to reduction of deferred connection fee revenue for gas segment (as it was considered as one performance 
obligation). By reducing the deferred revenue balance, the carrying value of the gas cash generating unit for which impairment test was 
performed, increased. As a result, the carrying value exceeded the recoverable value by EUR 44 million and the resulting impairment loss was 
recognised in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018, as a part of the adjustments related to adoption of IFRS 15. The total amount of the 
impact of adopting IFRS 15 in the gas segment, including tax, was equal to zero. Due to the change in management judgment on application of 
accounting policies related to connection fees, IFRS 15 transition adjustment on gas segment was reversed back as at 1 January 2018. 
 
The following corrections to year 2018 comparative information are provided below: 
 
a) Reversal of IFRS 15 transition impact on gas segment deferred connection fees together with reversal of impairment loss for gas cash 

generating (CGU) unit that were recognised upon initial transition to IFRS 15.  
b) Change in accumulated depreciation and depreciation expenses related to to reversed impairment of gas CGU (see a) above). 
c) Correction of electricity grid connection fee income: deferral of connection fees initially recognised at the point-in-time during the period of 

1 October 2018 till 31 December 2018. Also accounting for related deferred tax change. 
d) Correction of gas grid connection fee income: deferral of connection fees initially recognised at the point-in-time during the period of  

1 January 2018 till 31 December 2018. Also accounting for related deferred tax change. 
e) Accounting for over-the-time connection fee income related to c) and d) corrections. Also accounting for related deferred tax change. 
f) Reclasification of short term portion of deferred revenue related to c), d) and e) adjustments. 
g) Netting of PSO revenue against expenses.  
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Retrospectively corrected captions of statement of financial position:  
 

 
2018.12.31 
(previously 
reported) 

a) Reversal of  
IFRS 15 initial 

recognition 
adjustment 

(gas segment) 

b) Depreciation 
of reversed 
impairment 

c) Deferral 
of electricity 
connection 

fees 

d) Deferral 
of gas 

connection 
fees 

e) Accounting for 
revenue from 

connection fee 
over-the-time 

f) Reclasification 
of short term 

portion of 
deferred revenue  

2018.12.31 
(restated) 

ASSETS                 
Non-current assets                  
Property, plant and equipment 1,428,529 43,512 (940)  - -  -  -  1,471,101 
Intangible assets 35,751             35,751 
Prepayments for non-current assets  3             3 
Investments in associates 2,459             2,459 
Other non-current financial assets  210             210 

Total non -current assets  1,466,952 43,512 (940) -  -  -  -  1,509,524 
Current assets                  
                  
Total current assets  124,690  - -  -  -  -  -  124,690 

Total assets  1,591,642 43,512 (940) -  -  -  -  1,634,214 

                  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES                  
Authorised share capital 259,443             259,443 
Revaluation reserve 154,834             154,834 
Legal reserve 25,944             25,944 
Retained earnings 69,565            69,565 
Other comprehensive income 114,583             114,583 
Current year profit 15,665 - (940) (4,193) (6,265) 998 - 5,265 

Total equity  640,034 - (940) (4,193) (6,265) 998 - 629,634 
                  

LIABILITIES                  
Non-current liabilities                  
Borrowings 448,534             448,534 
Deferred income tax liabilities 10,276  - -  (740) (1,106) 11  - 8,441 
Liabilities under contracts with customers 140,139 42,635 - 4,933 7,371 (1,009)  (333) 193,736 
Grants and subsidies  13,052             13,052 
Long-term employee benefits 1,710             1,710 
Other non-current liabilities 3             3 
Provisions 27,982             27,982 

  641,696 42,635 - 4,193 6,265 (998) (333) 693,458 
Current liabilities                  
Borrowings 182,930             182,930 
Trade and other payables 77,045             77,045 
Accrued expenses and contract liabilities 49,937 877  - - -  -   333 51,147 

  309,912  877 -  -  -  -  333 311,122 
Total liabilities  951,608 43,512 - 4,193 6,265 (998) - 1,004,580 

Total equity and liabilities  1,591,642 43,512 (940) - - - - 1,634,214 
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Retrospectively corrected captions of statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income : 
 

  
2018.12.31 
(previously 
reported) 

b) Depreciation 
of reversed 
impairment 

c) Deferal 
of electricity 
connection 

fees 

d) Deferal of 
gas 

connection 
fees 

e) Accounting 
for revenue 

from 
connection fee 
over-the-time 

g) netting of 
PSO revenue 

2018.12.31 
(restated) 

Revenue from contracts with customers 603,677  - (4,933) (7,371) 1,009 (129,334) 463,048 
Other income 20,367           20,367 
Purchases of electricity and related services (407,428) -  -  -  -  129,334 (278,094) 
Purchase (expenses) of natural gas and 
transmission services (4,404)           (4,404) 
Depreciation and amortisation (56,413) (940) - -  -  -  (57,353) 
Employee benefits and related social security 
contributions (41,542)           (41,542) 
Repair and maintenance expenses (13,810)           (13,810) 
Transport (4,823)           (4,823) 
Telecommunications and IT services (9,095)           (9,095) 
Rent and utilities (4,032)           (4,032) 
Impairment and write-off expenses 24,068           24,068 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (78,382)           (78,382) 
Other expenses (16,483)           (16,483) 
Operating profit  11,700 (940) (4,933) (7,371) 1,009 - (535) 
                
Finance income 89           89 
Finance costs (6,627)           (6,627) 
Finance costs - net (6,538) - - - - - (6,538) 
Share of profit of associates 179           179 
               
Profit before income tax  5,341 (940) (4,933) (7,371) 1,009 - (6,894) 
Income tax 10,324 - 740 1,106 (11)   12,159 
Net profit for the period  15,665 (940) (4,193) (6,265) 998 - 5,265 

 
Other comprehensive income (expenses)  
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:  
Gains (losses) on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 134,713           134,713 
Effect of deferred income tax (20,207)           (20,207) 
Recalculation of the defined benefit plan obligation, 
net of deferred income tax 77           77 
Other comprehensive income (expenses) 114,583           114,583 
Total comprehensive income for the period 130,248 (940) (4,193) (6,265) 998 - 119,848 

 
 

Weighted average number of shares 894,630,333               894,630,333 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in EUR) 
attributable to owners of the Company 0.018               0.006 

 
 
Retrospectively corrected captions of statement of cash flows:  
Correction of year 2018  

  
 

2018 
(previously 
reported)  

2018 
(restated)  

2018 
difference  

Cash flows from operating activities   
 

  
Net profit for the period  15,665 5,265 10,400 
Adjustments for:   

  
- 

Income tax expenses  (10,324) (12,159) 1,835 
Depreciation and amortisation  57,527 58,467 (940) 
Result of revaluation of property, plant and equipment  78,382 78,382 - 
Change in value of property, plant and equipment  (28,791) (28,791) - 
Amortisation of grants  (1,114) (1,114) - 
Gain on transfer of the public supply activities  (17,330) (17,330) - 
Share of (profit) of associates  (179) (179) - 
(Gain)/loss on disposal and write-off of assets  4,752 4,752 - 
Finance (income)  (89) (89) - 
Finance costs  6,627 6,627 - 
Elimination of other non-cash activities  (45) (45) - 
Changes in working capital:   

  
- 

Trade and other receivables  (40,581) (40,581) - 
Inventories, prepayments, deferred expenses and assets under contracts with customers (1,712) (1,712) - 
Amounts payable for property, plant and equipment  39,395 39,395 - 
Trade and other payables, advance amounts received and liabilities under contracts with 
customers 

 (29,800) (18,505) (11,295) 

Cash generated from operations   72,383 72,383 - 
(Paid)/Realized income tax paid  (1,128) (1,128) - 
Net cash flows generated from operating activities    71,255 71,255 - 

    - 

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (292,714) (292,714) - 
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities   227,931 227,931 - 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   6,472 6,472 - 
Cash and cash equivalents (including the overdraft balance) at the beginning of the period  (4,206) (4,206) - 
Cash and cash equivalents (including the overdraft balance) at the end of the period   2,266 2,266 - 
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5 Property, plant and equipment 
Movements on the Company's property, plant and equipment accounts were as follows: 

 Land  Buildings  
Structures 

and 
machinery  

Gas 
distribution 

pipelines  

Gas 
technological 

equipment and 
installations  

Vehicles  

Computer 
hardware and 

communication 
equipment  

Other PP&E  Construction -
in -progress  

In total  

As at 31 December 2017            

Acquisition cost 79  22,815  1,024,529  318,195  11,141  5,020  13,576  11,675  49,417  1,456,447  
Accumulated depreciation - (5,792) (101,955) (92,400) (5,055) (3,076) (6,734) (4,519) - (219,531) 
Accumulated impairment - - - (47,192) (575) - - - (401) (48,168) 

Net book amount at 1 January 2018 (restated*)  79  17,023  922,574  178,603  5,511  1,944  6,842  7,156  49,016  1,188,748  

Additions - 1  694    1,815  3  395  262,432  265,340  

Disposals - (5) (140) - - - (1) - - (146) 
Write-offs - (6) (4,556) (75) (37) - (63) (10) (5) (4,752) 
Revaluation - 10,297  37,125  - - 8  (1,149) 48  - 46,329  
Reclassifications between categories - 1,717  194,895  55,713  1,296  - 1,970  2,535  (258,126) - 
Reclassification from/to inventories - - - - - - -  1959 1959 
Reversal of impairment - - - 29,857  - - - - - 29,857  
Impairment of construction in progress - - - - - - - - (1,066) (1,066) 
Depreciation charge - (1,309) (43,567) (5,549) (714) (801) (1,725) (1,503) - (55,168) 

Net book value as at 31 December 2018 (restated*)  79  27,718  1,107,025  258,549  6,056  2,966  5,877  8,621  54,210  1,471,101  
           
As at 31 December 2018  (restated*)            

Acquisition cost 79  27,719  1,107,271  373,774  12,348  3,016  5,887  8,621  55,276  1,593,991  

Accumulated depreciation - (1) (246) (100,907) (5,757) (50) (10) - - (106,971) 
Accumulated impairment - - - (14,318) (535) - - - (1,066) (15,919) 

Net book value as at 01 January 2019  (restated*)  79  27,718  1,107,025  258,549  6,056  2,966  5,877  8,621  54,210   1,471,101 

Additions - 7  255  - - 427  45  884  172,948  174,566  

Disposals - (75) (89) - - (82) (2) (60) - (308) 

Write-offs - (20) (3,970) (216) (42) - (22) (35) - (4,305) 

Reclassifications between categories 
- 2,156  130,974  50,302  469 5  1,189  2,418  (187,513) - 

Impairment of construction in progress - - - - - - - - (3,985) (3,985) 

Depreciation charge - (4,430) (55,252) (8,693) (717) (938) (1,787) (1,730) - (73,547) 

Net book value as at 31 December 2019  79 25,356 1,178,943 299,942 5,766 2,378  5,300  10,098  35,660  1,563,522  

As at 31 December 2019            

Acquisition cost 79 29,783  1,234,294  423,861  12,774  3,255  7,080  11,811  39,645  1,762,582  

Accumulated depreciation - (4,427) (55,351) (110,550) (6,517) (877) (1,780) (1,713) - (181,215) 

Accumulated impairment - - - (13,369) (491) - - - (3,985) (17,845) 

As at 31 December 2019  79 25,356  1,178,943  299,942  5,766  2,378  5,300  10,098  35,660  1,563,522 

 
 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 



�(�1�(�5�*�,�-�2�6���6�.�,�5�6�7�<�0�2���2�3�(�5�$�7�2�5�,�8�6���$�%�����F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���F�R�G�H�������������������������$�J�X�R�Q�Ð���J�������������9�L�O�Q�L�X�V�����/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
All amounts are presented in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated 

 
35 

 

�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
The Company's property, plant and equipment is stated at revalued amount, except for gas distribution pipelines and gas technological 
equipment and structures which are stated using a cost method. Structures and machinery comprise objects related to electricity distribution. 

As at 31 December 2019, the Company reviewed aged construction in progress and determined that some of the projects will not be executed, 
therefore, an impairment of construction in progress is recognised. Projects will be written off in 2020. 

�,�Q���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J���F�R�V�W���F�D�S�L�W�D�O�L�V�H�G���D�V���S�D�U�W���R�I���S�U�R�S�H�U�W�\�����S�O�D�Q�W���D�Q�G���H�T�X�L�S�P�H�Q�W���D�P�R�X�Q�W�H�G���W�R���(�8�5�����������W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G�����W�K�H��interest rate 
was established at 1.97% (2018: interest capitalised amounted to EUR 438 thousand; the interest rate was established at 1.42%). 

Test on the need for revaluation of electricity and impairment test on gas business segments performed by the Company in 2019  
 

At least once a year the Company assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment recorded 
at acquisition cost (gas business segment (CGU)) could be impaired and whether the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment recorded 
at the revalued amount (electricity business segment (CGU)) does not differ materially from their fair value (according IAS 16: when the fair 
value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a further revaluation is required). The Company performs the impairment 
test and revaluation of assets, if such indications are found.  

As at the reporting date of 31 December 2019, the Company performed a test of gas CGU and electricity CGU respectively for impairment and 
potential need of revaluation using the discounted cash flow method. Discounted cash flows were calculated in accordance with the legal acts 
and methodologies regulating the activities of natural gas, electricity distribution and warranty supply activity, effective as at 31 December 2019:  

The legal acts and methodologies regulating the activities of natural gas and electricity distribution and guaranteed supply in force as at the 
reporting date are as follows:  

- Methodology of Setting Price Ceilings of Electricity Transmission, Distribution and Public Supply Services and Public Energy Price 
Ceilings ���³�W�K�H�� �(�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\�� �0�H�W�K�R�G�R�O�R�J�\�³���� �D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G�� �E�\�� �W�K�H �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V�� �5�H�V�R�O�X�W�L�R�Q�� �1�R�� �2��-3 of 15 January 2015 and subsequent 
amendments; 

- Description of Requirements for Accounting Separation and Cost Allocation of Electric Power Sector Companies and Requirements 
Related to Accounting Separation ���³�W�K�H���(�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���'�H�V�F�U�L�S�W�L�R�Q�³�����D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���5�H�V�R�O�X�W�L�R�Q���1�R���2���(-468 of 21 December 
2018 and subsequent amendments; 

- Methodology f�R�U���6�H�W�W�L�Q�J���W�K�H���5�D�W�H���R�I���5�H�W�X�U�Q���R�Q���,�Q�Y�H�V�W�P�H�Q�W�V�����³�W�K�H���:�$�&�&���0�H�W�K�R�G�R�O�R�J�\�³�����D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O �µ�V���5�H�V�R�O�X�W�L�R�Q���1�R���2��-
510 of 22 September 2015. 

- Methodology of Setting Regulated Prices in the Natural Gas Sector ���³�W�K�H���*�D�V���0�H�W�K�R�G�R�O�R�J�\�´�����D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V��Resolution 
No O3-367 of 13 September 2013 and subsequent amendments; 

- Description of Requirements for Accounting Separation and Cost Allocation of Gas Sector Companies and Requirements Related to 
Accounting Separation ���³�W�K�H�� �*�D�V�� �'�H�V�F�U�L�S�W�L�R�Q�³���� �D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G�� �E�\�� �W�K�H �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V�� �5�H�V�R�O�X�W�L�R�Q�� �1�R���� �2���(-464 of 21 December 2018 and 
subsequent amendments. 

 
 
Test on the need for revaluation of property, plant and equipment attributed to the electricity business segment as at 31 December 2019 

The electricity operating segment comprises property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount with a carrying amount of EUR 1,244 
million. The potential change in fair value of these assets was tested by making cash flow forecast for the period until 2059, because the 
electricity supply activity is regulated on the basis of regulated asset base, which mostly consists of assets with long useful life �± electricity lines 
(useful life of 40 years).  

The following key assumptions were used by the Company in making cash flow forecast: 

�x As from 2021, the amount of electricity distributed will rise by half of the GDP, e.g. the projected GDP growth in 2021 would be at 
2.3 %; therefore, the projected growth of the amount of electricity distributed would be at 1.15%. 
 

�x When setting the price cap of the electricity distribution service for 2019, the Council approved by the Certificate of 17 October 2019 
the rate of return on investments (hereinafter �± WACC) equal to 5.04% for this period.  Given that the WACC methodology requires 
to apply the same WACC calculation principles to the electricity and gas business segments, for the upcoming regulatory period of 
2021�±2025, the return on investments of 4.78% is calculated as the average between the rate of return on investments of 3.59% that 
was newly established by the Council for the gas sector (for 2019�±2023) and the rate of pre-tax return on investments of 5.96% that 
is estimated in the long term for the electricity sector. As from 2026 (in the long term), the pre-tax rate of return on investments of 
5.96% is to be applied for the cash flow forecast period (as calculated according to: a) the calculation data, which is publicly available 
�R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���Z�H�E�V�L�W�H��www.vert.lt, b) the WACC Methodology as approved by the Council, and c) projected market trends). In the 
long term, an assumption is made that the rate of return on investments (pre-tax equals to 5.96%, after tax �± 5.07%) will approximate 
the discount rate. 

 
�x The discount rate was determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model CAPM. It was assumed that the market player will not apply 

any unsystematic risk premium due to the following reasons: (1) size of a business, if compared with the Lithuanian economy and 
other local companies (one of the largest companies in Lithuania); (2) monopolised and securely regulated business; (3) model 
compliance with the current methodology defined in regulatory legislation, which does not provide for any additional risk premiums. 
 

�x Discount rate of 5.07% (after tax) (5.96% - pre-tax) was used to calculate discounted cash flows. 
 

�x Forecasted operating expenses for the year 2020 are based according to the approved budget, for the period of 2021-2030 according 
to ESO strategy and expected reduction in operating costs (forecasted operating expenses until 2030 are expected to be 
approximately lower by 16% compared to the upper level approved by Council (calculations are based on forecasted macroeconomic 
assumptions (increase of payroll expenses and inflation))) due to implementation of activity excellence initiatives (process review, 
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robotisation, improvements) and data-driven solution that will enable to run business more efficiently. Forecasted changes since 2031 
are according to the projected average annual consumer price index (CPI) and wage developments. 

 
�x A part of operating expenses incurred by the Company is not included in the regulated prices of the electricity distribution and supply 

activity in accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Description. 
 

�x The calculation of the level of revenue does not involve estimates that additional profit would be earned as a result of the planned 
performance efficiency (such a possibility is established in the Electricity Methodology). 
 

�x Investments are forecasted based on the ten-year investment plan for 2019�±2028. A similar level to that in 2028 is expected from 
2029 until 2030, however, more extensive investing is planned starting from 2031 and until 2036, i.e. all the investments that were not 
made in prior periods with reference to the amount calculated in accordance with the long-run average incremental cost (LRAIC) 
�P�R�G�H�O���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����µ�W�K�H���0�R�G�H�O�¶�����D�U�H���H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G���W�R���E�H��implemented. It is planned that all items of technological assets that 
are currently depreciated or will become depreciated over the period until 2060 will be renewed until 2060. 
 

�x The cost of capital (return on investments and depreciation of non-current assets) is calculated and included when determining the 
prices of the distribution services for other regulatory periods in accordance with the Model approved by the Council and in view of 
paragraph 7 of the Electricity Methodology. 

 
�x The evaluation model foresees that when setting the price caps for distribution services in medium and low voltage networks in the 

period from 2019 to 2020; the difference in the level of revenue in the amount of 53 million (plus additional interest of EUR 0.567 
�P�L�O�O�L�R�Q�������Z�K�L�F�K���U�H�G�X�F�H�V���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�F�R�P�H�����Z�L�O�O���E�H���U�H�I�X�Q�G�H�G��(via tariff) in the next regulatory period (from 2021), so the value of 
the assets will not change due to this Council decision No O3E-334 of 17 October 2018 On recalculating the price caps for electricity 
distribution services provided by Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB through medium and low voltage networks for the year 2019. 

 
Given that no significant changes have taken place in the regulatory environment for electricity and having assessed all above-mentioned 
assumptions and having performed the test on fair value assessment, the Company has identified that the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment attributed to the electricity business segment as at the reporting date of 31 December 2019 would increase immaterially (less 
than 5%), hence the management of the Company decided to withhold from making full revaluation to reflect the mentioned assets at new fair 
value. 

Sensitivity analysis.  At the end of 2019, the Company performed the sensitivity analysis on the fair value assessment in respect of changes 
in unobservable inputs using the following scenarios: 

Sensitivity analysis scenario I: If the Council continued to calculate the return on investment based on historical acquisition cost of property, 
plant and equipment with only limited adjustments to the LRAIC model (as adjusted for the prices set for period from 2019 to 2020), rather than 
�U�H�O�L�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���/�5�$�,�&���P�R�G�H�O���W�R���L�W�V���I�X�O�O���H�[�W�H�Q�W�����W�K�H���Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�R�S�H�U�W�\�����S�Oant and equipment would decrease approximately by EUR 
400 million. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario II: If the amount, i.e. EUR 53 million plus additional interest of EUR 0.5 million, by which th�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q��
income for the years 2019 - 2020 �Z�D�V���U�H�G�X�F�H�G���L�V���Q�R�W���U�H�L�P�E�X�U�V�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H���G�X�U�L�Q�J���W�K�H���I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W���S�H�U�L�R�G�����I�U�R�P������������
to 2059) would decrease by the aforesaid amount of EUR 53 million plus additional interest of EUR and 0.5 million, and the fair value of property, 
plant and equipment would decrease by EUR 49 million. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario III: If the Council established the level of revenue from 2026 and applied 20% lower rate of return on investments, 
i.e. equal to 4.78% (which is the average rate of return on investments effective for the electricity sector and the gas sector for the new regulatory 
period from 2026 as established by the Council in respect of the Company), plant and equipment would decrease by EUR 310 million. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario IV: if the (pre-tax) discount rate was applied within the interval of -/+ 20%, the value of assets would correspondingly 
decrease or increase. The sensitivity of the value of assets to the discount rate is presented in the table below: 
 

Change in discount rate (after-tax) -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 

Discount rate (pre-tax), % 4.78% 5.36% 5.96% 6.56% 7.15% 

Discount rate (after-tax), % 4.06% 4.56% 5.07% 5.58% 6.08% 

Change in value of property, plant and equipment 
(million EUR) 

457 213 0 -181 -333 

 
 
 
 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment attributed to the Electricity Business Segment as at 31 December 2018 
 
As part of the implementation of the provisions of paragraph 31 of IAS 16, the Company carried out valuation of its property, plant and equipment 
with reference to the valuation report delivered by independent valuator, and determined the fair value of property, plant and equipment (including 
construction in progress) equal to EUR 1,137 million as at 31 August 2018. It was concluded that the fair value of property, plant and equipment 
was EUR 50 million higher than the net book amount of EUR 1,087 million as at 31 August 2018. Change in value of property, plant and 
equipment resulted mainly from expected higher rate of return on investments. The valuation was subsequently updated by the Company for 
events and circumstances occuring between 31 August 2018 and 31 December 2018, giving the difference of 46 million EUR. 
 
Valuation of assets was carried out in the following stages: (i) the fair value of the whole electricity property, plant and equipment was determined 
�X�V�L�Q�J���L�Q�F�R�P�H���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K���D�V���W�K�H���S�R�R�O���R�I���D�V�V�H�W�V���I�R�U�P�V���D���V�L�Q�J�O�H���F�D�V�K���J�H�Q�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���X�Q�L�W���µ�(�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���%�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V���6�H�J�P�H�Q�W�¶�������L�L�����U�H�S�O�D�F�H�Pent cost of new 
assets was estimated; (iii) physical and functional obsolescence of assets was determined; and (iv) economic obsolescence of assets was 
assessed (allocating the total fair value to individual assets items). 
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The fair value of the Company's property, plant and equipment was determined using the income and cost methods. All items of property, plant 
�D�Q�G���H�T�X�L�S�P�H�Q�W���D�U�H���Z�L�W�K�L�Q���/�H�Y�H�O������ �L�Q���W�K�H���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���K�L�H�U�D�U�F�K�\�� �X�Q�G�H�U���,�)�5�6���������� �7�K�H���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�R�S�H�U�W�\���� �S�O�D�Q�W���Dnd equipment 
attributed to the Electricity Business Segment according to the fair value hierarchy levels is as follows as at 31 December 2018: 
 

Company  

Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  

Total  Quoted prices in 
active markets  

Other directly or 
indirectly 

observable inputs  

Unobservable 
inputs  

     
Land - - 79    79    
Buildings - - 27,718 27,718 
Structures and machinery - - 1,107,025  1,107,025  
Motor vehicles - -  2,966  2,966 
Other PP&E, computer hardware and other communication equipment - - 14,498 14,498 
Construction in progress - - 51,145 51,145 

Fair value at 31 December 2018  - - 1,203,431 1,203,431 

 
The cost method  relates to Replacement Cost New (RCN) approach at individual asset level. A direct cost method was applied to 98% of PP&E 
(percentage calculated based on the fair value as at 31 August 2018), whereby RCN was estimated for new assets. RCN includes the cost of 
materials, installation works, labour, transportation and handling fees, overall costs of contractor, also indirect costs, such as engineering and 
design costs, at 2018 market prices. 
 
During the valuation, indirect cost method was applied to assets, for which it was impossible to apply a direct cost method due to their unique 
nature or for which insufficient data was available. The indirect cost method was applied to approx. 2% of PP&E (percentage calculated based 
on the fair value as at 31 August 2018). Under the indirect cost method, the current replacement cost of new assets was estimated individually 
for each item of assets through indexation of capitalised historical cost of assets (based on the consumer price or producer price indices 
announced by the Lithuanian Statistics). 
 
RCN and replacement costs, less physical and functional obsolescence (i.e. DRC) of assets acquired between 1 September 2018 and 31 
December 2018, were treated as equal to the respective cost and net book amounts. Such approach was applied to approx. 6% of PP&E (based 
on the fair value as at 31 December 2018). 
 
After the replacement cost was estimated, it was further reduced by physical obsolescence, i.e. deterioration in condition of assets caused by 
use intensity. Physical obsolescence was determined using the age/useful life approach, based on Iowa1 type depreciation curves (the Iowa-
curve method is based on study and scientific research performed at the University of Iowa). These depreciation curves were used to determine 
the life cycle of assets based on  economic useful life, in view of current repairs and maintenance. Based on the Iowa curves used in valuation, 
the useful lives of assets exceed to certain extent the useful lives used for financial reporting purposes by the Company until 31 December 
2018. Useful lives were considered to be reviewed and prolonged accordingly and changes will be applied starting from 1 January 2019. It is 
expected that due to the annual review of the useful life, useful life will become longer for some assets and shorter for other, and overall 
depreciation expense will increase by EUR 2.5 million. 
 
For all technological assets with physical obsolescence not similar to straight-line depreciation, Iowa R2 type depreciation curve was used; and 
for all assets with physical obsolescence similar to straight-line depreciation, Iowa R3 type depreciation curve was used (the useful life based 
on this type is slightly more similar to the actual operational period). Physical obsolescence of transformers was estimated according to the 
maintenance curves (MC depreciation curves) that were based on a real useful life cycle of transformers, taking into consideration the intervals 
and costs of repairs and major improvements. Physical obsolescence of buildings was estimated according to the Marshall & Swift curve (MS 
depreciation curve), which is used to evaluate assets with the value not lower than 20% of RCN at all times, provided such assets are still in 
use (if properly maintained). 
 
RCN was further reduced by the amount of functional obsolescence, i.e. occurrence of functional failures over a particular period as a result of 
technological developments in the market. Functional obsolescence was estimated separately for each category of assets, the performance of 
which failed to comply in full with the intended function or was lower than that of modern equivalents that were used for reference when estimating 
RCN. DRC was estimated as RCN less physical and functional obsolescence.  
 
The main assumptions of the cost method used for the valuation are as follows: 

�x RCN values, which reflect all costs that are incurred upon creation of new identical assets; 
�x Depreciation curves, which determine the developments in the value of an asset over its life cycle according to the characteristics of 

that asset and its useful life; 
 

�x Functional obsolescence, which estimates the decrease in the usefulness of an asset due to its existing alternatives and technological 
progress; 

 
�x Hold factor, which establishes the minimum value for an asset, since the Company can continue to use fully depreciated assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 The Iowa-curve method is based on study and scientific research performed at the University of Iowa. 
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Income method.  Under the income method, the economic obsolescence of assets was assessed. This method was used to estimate economic 
depreciation. 
 
When estimating economic obsolescence, a cash flow forecast was prepared for the period from September 2018 to 2058. Key assumptions 
used in the cash flow forecasts to estimate economic depreciation of assets were as follows: 
 
- from 2019, the amount of electricity distributed will rise by half of the GDP, e.g. the projected GDP growth would be at 2,8%; therefore, 
the projected growth of the amount of electricity distributed would be at 1.4%. 
-  setting the price cap of the electricity distribution service for 2019, in the Certificate of 17 October 2018, the Council approved the rate 
of return on investments equal to 5.04% for this period. This rate is used to determine the return on investments for the period of 2019�±2020. 
With regard to the fact that the WACC methodology provides identical WACC calculation principles to be applied to the Electricity and Natural 
Gas Business Segments, for the upcoming regulatory period of 2021�±2025, the return on investments is calculated as the average between the 
rate of return on investments of 3.59% that was newly established by the Council for the gas sector (for 2019�±2023) and the rate of pre-tax 
return on investments of 5.96% that is estimated in the long term for the electricity sector (i.e. 4.78%). From 2026 (in the long term), the rate of 
pre-tax return on investments of 5.96% is to be applied for the cash flow forecast period (as calculated according to: a) the calculation data, 
which is publicly available on the �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V��website, b) the WACC Methodology as approved by the Council, and c) projected market trends). In 
the long term, an assumption is made that the rate of return on investments (pre-tax 5.96% equivalent to post-tax 5.07%) will approximate the 
discount rate; 
- The discount rate was determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM). It was assumed that the market player will not apply 
any unsystematic risk premium due to the following reasons: 
- size of a business, if compared with the Lithuanian economy and other local companies (one of the largest companies in Lithuania); 
- monopolised and securely regulated business;  
- model compliance with the current methodology defined in regulatory legislation, which does not provide for any additional risk 
premiums. 
- the cash flows were discounted using an post-tax discount rate of 5.07%;  
- �W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H�V���I�R�U�������������D�U�H���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���W�K�H���E�X�G�J�H�W���D�Q�G���L�W�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H�V���I�R�U�����������±2030 are planned 
�R�Q���W�K�H���E�D�V�L�V���R�I���(�6�2�¶�V���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�\���Z�L�W�K���U�H�V�S�H�F�W���W�R���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���G�L�U�H�F�Wions for expense reduction. Starting from 2031 (it is expected that by 2030 the level 
of operating expenses will be up to 16% lower than the level of expenses permissible by the regulator (calculated on the basis of the projected 
market macroeconomic assumptions (increase in wages and inflation)) as a result of the implementation of operational excellence measures 
(process supervision, robotisation, improvements) and data-based solutions that will increase the efficiency of operations), changes are planned 
referring to expected changes in the average annual consumer price index and remuneration prevailing during valuation;  
- a part of operating expenses incurred by the Company is not included in the regulated prices of the electricity distribution and supply 
activity in accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Description;  
- the calculation of the level of revenue does not involve estimates that additional profit would be earned as a result of the planned 
performance efficiency (such a possibility is established in the Electricity Methodology);  
- investments are shown under the ten-year investment plan for 2018�±2027. More extensive investing is planned starting from 2028 
and until 2035, i.e. all the investments that were not made in prior periods with reference to the amount calculated in accordance with the long-
run average incremental cost (LRAIC) model approved by the Council ���³�W�K�H���0�R�G�H�O�³�����D�U�H���H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G���W�R���E�H���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�H�G�����,�W���L�V���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���W�K�D�W���D�O�O���L�W�H�P�V���R�I��
technological assets that are currently depreciated or will become depreciated over the period until 2058 will be recovered until 2058;  
- The cost of capital (return on investments and depreciation of non-current assets) is calculated and included when determining the 
prices of the distribution services for other regulatory periods in accordance with the Model approved by the Council and in view of paragraph 7 
of the Electricity Methodology; 
- the valuation model assumes that the difference in the level of revenue in the amount of EUR 26.5 million, calculated in establishing 
the price caps for electricity distribution services through medium and low voltage networks for 2019 (and the additionally calculated amount of 
interest equal to EUR 0.567 million) will be returned to the Company during the upcoming regulatory period (starting from 2021). Therefore, the 
value of assets will not change as a result of this resolution of the Council. 
 
�%�D�V�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���G�L�V�F�R�X�Q�W�H�G���F�D�V�K���I�O�R�Z���P�H�W�K�R�G�����W�K�H���Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���E�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V���H�Q�W�H�U�S�U�L�V�H���Z�D�V���H�V�W�L�P�D�W�H�G���D�Q�G the value attributable 
to PPE was determined.  
 
Based on the results of the economic obsolescence test, the values of assets determined by the DRC method were reduced on a pro rata basis 
(as the total fair value of assets was determined using income method), except for assets for which such allocation would have resulted in a 
�Y�D�O�X�H���O�R�Z�H�U���W�K�D�Q���W�K�H���D�V�V�H�W�¶�V��regulatory asset base (RAB) value. For such assets the RAB value was considered to be its fair value. The amount 
of reduction that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset was allocated pro rata to the other assets. In order to distribute the value of 
economic obsolescence among separate items of assets so that the resulting value would reflect more accurately the fair value of the respective 
separate item of assets, the Company followed a policy whereby the fair value of particular item of assets would not be lower than the RAB 
assumption used in respect of that particular item of assets. The RAB value for separate items of assets might be calculated as follows: RAB 
value for separate items of assets equals net book value (NBV) for separate items of assets included in the RAB ledger (whereby values pertain 
to grants but not to revaluations) less the grants allocated on a proportionate basis and new customer fees. 
 
Economic obsolescence was applied (i.e. distributed) to all assets, except for the following categories (or separate items of assets from different 
categories), where DRC was approximated to the carrying amount of these assets:  
�± construction in progress; because new projects are included in RAB at full value;  
�± other tangible assets that are not directly related to the underlying technological asset (for example, assets used in both Electricity 
and Gas Business Segments that are allocated to the segments using value drivers as agreed with the Council);  
�± assets with the fair value equal to the net book amount for the purpose of valuation (assets acquired no earlier than one year until the 
valuation date 31 August 2018);  
�± assets with the value before economic obsolescence lower than RAB value attributed to these assets (those kept at RAB value); 
 
The main reasons for the change in the value of separate items of assets include the following: 
- DRC changes resulting from RCN changes in different categories of assets: rising prices in certain categories of assets resulted in an 
increase in their fair value (extensive investing in the largest category of assets, i.e. 0.4-10 kV cable lines, incl. growth in their prices, 10 kV 
overhead lines on concrete poles, etc.), while dropping prices in certain categories of assets resulted in a decrease of their fair value (pole-
mounted transformer substations, distribution devices, etc.); 
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- review of the technical database and projects on ensuring the quality of technical data: the parameters of the technical data base are 
being harmonised with the parameters of the financial data base (length in km, number of units, etc.), but the value of assets has not been 
adjusted during the performance of amount adjustments. Consequently, in view of the changes in the amount of assets, adjustments to the 
value of assets were performed during the valuation of assets; 
- new values were established (set) with respect to assets that are depreciated to zero but still in use;  
- an increase in prices in certain categories of assets and the establishment of new values for depreciated but still in use assets resulted 
in an impairment charge of other categories of assets, because the total fair value estimated under income method de facto capped the amount 
available for allocation to individual items.  
 
Information on the gains and losses on revaluation of the assets of the electricity segment in 2018 is presented below: 
 

      
Recognised in other 

comprehensive income and 
revaluation reserve  

Recognised in profit 
or loss  

Total revaluation 
gain (loss)  

Increase (decrease) in carrying amount 134,713                      (88,384)                     46,329  
Write-off of grants (Note 21)   -                          10,002                        10,002 

Total  
    134,713 (78,382) 56,331 

 
Sensitivity analysis.  Based on the provisions set forth in paragraph 93 of IFRS 13, the Company performed fair value sensitivity analysis in 
respect of changes in unobservable inputs using the following scenarios: 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario I: In case the Council continued to determine return on investments based on historical cost of the property, plant 
and equipment with limited LRAIC adjustments (as done in 2018), and not based on LRAIC model in full extent, the value of the �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��
PP&E would decrease by EUR 339 million. 
 
�6�H�Q�V�L�W�L�Y�L�W�\���D�Q�D�O�\�V�L�V���V�F�H�Q�D�U�L�R���,�,���� �L�I�� �M�X�G�L�F�L�D�O���D�X�W�K�R�U�L�W�L�H�V���U�H�M�H�F�W�H�G���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�R�P�S�O�D�L�Q�W���L�Q���U�H�V�S�H�F�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V resolution under which the 
�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �L�Q�F�R�P�H�� �I�U�R�P�� �G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�� �V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V�� �I�R�U�� ���������� �Z�D�V�� �U�H�G�X�F�H�G�� �E�\�� �(�8�5�� ���������� �P�L�O�O�L�R�Q�� �D�Q�G���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W�� �L�Q���W�K�H��amount of EUR 0.5 million was 
�D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O�O�\���F�K�D�U�J�H�G�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�F�R�P�H���I�R�U���W�K�H���I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W���S�H�U�L�R�G�������������±2058) would decrease by the said amounts of EUR 26.5 million and 
EUR 0.5 million and the fair value of PP&E would decrease to EUR 1,119 million. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario III: had the Council established the level of revenue starting from 2026 and applied a 20% lower rate of return on 
investments, i.e. equal to 4.78% (which is the average rate of return on investments effective for the electricity sector and the gas sector for the 
new regulatory period as established by the Council in respect of the Company), and accordingly a 20% lower discount rate, i.e. equal to 4,06%, 
the fair value of property, plant and equipment would increase by EUR 145 million. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario IV: if the (post-tax) discount rate was applied within the interval of -/+ 20%, the value of assets would 
correspondingly decrease or increase. The sensitivity of the value of assets to the discount rate is presented in the table below: 
 

Change in discount rate (post-tax) -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 
Discount rate (pre-tax), % 4.78% 5.36% 5.96% 6.56% 7.15% 
Discount rate (post-tax), % 4.06% 4.56% 5.07% 5.58% 6.08% 
Change in value of property, plant and equipment (million EUR) 521 242 0 -205 -376 

 
�,�I���Q�R���U�H�Y�D�O�X�D�W�L�R�Q���K�D�G���E�H�H�Q���F�D�U�U�L�H�G���R�X�W���I�R�U���3�3�	�(�����W�K�H���Q�H�W���E�R�R�N���Y�D�O�X�H�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���3�3�	�(���D�W�W�U�L�E�X�W�H�G���W�R���W�K�H���(�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���%�X�V�Lness Segment 
would have been as follows as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:   
 

  Land  Buildings  
Structures and 

machinery  
Motor 

vehicles  

Computer 
hardware and 

other 
communication 

equipment  

Other PP&E  
Construction 
in progress  Total  

At 31 December 
2018 109 30,148 1,116,825 1,993 10,234 7,664 52,575 1,219,548 
At 31 December 
2019 109 27,976 1,276,159 2,386 8,226 10,098 34,355 1,359,309 

 
Assessment of the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment in 2019 used in the gas operating segment. 
 
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, net of grants (EUR 6.1 million), attributable to the gas operating segment amounts 
to EUR 313 million. This property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. The 
recoverable amount of these assets, which is the fair value less costs to sell, has been tested by making cash flow forecast for the period until 
2074 for the natural gas operating segment, because the gas distribution activity is regulated on the basis of regulated asset base, which mainly 
consists of assets with long useful life �± gas pipelines (useful life of 55 years).  
 
The following key assumptions were used by the Company in making cash flow forecast: 
 

�x In setting the price cap of the gas distribution service for 2019�±2023, the Council approved the rate of return on investments equal to 
3.59% for this period. In 2020, WACC of 3.84 % (pre-tax) was applied for approving the natural gas distribution price, and, therefore, 
it was assumed that in the period from 2021 until 2023 the same WACC of 3.84 % (pre-tax)  will apply. As from 2024 (in the long 
term), the rate of return on investments of 5.96% is to be applied for the cash flow forecast period (as calculated according to the 
calculat�L�R�Q���G�D�W�D�����Z�K�L�F�K���L�V���S�X�E�O�L�F�O�\���D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���Z�H�E�V�L�W�H�����W�K�H���:�$�&�&��(pre-tax) Methodology as approved by the Council, 
and projected market trends). In the long term, an assumption is made that the rate of return on investments will approximate the 
discount rate. 
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�x discount rate of 5.07% (after tax) (5.96% pre-tax) was used to calculate discounted cash flows. 

 
�x Forecasted operating expenses for the year 2020 are based according to the approved budget, for the period of 2021-2030 according 

to ESO strategy and expected reduction in operating costs (forecasted operating expenses until 2030 are expected to be 
approximately lower by 16% compared to the upper level approved by Council (calculations are based on forecasted macroeconomic 
assumptions (increase of payroll expenses and inflation))) due to implementation of activity excellence initiatives (process review, 
robotisation, improvements) and data-driven solution that will enable to run business more efficiently. Forecasted changes since 2031 
are according to the projected average annual consumer price index (CPI) and wage developments. 

 
�x A part of operating expenses incurred by the Company is not included in the regulated prices of the gas distribution activity in 

accordance with the provisions of the Gas Description. 
 

�x The calculation of the level of revenue does not involve estimates that additional profit would be earned as a result of the planned 
performance efficiency (such a possibility is established in the Gas Methodology). 

 
�x Investments are shown under the ten-year investment plan for 2019�±2028. Starting from 2029 and until 2074, gradual decrease is 

expected to occur with each year. 
 
 
Having assessed all above-mentioned assumptions and having performed an impairment test, the Company has identified that the carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment attributed to the gas business segment as at the reporting date of 31 December 2019 would decrease 
immaterially (less than 5%), hence the management of the Company decided to withhold from making adjustments to the value of gas assets.  
 
Sensitivity analysis .  The Company performed the sensitivity analysis on the impairment test in respect of changes in unobservable inputs 
using the following scenarios: 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario I: Had the Council established the level of revenue for the gas business segment starting from 2023 and applied a 
5% lower rate of return on investments, i.e. equal to 5.66% (pre-tax), an impairment of EUR 14 million would be recorded. 
 
Sensitivity analysis scenario II: If the estimated after-tax discount rate was at 5.58% (which is 10% higher than the discount rate of 5.07% used 
in the long-term model), an impairment of EUR 35 million would be recorded. The sensitivity of the value of assets to the discount rate is 
presented in the table below: 
 

Change in discount rate (after-tax) -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 
Discount rate (pre-tax), % 4,78% 5,36% 5,96% 6,56% 7,15% 
Discount rate (postr-tax), % 4,06% 4,56% 5,07% 5,58% 6,08% 

Change in value of property, plant and equipment 
(million EUR) 87 41 0 -35 -64 

Assessment of the recoverable value of property, plant and equipment attributed to the Gas Business Segment in 2018 (restated as disclosed 
in Note 4) 

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment attributed to the Gas Business Segment, less grants, is equal to EUR 242.4 million (before 
reversal of impairment). This property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost, less depreciation and impairment. The recoverable 
value (being fair value less cost of disposal) of these assets were assessed by forecasting cash flows until 2073, because the gas distribution 
activity is regulated with reference to the regulated asset base, which mainly consists of assets with long-term useful life, e.g. gas distribution 
pipelines (55 years). The main assumptions used in the cash flow forecast were as follows: 
 

- In setting the price cap of the gas distribution service for 2019�±2023, the Commission approved the rate of return on investments 
equal to 3.59% for this period; From 2024 (in the long term), the rate of return on investments of 5.96% is to be applied for the cash 
�I�O�R�Z���I�R�U�H�F�D�V�W�� �S�H�U�L�R�G�� ���D�V���F�D�O�F�X�O�D�W�H�G�� �D�F�F�R�U�G�L�Q�J���W�R���W�K�H���F�D�O�F�X�O�D�W�L�R�Q�� �G�D�W�D���� �Z�K�L�F�K���L�V�� �S�X�E�O�L�F�O�\�� �D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�P�L�V�V�L�R�Q�¶�V�� �Z�H�E�V�L�We, the 
WACC Methodology as approved by the Commission, and projected market trends). In the long term, an assumption is made that the 
rate of return on investments will approximate the discount rate;  

- The cash flows were discounted using a post-tax discount rate of 5.07%; 
- �7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H�V���I�R�U�������������D�U�H���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���W�K�H���E�X�G�J�H�W���D�Q�G��its operating expenses for 2020�±2030 are planned 

�R�Q���W�K�H���E�D�V�L�V���R�I�� �(�6�2�¶�V���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�\�� �Z�L�W�K���U�H�V�S�H�F�W���W�R���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���G�L�U�H�F�W�L�R�Q�V���I�R�U���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H���U�H�G�X�F�W�L�R�Q���� �6�W�D�U�W�L�Q�J���I�U�R�P������������ ���L�W���L�V���H�[�S�H�F�W�H�G���What by 
2030 the level of operating expenses will be up to 16% lower than the level of expenses permissible by the regulator (calculated on 
the basis of the projected market macroeconomic assumptions (increase in wages and inflation)) as a result of the implementation of 
operational excellence measures (process supervision, robotisation, improvements) and data-based solutions that will increase the 
efficiency of operations), changes are planned referring to expected changes in the average annual consumer price index and 
remuneration prevailing during valuation; 

- A part of operating expenses incurred by the Company is not included in the regulated prices of the gas distribution activity in 
accordance with the provisions of the Gas Description; 

- The calculation of the level of revenue does not involve estimates that additional profit would be earned as a result of the planned 
performance efficiency (such a possibility is established in the Gas Methodology);  

- Investments are shown under the ten-year investment plan for 2018�±2027. Starting from 2028 and until 2073, gradual decrease is 
expected to occur with each year. 

Having assessed all above-mentioned assumptions and performed the fair value assessment, the Company has identified that the increase in 
the value of property, plant and equipment attributed to the Gas Business Segment was equal to EUR 29.8 million as at 31 December 2018. 
Since the increase in value is significant (15%), the Management made a decision to reverse the previously recorded impairment of the gas 
business segment established in prior periods. 
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Impairment test and reversal of impairment for the Gas Business Segment have been performed as at 31 December 2018, as the assumptions 
of the impairment test have significantly changed and the impairment that had been accounted for as at 31 December 2014 needs to be reversed. 
The principal assumptions due to the change in which the reversal of impairment for the Gas Business Segment has been identified are as 
follows: 
1.     The estimated increase in investments will consequently result in increasing return on investments and depreciation. The value of regulated 
assets used in the 2018 impairment test is higher as at the beginning of 2019 than that estimated in the 2014 impairment test model. 
2.     The assumptions related to the regulatory return and discount rate have changed. In the 2014 impairment test model, return is calculated 
at 7.09% and the discount rate is set at 6.03% (post-tax). In the 2018 impairment test, regulatory return for 2019�±2023 is calculated at 3.59% 
and after 2023 is calculated at 5.96% pre-tax which is an equivalent of post-tax discount rate of 5.07% which was used in the model. 
3.     The amount of income tax relief for investments is estimated to be higher. 

Sensitivity analysis.  The Company performed the sensitivity analysis on the impairment test in respect of changes in unobservable inputs 
using the following scenarios: 

Sensitivity analysis scenario I: had the Commission established the level of revenue for the Company's Gas Business Segment starting from 
2023 and applied a 10% lower rate of return on investments, i.e. equal to pre-tax 5.36%, the reversal of impairment would have been equal to 
EUR 7 million.  

Sensitivity analysis scenario II: if the estimated post-tax discount rate was at 5.32% (which is 5% higher than the discount rate of 5.07% used 
in the long-term model), the reversal of impairment recorded would have been equal to EUR 13 million, rather than EUR 30 million. 

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the cost of acquisition of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment used by the Company was as 
follows:  
 

  Structu res and 
machinery  

Gas 
distribution 

pipelines  

Gas 
technological 

equipment and 
installations  

Vehicles  

Computer 
hardware and 
communicatio
n equipment  

Other PP&E  In total  

As at 31 December 
2018 - 11,801 705 - - 9 12,515 
As at 31 December 
2019 614 15,635 1,247 64 528 181 18,269 

 
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018�����W�K�H���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�R�S�H�U�W�\�����S�O�D�Q�W���D�Q�G���H�T�X�L�S�P�H�Q�W�����U�H�F�R�U�G�H�G���D�W���D�F�T�X�L�V�L�W�L�R�Q���F�R�V�W�����G�L�G���Q�R�W���G�L�I�I�H�U��
significantly from their carrying amounts: 
 

Category of assets  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  
 

  
 

Gas distribution pipelines   299,942 
Gas technological equipment and installations   5,766 
Total    305,708 

 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 
During 2019, the Company disposed the property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of EUR 308 thousand and for the consideration 
of EUR 917 thousand. During 2019, the net result was recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income under the 
�F�D�S�W�L�R�Q���µ�2�W�K�H�U���L�Q�F�R�P�H�¶�����1�R�W�H���������� 
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6 Intangible assets 

  
Patents and 

licences  
Computer 
software  

Other 
intangible 

assets  

Rights to 
servitudes  

and security 
zones  

Projects in 
progress  In total  

As at 31 December 2017        
Acquisition cost 1,183  12,887  301  - 1,999  16,370  

Accumulated amortisation (1,141) (9,552) (226) - - (10,919) 

Net book value as at 01 January 2018  42  3,335  75  - 1,999  5,451  

Additions  - 13  - 28,877  4,709  33,599  

Reclassifications between categories 5  3,381  3  -  (3,389) -  

Amortisation charge (43) (3,213) (43) - - (3,299) 

Net book value as at 31 December 2018  4  3,516  35  28,877  3,319  35,751  

       

As at 31 December 2018        

Acquisition cost 1,188  16,281  304  28,877  3,319  49,969  

Accumulated amortisation (1,184) (12,765) (269) - - (14,218) 

Net book value as at 01 January 2019  4  3,516  35  28,877  3,319  35,751  

Additions  - - - 9,890  4,127  14,017 

Re-measurement of provision (Note 23) - - - (464) - (464) 

Reclassifications between categories - 3,851  - - (3,851) - 

Impairment losses - - - - (35) (35) 

Amortisation charge (4) (4,415) (31) - - (4,450) 

Net book value as at 31 December 2019  - 2,952  4  38,303  3,560  44,819 

As at 31 December 2019        

Acquisition cost 213  19,482  244  38,303  3,595  61,837 

Accumulated amortisation (213) (16,530) (240) - - (16,983) 

Accumulated impairment - - - - (35) (35) 

Net book value as at 1 January 2019  - 2,952  4  38,303  3,560  44,819 

       

On 1 November 2017, amendments to the Law on Energy of the Republic of Lithuania came into effect. The amendments set forth compensation 
for servitudes established for the construction of electricity networks in land not owned by the operator. The Energy Law provides that the 
construction of electricity transmission and distribution networks or other types of electricity installations will be subject to the payment of one-
off compensation of damages related with the establishment of statutory servitudes (which came into effect by 10 July 2004).  

As from 31 July 2018, the methodology for the calculation of compensations for servitudes  came into force. The methodology sets forth the 
conditions for the payment of compensations: the process of payment, conditions of payment and related documentation, the formula component 
for the calculation of compensations for servitudes. The Company calculated a possible amount of compensations based on available 
information on servitudes used.  The amount of compensations was reported at the discounted value using a discount rate of 1.14% (Note 23). 

At the end of 2019, the Company assessed the key assumptions used to estimate the provision, i.e. the expected timing of compensation, the 
number of claimants, the period over which full payment will be made, and the discount rate, and reassessed the provision. Change related to 
reassessment of provisions was reflected in intangible assets movement table above. 
 
On 6 June 2019 the Lithuanian Republic Law on Special Conditions on Land Use introducing obligation for the Company to register special 
protection conditions (protection zones) and pay compensations. Accordingly, the Council has included the cost of the registration of protection 
zones in the revenue cap for electricity and gas distribution effective for the year 2020. For these reasons, the Company accounted for a 
provision for special conditions on land use (protection zones) in the category of rights to servitudes and security zones. 
 
No intangible asset was recognized for compensation of security zones to land owners until the methodology for calculation of compensation 
will be approved by relevant authority. 
 
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the cost of acquisition of fully amortised intangible asset still in use by the Company was as follows: 
 

  Patents and licences  Computer software  Other intangible assets  In total  

As at 31 December 2018  
1,143 1,668 186 2,997 

As at 31 December 2019  
213 4,867 171 5,251 

 
As at 31 December 2019, intangible asset was divided in the electricity and gas segment as follows: 

  Patents and licences  Computer software  
Rights to servitudes and 

security zones  Other intangible assets  In total  

Electricity business 
segment 

                                           
2,384  

                                                 
4  

                                         
38,303  

                                           
2,876  

           
43,567  

Gas business segment 
                                              

567  
                                                  

-  
                                                  

-  
                                              

684  
             

1,251  
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7 Right-of-use assets 
 
�0�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�L�J�K�W-of-use assets was as follows: 
 

  Land   Buildings   Vehicles   Other right of 
use assets  Total  

          
Period ended on 31 December 2019           

Balance as at the beginning of the period  -  -  -  - - 
Additions:          
  Right of use assets as at 1 January 2019 (first time 
adoption of IFRS 16) (Note 2.2)  1,309  11,943  2,376  236 15,864 

  Signed lease contracts from 1 January 2019 to 31 
December 2019 

 -  6,285  9,340  72 15,697 

Write-offs and disposals  -  (6,418)  -  (16) (6,434) 
Depreciation  (32)  (2,189)  (2,389)  (87) (4,697) 

Balance as at 31 December 2019   1,277  9,621  9,327  205 20,430 
          

As at 31 December 2019           
 Acquisition cost   1,309  11,443  11,716  292 24,760 
Accumulated depreciation  (32)  (1,822)  (2,389)  (87) (4,330) 

Balance as at 31 December 2019   1,277  9,621  9,327  205 20,430 
 
Lease expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
 
The Company has lease contracts for various items of state-owned land, infrastructure and other asset. Leases of motor vehicles have lease 
terms between 3 and 5 years, office, warehousing premises �± between 3 to 10 years. Lease of infrastructure have lease terms between 3 and 
38 years, land �± between 2 to 99 years. The Company also has premises and transport leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. 
 
The Company�¶�V�� �O�H�D�V�H�� �D�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W�V�� �S�U�R�Y�L�G�H�� �I�R�U�� �W�K�H�� �U�L�J�K�W�� �W�R�� �F�K�D�Q�J�H�� �W�K�H�� �V�F�R�S�H�� �R�I�� �V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V�� �Z�L�W�K�L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �P�D�[�L�P�X�P�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�� �D�Q�G�� �S�U�L�F�H�� �R�I�� �V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V��
specified in the contract. The Company is not obligated to purchase maximum number of vehicles or any part of it. The Company has the right 
�W�R���W�H�U�P�L�Q�D�W�H���W�K�H���F�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W���Z�L�W�K���D�W���O�H�D�V�W�������G�D�\�V�¶���S�U�L�R�U���Q�R�W�L�F�H���W�R���W�K�H���O�H�V�V�R�U���Z�L�W�K�R�X�W���L�Q�F�X�U�U�L�Q�J���D�Q�\���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���R�E�O�L�J�D�Wions, and in the case of 
lease of office premises and infrastructure �± �Z�L�W�K���D�W���O�H�D�V�W���������P�R�Q�W�K�V�¶���S�U�L�R�U���Q�R�W�L�F�H���Z�L�W�K�R�X�W���L�Q�F�X�U�U�L�Qg additional financial obligations. A lease of land 
can be terminated prematurely without additional financial obligations. 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��short-term lease expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: 

    
  Company  

2019   2018 
    
Current lease expenses (other expenses) 228  263 
Lease expenses, total  228  263 
    

 
 

8 Investments associates 

Investments in associates 

Movements of investments in associates in 2019 and 2018 were as follows: 

  
  

             2019 
 

            2018 
   

Carrying amount at 1 January   2,459  2,382 

Dividends received  (123)  (102) 

Share of profit/(loss) on investments in associates  292  179 

Carrying amount at 31 December   2,628  2,459 

 
The summarised financial information for the associates for the year 2019 (unaudited data) and the year 2018 (audited data) are presented 
below. 
 

Condensed    
�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�V���S�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���F�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%��

(previously named Technologiju ir 
�,�Q�R�Y�D�F�L�M�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�� 

  Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras UAB  

statement of financial position    At 31 December 
2019 

At 31 December  
 2018 

  At 31 December  
2019 

At 31 December  
2018 

Non-current assets  9,472 7,951   2,254 134 

Total non -current assets   9,472 7,951   2,254 134 

Cash and cash equivalents  421 1,156  209 1,837 

Other current assets  4,765 4,138  4,123 1,760 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

Total current assets   5,186 5,294  4,332 3,597 

Other non-current liabilities  (1,033) (157)   (1,380) - 

Total non -current liabilities   (1,033) (157)   (1,380) - 

Borrowings  (3,315) (3,455)  - - 

Other current liabilities  (2,228) (2,522)  (4,027) (2,763) 

Total current liabilities   (5,543) (5,977)  (4,027) (2,763) 

Net assets   8,082 7,111   1,179 967 

 
 

9 Other non-current financial assets 
Other non-current financial assets consist of the non-current portion of mortgage loans granted to private individuals for a period of 25 years 
and assets measured at amortised cost through profit or loss. Other financial assets consist of an investment in �.�ËB �³�(�Q�H�U�J�\���(�I�I�L�F�L�H�Q�F�\���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�Q�J��
�3�O�D�W�I�R�U�P�´ (Note 35). 
 

 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Non-current portion of mortgage loans granted (1) 154 210 

Other non-current financial assets (2) 261 - 

Total  415 210 

 
1) The mortgage loans are repayable in instalments by 2027. These loans are secured over residential property. In 2019, the current portion of 
these loans amounted to EUR 56 thousand (2018: EUR 68 thousand) and was accounted for under trade and other receivables (Note 11). 
These loans were issued at a fixed interest rate ranging from 0.1% to 1%. 
 
Fair value of mortgage loans does not differ materially from the carrying value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 (Level 3 fair value estimate). 
The fair value of mortgage loans was estimated based on discounted cash flows at a rate of 1.80% (31 December 2018: 1.70%). The discount 
rate corresponds to the interest rate on loans granted to non-financial entities and households as published by the Bank of Lithuania. The fair 
value of mortgage loans is within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The weighted average effective interest rate used by the Company for the 
discounting of mortgage loans was 8.07% as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 7.97%).  
 
The fair value of other non-current amounts receivable does not significantly differ from the carrying amount.  
 
2) �7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���V�L�J�Q�H�G���W�K�H���H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�P�H�Q�W���D�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���O�L�P�L�W�H�G���S�D�U�W�Q�H�U�V�K�L�S���³�3�O�D�W�I�R�U�P���I�R�U���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�Q�J���(�Q�H�U�J�\�� �(�I�I�L�F�L�H�Q�F�\�´�� ���K�H�U�H�L�Q�Dfter �± the 
Partnership) with Public Investment Development Agency (hereinafter �± VIPA) on 3 July 2018.The Partnership shall allocate funds for 
implementation of various projects and measures contributing to reduction of climate change and final energy consumption and increase of 
generating consumers. The Company participates in the Partnership as a limited partner, i.e., is liable for a contribution of 10 million EUR to be 
paid, if necessary, for a period of 10 years. VIPA, as a general partner of unlimited liability, is in charge of all the activities of the Partnership: 
search for funded projects, assessment of applications, administration, etc. It is also foreseen that the Partnership is open to contributions of 
other partners that strive for changes in increasing energy consumption efficiency. 
 
�%�\�� �W�K�H�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�¶�V�� �M�X�G�J�P�Hnt the Company does not have control over the Partnership because, under the terms of the Partnership 
Participants Agreement, the Company does not hold the majority of the votes in the Partnership participants meeting �± a body that takes major 
decisions of �W�K�H���3�D�U�W�Q�H�U�V�K�L�S�¶�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V�����7�K�H���R�Q�O�\���V�X�E�M�H�F�W���W�K�D�W���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�V���W�K�H���X�Q�D�Q�L�P�R�X�V���D�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���S�D�U�W�L�F�L�S�D�Q�W�V���L�V���W�K�H���P�R�G�L�I�L�F�D�W�L�R�Q��of the 
Partnership participants agreement. 
 
The main liability of the Partnership �± to declare energy savings of at least 40 GWh by the end of 2020, using funded energy efficiency measures. 
The Company shall have the right to cease the membership in the Partnership on its own initiative, if the Partnership fails to declare required 
energy savings by the end of 2020. The investment policy of the Partnership includes certain qualitative criteria for investment effectiveness. 
 
To ensure the financing of the Partnership activities in October 2019 VIPA signed an agreement with European Investment Bank (EIB) to provide 
a loan of EUR 12.5 million to the Partnership. The loan shall be for a minimum of 4 and a maximum of 10 years. Under the terms of the 
Partnership Participants Agreement, the Company is liable, within the limits of its Contributions, to this Loan Agreement. As of 31 December 
2019 the loan limit was not utilised. As of 31 December 2019 the Company has contributed EUR 261 thousand to the Partnership. Part of the 
funds has been used to finance energy efficiency projects and the other part to cover operating costs of the Partnership. 
 

10 Inventories  
 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Raw materials and spare parts 1,562 1,863 

Natural gas 36 207 

Fuel 126 62 

Other 198 55 

Less: write-down allowance for inventories (30) (195) 

Total  1,892 1,992 

 
�7�K�H���F�R�V�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�Y�H�Q�W�R�U�L�H�V���V�W�D�W�H�G���D�W���Q�H�W���U�H�D�O�L�V�D�E�O�H���Y�D�O�X�H���D�V���D�W���������'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U�������������D�P�R�X�Q�W�H�G���W�R���(�8�5��34 thousand (2018: EUR 205 
thousand). Inventories are recognized as an expense using the FIFO method, except natural gas, which is estimated using the weighted average 
costing method. In 2019, EUR 2,589 thousand of natural gas was used for technical purposes (in 2018 EUR 3,721 thousand), EUR 32 thousand 
of gas was written off due to third party damage. 
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Movements in the allowance for inventories in 2019 and 2018 were as follows:   
 

 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Inventory write -down at the beginning of the period  195 172 
Increase in inventory write-down - 87 
Write-off/(reversal) of inventory write-down (165) (64) 

Inventory write -down at the end of the period  30 195 
 
 
 
 
 

  
The allowance for inventories was reversed due to the gain received from the sale of inventories and write-off of inventories that were recognized 
as unusable.  
 
Change in the account of inventory write-down to net realisable value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
�L�Q�F�R�P�H���Z�L�W�K�L�Q���
�2�W�K�H�U���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H�V�¶�����,�P�S�D�L�U�P�H�Q�W���R�I���L�Q�Y�H�Q�W�R�U�L�H�V���L�V���F�D�O�F�X�O�D�W�H�G���R�Q�O�\���I�R�U���D�J�H�L�Q�J�����R�E�V�R�O�H�W�H���D�Q�G���X�Q�X�V�D�E�O�H���L�Q�Y�H�Q�W�R�U�\�� 

11 Trade and other receivables 
 

 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  
Trade receivables for electricity 31,132 35,909 

Trade receivables for distribution of natural gas 1,173 1,186 

Other trade receivables 819 881 
Trade and other receivables from related parties (Note 34) 34,746 67,580 
Current portion of mortgage loans 56 68 
VAT receivable - 11,554 
Other receivables 525 1,199 
Less: expected credit losses for doubtful receivables (2,707) (2,950) 
Total  65,744 115,427 

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts. 
 
Impairment of amounts receivable (lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) 
 
For the purpose of determining the lifetime expected credit losses of amounts receivable, the Company uses the loss coefficient matrix. The 
loss coefficient matrix is based on historical data on the settlement for trade receivables during the period of validity of trade receivables and is 
adjusted with respect to future forecasts. The loss coefficients are updated during the preparation of the annual financial statements with respect 
to the impact of operational prospects where these prospects are indicative of any changes of economic conditions during upcoming years. A 
different loss coefficient matrix is used with regard to household consumers and non-household consumers. 
 
The following loss coefficient matrix was applied by the Company as at 31 December 2019: 

 Days past due  
TOTAL 

  
Not 
past 
due 

Up to 
30 

days  
31�±60 61-90 91-120 

121-
150 

151-
180 

181-
210 

211-
240 

241-
270 

271-
300 

301-
330 

331-
360 

Past due 
> 360 
days  

  

Loss ratio 
0.12% 3.82% 9.94% 14.30% 16.13% 17.18% 17.77% 18.06% 18.10% 18.10% 18.10% 18.12% 18.12% 55.53%  

Private 
individuals 119 33 48 25 11 8 3 3 -1 2 2 4 2 62  

ECL 
0 1 5 4 2 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 34 50 

Loss ratio 
0.13% 2.99% 7.81% 11.38% 13.99% 15.76% 16.67% 17.20% 17.42% 17.86% 18.17% 18.57% 18.73% 55.59%  

Legal 
persons 34,325 845 318 203 123 150 49 50 84 82 35 119 42 1,166  

ECL 
45 25 25 23 17 24 8 9 15 15 6 22 8 649 891 

Loss ratio 
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%  

Municipal or 
state-funded 
enterprises, 
institutions 
and 
organizations 

1,604 11 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 

 

ECL 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Loss ratio 
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  

Clients who 
went/will go 
bankrupt or 
liquidated 

81 33 34 32 26 27 20 21 25 23 36 22 34 1,352 

 

ECL 81 33 34 32 26 27 20 21 25 23 36 22 34 1,352 1,766 

Total:  
 126  59 64   59  45  52  29  31  40  38  42  45  42  2,035 2,707 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

In this regard, the following loss coefficient matrix was applied by the Company as at 31 December 2018: 
  Days past due  

TOTAL 
  Not past due  1-30 

31-
60 

61-
90 

91-
120 

121-
150 

151-
180 

181-
210 

211-
240 

241-
270 

271-
300 

301-
330 

331-
360 

Past due 
for more 
than 360 
days  

         

Loss 
coefficient* 0.08% 2.33% 

6.28
% 

9.09
% 

10.71
% 

11.74
% 

12.29
% 

12.59
% 

12.69
% 

12.84
% 

12.95
% 

13.10
% 

13.15
% 58.14%  

Trade 
receivables 
and other 
receivables of 
the Company 

71,965 1,197 541 297 242 151 91 89 88 88 59 69 84 3,154 78,115 

ECL 101 30 30 26 31 28 18 20 21 22 20 19 32 2,552 2,950 

* The average loss coefficient applied to different groups of consumers is presented in table above. 
 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled over the term of 25 to 35 days.  
 
The Company does not account for ECL of amounts receivable as regards amounts receivable from public institutions, amounts rewarded by 
the court, loans granted, amounts receivable from employees, amounts receivable from cash collection institutions due to expected immaterial 
impact on ECL balance.  
 
�0�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W�V���L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�P�S�D�L�U�P�H�Q�W���D�O�O�R�Z�D�Q�F�H���D�F�F�R�X�Q�W���I�R�U���W�U�D�G�H���D�Q�G���R�W�K�H�U���U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�V���L�Q�������������D�Q�G������������were as follows: 
 

      

Balance as at 1 January 2018   6,249 

ECL charge (reversed) for the year   (79) 

ECL transferred with public supply activities (Note 32)  (2,630) 

Written-off accounts receivable   (590) 

Balance as at 31 December 2018    2,950 

Balance as at 1 January 2019   2,950 

ECL charge (reversed) for the year  545 

Written-off accounts receivable 
 

(788) 

Balance as at 31 December 2019  
 

2,707 

 

12 Prepayments, deferred expenses and assets under contracts with customers 

  At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Prepayments for services 485 375 

Assets under contracts with customers 432 569 

Deferred expenses - 1,282 

Total  917 2,226 

 
The balance of deferred expenses has decreased significantly due to changes in premises lease agreement, according to which the Company 
recovered previously incurred EUR 1,282 thousand expenditure for repairs of leased premises. 

13 Cash and cash equivalents, and term deposits 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Cash at bank 4,775 2,266 

Total  4,775 2,266 

Presented below is the analysis of the credit quality of balances of cash and cash equivalents based on ratings established by the rating agency 
�0�R�R�G�\�¶�V�� 

  At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Aa1 - - 
Aa2 4,573 1,391 
Aa3 1 1 
A3 - 874 
BAA1 201 - 
Total 4,775 2,266 
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14 Authorised share capital 

�$�V���D�W���������'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U�������������D�Q�G���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�X�W�K�R�U�L�V�H�G���V�K�D�U�H���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���Z�D�V���G�L�Y�L�G�H�G���L�Q�W�R���������������������������R�U�G�L�Q�D�U�\���U�H�J�L�V�W�H�U�H�G���V�K�D�Ues with a 
nominal value of EUR 0.29 each. All issued shares are fully paid. 

15 Reserves 
Legal reserve 
 
A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than 5 per cent of net profit are required 
until the reserve reaches 10 per cent of the share capital. As at 31 December 2019, the legal reserve amounted to EUR 25,944 (31 December 
2018: EUR 25,944 �W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G�������7�K�H���O�H�J�D�O���U�H�V�H�U�Y�H���F�D�Q���E�H���X�V�H�G���R�Q�O�\���W�R���F�R�Y�H�U���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���O�R�V�V�����:�K�H�Q���W�K�H���O�H�J�D�O���U�H�V�H�U�Y�H���L�V���X�V�H�G���W�R���F�R�Y�H�U���W�K�H��
loss, the legal reserve is re-established from distributable profit in accordance with the procedure set in Article 59(5) of the Law on Companies. 
 
Revaluation reserve 
 
Revaluation reserve arises from revaluation of property, plant and equipment due to the value increase. This reserve cannot be used to cover 
losses. 
 

  
Revaluation 

reserve  
Deferred 

income tax  
Net of deferred 

income tax  

Balance at 1 January 2018  52,564 (7,884) 44,680 
Gains (losses) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the year (Note 5) 134,713 (20,207) 114,506 

Transfer from revaluation reserve to retained earnings during the year (depreciation, write-
offs, disposals) (5,120) 768 (4,352) 

Balance at 31 December 2018  182,157 (27,323) 154,834 

        
Balance at 1 January 2019  182,157 (27,323) 154,834 

Transfer from revaluation reserve to retained earnings during the year (depreciation, write-
offs, disposals) (16,252) 2,438 (13,814) 

Balance at 31 December 2019  165,905 (24,885) 141,020 

 

16 Dividends 
Approved dividends per share 
 

      2019 2018 

Declared dividends (in EUR thousand)     - 35,204 

Weighted average number of shares (thousands)*     894,630 894,630 

Declared dividends per share (in EUR per share)      0.000 0.039 
 
*The weighted average number of ordinary shares during the period is the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the period, 
adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary shares repurchased or issued during the period, multiplied by the time weighted ratio. The 
time weighted ratio is the number of days in the reporting period that the shares were outstanding in ratio to the total number of days in that 
reporting period. 
 
Dividends declared by the Company during 2018 were as follows: 
 

Date on which dividends were 
declared  

Period for which dividends are 
allocated  

Dividends per share, in EUR  Amount of dividends declared  

At 30 September 2018 first half of 2018 0.01400 12,525 

At 30 March 2018 second half of 2017 0.02535 22,679 

      35,204 
 

 

17 Borrowings 
 At 31 December 2019   At 31 December 2018  

Non-current borrowings     
Borrowings from related parties (Note 34) 465,633  448,534 

 465,633  448,534 

Current borrowings     

Borrowings from related parties (Note 34) 176,268  182,930 

 176,268  182,930 

Total borrowings  641,901  631,464 
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�2�Q�������� �-�X�O�\�� �������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�D�U�H�Q�W���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�� �L�V�V�X�H�G���J�U�H�H�Q���E�R�Q�G�V���Z�R�U�W�K���(�8�5���������� �P�L�O�O�L�R�Q���D�W���W�K�H���/�X�[�H�P�E�R�X�U�J��Stock 
Exchange. On 13 October 2017, the Company �V�L�J�Q�H�G���D���3�U�R�S�R�U�W�L�R�Q�D�O���7�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U���$�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W���I�R�U���*�U�H�H�Q���%�R�Q�G�V�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���³�$�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W�´�����Z�L�W�K���8�$�%��
�Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���³�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�´�����I�R�U���W�K�H���W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U���R�I���D���(�8�5�����������P�L�O�O�L�R�Q���S�R�U�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���J�U�H�H�Q���E�R�Q�G�V���L�V�V�X�H���W�R���W�K�H���&ompany. Under this 
�$�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W�����8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���J�U�D�Q�W�H�G���D���O�R�D�Q���R�I���(�8�5�����������P�L�O�O�L�R�Q���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� Liabilities assumed under the Agreement are to be fulfilled 
by 14 July 2027. The fixed interest rate under the Agreement coincides with the effective interest rate on the green bonds issue and amounts 
to 2.23%. The Company itself is not involved in the distribution of the issue of these bonds. 
 
�2�Q���������)�H�E�U�X�D�U�\���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���D�Q�G���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���V�L�J�Q�H�G���D�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O���D�U�U�D�Q�J�H�P�H�Q�W���W�R���W�K�H���3�U�R�S�R�U�W�L�R�Q�D�O���7�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U���$�J�U�H�H�Pent for Green 
Bonds of 13 October 2017, under which the Company assumed additional obligations for green bonds amounting to EUR 66,288 thousand that 
�Z�L�O�O���E�H���X�V�H�G���W�R���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���O�R�Q�J-term investment plan. 
 
�2�Q�������-�X�O�\���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�D�U�H�Q�W���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���G�L�V�W�U�Lbuted the second issue of green bonds with EUR 300 million at the 
�/�X�[�H�P�E�R�X�U�J���6�W�R�F�N���(�[�F�K�D�Q�J�H�����2�Q���������$�X�J�X�V�W���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���V�L�J�Q�H�G���D���3�U�R�S�R�U�W�L�R�Q�D�O���7�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U���$�J�U�H�H�P�H�Q�W���I�R�U���*�U�H�H�Q���%�R�Q�G�V���Z�L�W�K���8�$�%���ÄIgnitis 
�J�U�X�S�¡�³���I�R�U���W�K�H���W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U���R�I���X�S���W�R���D���(�8�5�����������P�L�O�O�L�R�Q�����S�R�U�W�Lon of the green bonds issue to the Company. As at 31 December 2019 the Company 
fully utilized the amount of 250 million EUR. 
 
 
Non-current borrowings by maturity: 

        
At 31 December  

2019 
At 31 December 

2018 
Between 1 and 2 years 

   
7,901 32,901 

Between 2 and 5 years    23,704 23,704 
After 5 years 

   
434,028 391,929     
465,633 448,534 

The average interest rates at the date of preparation of the financial statements were as follows: 

        2019 2018 
Borrowings from related parties    1.2 1.2 

 
The Company has the following undrawn committed credit facilities from related parties expiring within or after one year: 

        2019 2018 

Credit facilities     51,644 68,457 
 
 
Net debt balances as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018: 
 

                     2019            2018 
 

  
Cash and cash equivalents 4,775 2,266 

Borrowings payable within one financial year (including overdraft) (176,268) (182,930) 

Borrowings payable after one year (465,633) (448,534) 

Net debt  (637,126) (629,198) 

 
Reconciliation of net debt balances and cash flows from financing activities of 2019 and 2018: 
 

  
Cash/overdraft    Borrowings  

 
Cash pool  Total  

Net debt as at 31 December 2017  (4,206)  (335,333) (26,700) (366,239) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,472  - 

- 

6,472 
Loan received -  (266,287) - (266,287) 
Loan repaid -  95,052 - 95,052 
Cash pool received (net) -  - (94,843) (94,843) 

Changes in accrued interest -  (3,353) - (3,353) 

Net debt as at 31 December 2018  2,266  (509,921) (121,543) (629,198) 

(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,509  - - 2,509 
Loan received -  (50,000) - (50,000) 
Loan repaid -  57,401 - 57,401 
Cash pool received (net) -  - (16,813) (16,813) 
Changes in accrued interest -  (1,025) - (1,025) 

Net debt as at 31 December 2019  4,775  (503,545) (138,356) (637,126) 
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18 Lease liabilities 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���O�H�D�V�H���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���D�Q�G���W�K�H�L�U��dynamics: 
 

  
 

   2019 

    
Opening book value    - 
Recognition of lease liabilities under IFRS 16 (first time adoption as at 1 January 2019)   15,864 
Lease contracts concluded   9,263 
Interest charges   202 
Lease payments (principal portion and interest)   (4,745) 
    
Carrying amount at 31 December    20,584 

Disclosed as:     
Non-current lease liabilities   15,555 
Current lease liabilities   5,029 

 
The total amount of payments under lease and finance leases in 2019 amounted to EUR 4,745 (in 2018: EUR 4,953). Payments related to 
leases of 12 months or less are classified as cash flows from operating activities. 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�X�W�X�U�H���S�D�\�P�H�Q�W�V���X�Q�G�H�U���Q�R�Q-cancellable leases were as follows: 
 
  2019-12-31  2018-12-31 
     
Minimum payments      
Within one year  5,209  7,646 
Two to five years  14,134  23,105 
After five years  3,445  1,277 
In total   22,788  32,028 

     
Future finance costs      
Within one year  (180)  - 
Two to five years  (386)  - 
After five years  (1,638)  - 
In total   (2,204)  - 
     
Carrying amount   20,584  32,028 

 
 

19 Income tax  
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���L�Q�F�R�P�H���W�D�[���H�[�S�H�Q�V�H�����L�Q�F�R�P�H�����I�R�U�������������D�Q�G�������������F�R�P�S�U�L�V�H�G���D�V���I�R�O�O�R�Z�V�� 
 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
Company had sufficient amount of unused investment relief to cover all taxable profit (as since 2018 100% of taxable profits can be covered 
with investment relief). As at 31 December 2019 the Company had EUR 102,47 million unused investment relief, of which EUR 46,47 million 
can be utilized until 31 December 2021 and EUR 56 million which can be utilized until 31 December 2022. 
  
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: 
 

Deferred income tax assets    

Revenue 
from 

connection 
of new 

customers  

Impairment of 
inventories 
and amount 
receivable s 

Accrued 
expenses  

Overdeclared 
electricity  

 IFRS 16 
Unused 

investment 
relief  

                                                  
Total  

At 1 January 2018   13,768 931 1,015 103 -  991 16,808 

Income tax (expenses)/income 
recognised in profit or loss (restated*) 1,202 (445) (105) 850 -  9,223 10,725 

At 31 December 2018 (restated*)   14,970 486 910 953 -  10,214 27,533 
Income tax (expenses)/income 
recognised in profit or loss (805) (64) (22) 241 23  5,057 4,430 

At 31 December 2019   14,165 422 888 1,194 23  15,271 31,963 
 

      2019 2018 (restated*)  

Effect of tax losses purchased  - (97) 

Adjustments of income tax in respect of prior years  - 75 

Deferred income tax expenses (income)  (22) (12,137) 

Total   
 

(22) (12,159) 
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 Deferred income tax liabilities    

Diff erences in tax and 
accounting values of 
property, plant and 

equipment  

Investment 
relief  

Write -off of 
grants  

Total  

At 1 January 2018    (14,103) (1,917) (1,158) (17,178) 

Income tax (expenses)/income recognised in profit or loss 2,529 355 (1,473) 
1,411 

Recognised in other comprehensive income (20,207) - - (20.207) 

At 31 December 2018  (restated*)   (31,781) (1,562) (2,631) (35,974) 

Income tax (expenses)/income recognised in profit or loss (4,724) 318 - (4.406) 

At 31 December 201 9  (36,505) (1,244) (2,631) (40,380) 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax 
assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. 
 
Deferred income tax recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and at 1 January 2018 comprised the 
following: 
 

    At 31 December  
2019 

At 31 December  
2018 (restated*)  

At 1 January   
2018 

Deferred tax asset  - - - 

Deferred tax liabilitie  8,417 8,441 370 

Deferred income tax liability, n et  8,417 8,441 370 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
 
The amount of income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income attributable to the operating 
result for the year can be reconciled against the amount of income tax expenses that would result from applying the statutory income tax rate 
of 15 per cent to profit before tax:  
 

        2019 2018 (restated*)  

Profit before income tax    34,291 (6,894) 

Income tax calculated at a rate of 15% (2018: 15%)  5,144 (1,034) 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  354 350 

Income not subject to tax  

 
 (463)  (285) 

Income tax relief for investments  

 
(5,057)  (11,168) 

Effect of tax losses purchased   - (97) 

Adjustments of income tax in respect of prior years   - 75 

Total     (22) (12,159) 
 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 

20 Liabilities under connection contracts with customers 
 

  At 31 December 2019  
At 31 December 2018 

(restated*)  
At 1 January 2018 

(restated*)  

Liabilities under connection contracts with customers 205,084 193,476 186,247 

Liabilities under contracts on public service obligation (PSO) services 248 260 273 

Total non -current liability under contracts with customers  205,332 193,736 186,520 
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Liabilities under connection contracts with customers: 

    

  At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  
(restated*)  

At 1 January 
2018 

(restated*)  

Non-current portion 205,332 193,736 186,520 

Current portion (Note 25)  9,750 9,110 5,243 

Total liability under connection contracts  215,082 202,846 191,763 

 

  2019 
2018  

(restated*)  

Balance at 1 January  202,846 191,763 

Received during the year 21,668 19,863 

Recognised as income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (9,432) (8,780) 

At the end of the period  215,082 202,846 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 

21 Government grants 
   

Balance at 31 December 2017  19,758 

Received 4,412 
Reversal of grants (2) 
Write-off of grants (Note 5) (10,002) 
Amortisation charge (1,114) 
Balance at 31 December 2018  13,052 

Received 3,178 
Amortisation charge (1,074) 

Balance at 31 December 2019  15,156 

 
Grants consist of funds received from the EU Funds for the purpose of acquisition and construction of structures and electricity networks.  
 
�$�P�R�U�W�L�V�D�W�L�R�Q�� �R�I�� �J�U�D�Q�W�V�� �L�V�� �D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�H�G�� �I�R�U�� �X�Q�G�H�U�� �W�K�H�� �O�L�Q�H�� �L�W�H�P�� �µ�'�H�S�U�H�F�L�D�W�L�R�Q�� �D�Q�G�� �D�P�R�U�W�L�V�D�W�L�R�Q�¶�� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�� �R�I�� �S�U�Rfit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. Depreciation charges of the related property, plant and equipment are reduced by the amount of amortisation of grants.  
 
In 2018, on revaluation of non-current assets, the grants related to non-current assets, for which impairment was established, were written off. 

22 Long-term employee benefits 

  

2019 2018 

Benefits to 
employees of 

retirement 
age 

Variable 
component 

of 
remunerati

on  

Total  

Benefits to 
employees of 

retirement 
age 

Variable 
component 

of 
remunerati

on  

Total   

Opening balance  1,672 38 1,710 1,717 46 1,763  

The change as shown in the item 'Employee 
�E�H�Q�H�I�L�W�V���D�Q�G���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���V�R�F�L�D�O���V�H�F�X�U�L�W�\���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V�¶���L�Q��
the statement of profit (loss) and other 
comprehensive income 

815 (24) 791 (23) (8) (31)  

The change as shown in the item 'Financing 
activities �± �2�W�K�H�U�� �F�R�V�W�V�¶�� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�� �R�I�� �S�U�R�I�L�W��
(loss) and other comprehensive income 

44 - 44 54 - 54  

The change as shown in the item 'Other 
comprehensive income �± Remeasurement of the 
defined benefit plan obligation, net of deferred 
income tax' in other comprehensive income 

30 - 30 (76) - (76)  

Closing balance  2,561 14 2,575 1,672 38 1,710  

The principal assumptions used in determining long-term employee benefit obligation of the Company are shown below: 

 
 2019 

 
2018 

Discount rate  0.61%  0.79% 
Annual employee weighted average rate  8.6%  10.1% 
Annual salary increase  4%  4% 
Average time until retirement (years)  20  20 
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23 Provisions 

   

Balance at 31 December 2017   - 

Provisions for compensations for servitudes (Note 3)  28,564 

Discounting effect  162 

Payments for servitudes  (744) 

Balance at 31 December 2018   27,982 

Discounting effect  324 

Payments for servitudes  (931) 

Re-measurement of provisions for servitudes due to changes in assumptions (Note 3)  (464) 

Provisions for registration of protection zones (Note 3)  8,328 

Balance at 31 December 2019   35,239 

  Non-current provisions  23,018 

  Current provisions  12,221 

 
 

24 Trade and other payables 
 At 31 December 2019  At 31 December 2018  

Trade payables 28,881 32,219 

Trade payables to related parties (Note 34) 31,326 39,305 

Total trade payables  60,207 71,524 

   

Taxes (other than income tax) 1,749 30 

Payroll-related liabilities 2,238 2,471 

Other current liabilities 3,157 3,020 

Total other amounts payable  7,144 5,521 
   

Trade and other payables  67,351 77,045 

 
 
Other payables amounting to EUR 3,987 thousand as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: EUR 2,501 thousand) are non-financial 
instruments. 
 
 
Trade payables 
 
The above financial liabilities have the following conditions: 
 
�� Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within the term of 60 days. 
�� Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average settlement term of 6 months. 

 

25 Accrued expenses and contract liabilities 

  At 31 December  
2019 

At 31 December 2018 
(restated*)  

At 1 January 2018 
(restated*)  

Accrued expenses 10,255 13,307 7,280 
Current portion of contract liabilities under connection 
contracts with customers 9,750 9,110 5,243 

Contract liabilities under other than under connection contracts 26,126 28,730 22,323 

 46,131 51,147 34,846 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
As at 31 December 2019, 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 advance amounts received comprised advances received for the connection 
of new customers (EUR 15,126 thousand �± 2019, EUR 18,001 thousand �± 2018 and EUR 14,137 �± 1 January 2018), advances received for 
electricity and overdeclared electricity (Note 3) (EUR 5,789 thousand �± 2019, EUR 4,248 thousand �± 2018 and EUR 3,657 thousand �± 1 January 
2018) and others (EUR 5.211 thousand �± 2019,  EUR 6,479 thousand �± 2018 and EUR 4,529 thousand 1 January 2018)  amounting to, 
respectively, EUR 26,126 thousand and EUR 28,730 thousand as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and EUR 22,323 thousand as at 1 January 
2018.  
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Advances from new customer for connection to the electricity network amount to EUR 10,600 thousand, to gas network �± EUR 4,526 thousand 
by the end of the 2019, EUR 10,432 thousand to the electricity network and EUR 7,571 thousand to the gas network by the end of the 2018. As 
at 1 January 2018 advance amounts received from new customer for connection to the electricity network  - EUR 8,947 thousand and to the 
gas network EUR 5,190 thousand.  
 

26 Revenue from contracts with customers 
In 2019, revenue from contracts with customers comprised the following: 

2019 
Electricity supply 
and distribution 

segment  

Gas 
distribution 

segment  Total  

Revenue from electricity transmission 335,997 - 335,997 

Revenue from gas distribution - 34,886 34,886 

Revenue from guaranteed electricity supply 27,955 - 27,955 

Revenue from connection of new customers 8,306 1.126 9,432 

Income from equipment transfer 4,874  4,874 

Total  377,132 36,012 413,144 

Moment of revenue recognition:     

At point in time upon rendering the service 4,874 - 4,874 

Recognised over time 372,258 36,012 408,270 

Total  377,132 36,012 413,144 

 
 
In 2018 (restated*), revenue from contracts with customers comprised the following: 

2018 
Electricity supply and 
distribution segment  

Gas distribution 
segment  Total  

Revenue from electricity transmission 305,627 - 305,627 

Revenue from public electricity supply services 73,812 - 73,812 

Revenue from gas distribution - 41,353 41,353 

Revenue from guaranteed electricity supply 28,956 - 28,956 

Revenue from connection of new customers 7,789 991 8,780 

Income from equipment transfer 4,520 - 4,520 

Total  420,704 42,344 463,048 

Moment of revenue recognition:     

At point in time upon rendering the service 4,520 - 4,520 

Recognised over time 416,184 42,344 458,528 

Total  420,704 42,344 463,048 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the service and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery. 
 
 
 
 
Transaction price allocation to remaining performance obligations 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

 
�$�O�O���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���R�E�O�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q�V���H�Q�W�L�W�O�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���W�R���U�H�F�H�L�Y�H���I�U�R�P���W�K�H���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U���V�X�F�K���D�P�R�X�Q�W���W�K�D�W���F�R�U�U�H�V�S�R�Q�G�V���G�L�U�H�Ftly with the 
�Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���F�R�P�S�O�H�W�H�G���W�R���G�D�W�H�����W�K�H�U�H�I�R�U�H�����W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���D�S�S�O�L�H�V���W�K�H���S�U�D�F�W�L�F�D�O���H�[�S�H�G�L�H�Q�W���L�Q���S�D�U�D�J�Uaph 121 of IFRS 15 
and elects not to disclose the allocation of transaction price to the remaining unsatisfied performance obligations. 
 
 

27 Employee benefits and related social security contributions 

    2019 2018 

Wages and salaries   44,264 31,952 

Termination benefits   569 (430) 

Social security contributions   199 9,854 

Change in vacation accrual   152 189 

Benefits to employees of retirement age (Note 22)  815 (23) 

Total    45,999 41,542 

 

28 Impairment and write-off expenses 

  2019 2018 

Write-offs of non-current assets and construction in progress (Note 5) 4,305 4,779 

Impairment of amounts receivable (reversal) (Note 11)  545 (79) 

Impairment (reversal of impairment ) of inventories (Note 10) (165) 23 

Impairment (reversal of impairment ) of non-current assets (Note 5) - (29,857) 

Impairment (reversal of impairment) of construction in progress (Note 5, Note 6) 4,020 1,066 

Other write-offs 7 - 

Total   8,712 (24,068) 

 

29 Other expenses 

    2019 2018 

Maintenance company expenses   4,304 3,430 

Taxes (other than income tax)   3,007 2,623 

Customer service expenses   2,806 6,554 

Other expenses  1,841 183 

Consultation services   1,515 1,553 

Payments under the collective agreement and other additional payments   591 685 
Personnel development, business trips   428 620 

Indemnification for damages   418 151 

Public relations and marketing   400 426 

Insurance, medical care services   184 258 

Total    15,494 16,483 

 
Customer service expenses decreased due to the transfer of the public supply activities (Note 32). 
 
All the services the audit company granted to the Company during the 2018�±2019 period are disclosed below:  

 
   2019 2018 

Expenses related to audit of financial statements (including translation services) under agreements  50 46 

Expenses related to assurance and other related services   - 5 

Expenses related to other services  - 2 

Total   50 53 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

30 Financing activities 

31 Basic and diluted earnings per share 
Basic 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares in issue during the year. 
 

    2019 2018 (restated*)  

Net profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company (in EUR thousands)   34,313 5,265 

Weighted average number of shares (thousands)   894,630 894,630 

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (in EUR per share)      0.038    0.006  

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 
Diluted 
 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued.  
 

32 Transfer of the public supply activities 
�'�X�U�L�Q�J���W�K�H���L�P�S�O�H�P�H�Q�W�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���S�U�R�M�H�F�W���L�Q�L�W�L�D�W�H�G���E�\���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���± Group), the purpose of which is to optimise the activities 
of the Group and concentrate the function of energy supply to a single company, the activity of public electricity supply was unbundled from the 
�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �D�Q�G���W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U�U�H�G���W�R���D�Q�R�W�K�H�U���*�U�R�X�S���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���� �L���H���� �8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³�����I�R�U�P�H�U���± Lietuvos energijos tiekimas UAB), which was a supplier of 
natural gas to household customers and businesses. 
 
Under the Agreement on the Purchase and Sale of a Part of the Business of 21 September 2018, the Company sold the public electricity supply 
�S�D�U�W�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �E�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V�� �Z�L�W�K�� �D�O�O�� �D�V�V�H�W�V���� �U�L�J�K�W�V�� �D�Q�G�� �R�E�O�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q�V�� �D�W�W�U�L�E�X�W�H�G�� �W�K�H�U�H�W�R�� �W�R�� �8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³���� �7�K�H�� �W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U�� �R�I�� �W�Ke public supply activity was 
�H�[�H�F�X�W�H�G���D�W���������6�H�S�W�H�P�E�H�U���������������7�K�H���S�U�L�F�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�D�L�G���S�D�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���E�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V���L�V���(�8�5���������������������������8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³���K�D�V���W�R���Say the indicated 
price to the Company no later than within 6 months from the moment of transfer. The public electricity supply part of the business on sale was 
evaluated by the independent valuator �± the sale price of the part of the business corresponds to the market value of the part of the business 
�D�V���G�H�W�H�U�P�L�Q�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���Y�D�O�X�D�W�R�U�����7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�V�V�H�W�V���W�U�Dnsferred comprise amounts receivable, including impairment allowance for amounts 
�U�H�F�H�L�Y�D�E�O�H�����D�Q�G���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���W�U�D�Q�V�I�H�U�U�H�G���F�R�P�S�U�L�V�H���D�G�Y�D�Q�F�H���D�P�R�X�Q�W�V���U�H�F�H�L�Y�H�G���D�V���Z�H�O�O���D�V���W�U�D�G�H���D�Q�G���R�W�K�H�U���S�D�\�D�E�O�H�V����The Company 
�D�Q�G���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�H�G���W�K�H���R�I�I�V�H�W�W�L�Q�J���R�I���L�Q�W�H�U�F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���G�H�E�W�V�����F�R�Q�V�H�T�X�H�Q�W�O�\�����8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³���Z�D�V���R�E�O�L�J�D�W�H�G���W�R���S�D�\���D�Q���D�P�R�X�Q�W���R�I���(�8�5��������������
thousand to the Company. As at 31 December 2019 all consideration due by �8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³���Z�D�V���I�X�O�O�\���V�H�W�W�O�H�G�� 
 
Transfer of the public supply activities: 

Transfe r of the public supply activities     At 30 September 
2018 

ASSETS   
Current assets    
Trade and other receivables  11,712 
Accrued revenue  5,352* 
Total assets   17,064 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity attributable to owners of the Company    
Retained earnings  10,131* 
LIABILITIES    
Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables  1,499 
Advance amounts received, accrued liabilities and deferred revenue  5,434 
Total liabilities   6,933 

  17,064 

 
* Following the transfer of the activity, the Company transferred accrued revenue related to September public supply activities (1/3 accrual) 
which were not included on the signed list of assets transferred and which amounted to EUR 5,352 thousand at the date of the transfer. These 

  2019 2018 

Finance income      

Interest income on loans granted 27 89 

Total  27 89 

     

Finance costs    

Interest expense on loans (9,659) (6,393) 

Interest and discount expense on lease liabilities (202) - 

Other (costs) (404) (234) 

Total  (10,265) (6,627) 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

�U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H�� �Z�H�U�H�� �F�R�O�O�H�F�W�H�G�� �I�U�R�P�� �F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V�� �E�\�� �8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�³�� �L�Q�F�O�X�G�L�Q�J�� �L�W�� �L�Q�� �2�F�W�R�E�H�U�� �E�L�O�O�L�Q�J���� �3�U�R�I�L�W�� �R�Q�� �G�L�V�S�R�V�D�O�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �S�X�E�O�L�F�� �V�X�S�Sly activities was 
reduced by this amount.  
 
�,�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�W�K�H�U���L�Q�F�R�P�H���L�V���S�U�H�V�H�Q�W�H�G���E�H�O�R�Z: 

    2019 2018 

Profit on disposal of the public supply activities 
 - 17,330 

Rental income  736 587 

Income from past due obligations  516 1,371 

Profit from disposal of property, plant and equipment  609 - 

Other income*  3,845 1,079 

Total  

 

5,706 20,367 

 
*As at December 2019 other income consisted mainly of revenue from the construction of underground gas pipelines and solar power plants. 
Other revenue as at 31 December 2018 mainly consisted of profit on transfer of the public supply activities.  
 
Under the provisions of the agreement for the transfer of public supply activities concluded with Ignitis UAB of 21 September 2018, the Company 
is obliged to compensate Ignitis UAB a half of the difference generated until 21 September 2018 between the revenue determined by the National 
�(�Q�H�U�J�\���5�H�J�X�O�D�W�R�U�\���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���µ�1�(�5�&�¶�����D�Q�G���W�K�H���D�F�W�X�D�O�����U�H�J�X�O�D�W�H�G�����U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H�����L�I���1�(�5�&���L�V���Q�R�W���J�R�L�Q�J���W�R���F�R�P�S�H�Q�V�D�W�H���W�K�L�V���G�Lfference to Ignitis 
UAB when setting electricity tariff for the period from 2019 to 2021. Difference occurred between the purchase price of electricity determined by 
NERC and the actual price paid. 
 
At the conclusion of the agreement for the transfer of public supply activities, the difference of EUR 23,927 thousand was identified between the 
revenue determined by the NERC and the actual (regulated) revenue earned. Part of the aforementioned difference of EUR 8,000 thousand 
was repaid to UAB Ignitis when determining the prices for the public supply service for the year 2020. Management expects that the remainder 
of the difference will be repaid when determining the price caps for Ignitis UAB for the year 2021. The exact repayment date and amount will 
become clear in October 2020, when the NERC approves the price cap for the public electricity supply service of Ignitis UAB for the year 2021. 
 
Based on the management estimates, the risk that part of the residual difference will not be compensated to the public supplier is minimal, 
because even if part of the difference will not be compensated to Ignitis UAB through the price of the regulated service set for the year of 2021, 
Ignitis UAB will recover all the amounts received under the agreement for the transfer of public supply activities of 21 September 2018 according 
to the revenue compensation mechanism established during the stages of the electricity market liberalization under Article 22 clause 9 of the 
draft Law on Electricity of the Republic of Lithuania. 
 

33 Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief 
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified 
as the Board that makes strategic decisions. 

According to the management, the Company has two operating segments, i.e. supply and distribution of electric power, and distribution of gas. 
�$�O�O���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�V�V�H�W�V���D�Q�G���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���D�U�H���O�R�F�D�W�H�G���L�Q���W�K�H���5�H�S�X�E�O�L�F���R�I���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�����7�K�H���F�K�L�H�I���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�Q�J���G�H�F�L�V�L�R�Q-maker monitors the results with 
reference to the financial reports that have been prepared using the same accounting policies as those used for the preparation of the financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS, i.e. information on profit or loss, including the reported amounts of income and expenses. The chief 
operating decision-maker does not analyse operating segments on the basis of information about assets and liabilities. Inter-segment 
transactions are not executed. 

�,�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�H�J�P�H�Q�W�V���I�R�U�������������Ls presented below. 

 
Supply and 

distribution of 
electric power  

Distribution of 
gas  Total  

Revenue from contracts with customers 377,131 36,013 413,144 
Other income 2,081 3,625 5,706 
Expenses (257,640) (26,640) (284,280) 
EBITDA*  121,572 12,998 134,570 

    
Depreciation and amortisation (68,635) (12,986) (81,621) 
Impairment expenses and write-offs (4,566) (4,146) (8,712) 
Operating profit  48,371 (4,134) 44,237 

    
Finance income 24 3 27 
Finance (expenses) (8,465) (1,800) (10,265) 
Share( of profit) in associates 263 29 292 

    
Profit before income tax  40,193 (5,902) 34,291 
Income tax 20 2 22 
Net profit  40,213 (5,900) 34,313 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

*EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation/ amortization) is calculated as follows: Operating profit + Impairment and write-off 
expenses + Revaluation of property, plant and equipment + Depreciation and amortization. 

In 2019, the Company�¶�V largest customer in the electricity supply and distribution segment accounted for revenue of EUR 132,999 thousand 
(EUR 77,534 thousand in 2018). The �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V��largest customer in the gas distribution segment accounted for revenue in the amount of EUR 
28,764 thousand (EUR 34,417 thousand in 2018). 

�,�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���V�H�J�P�H�Q�W�V���I�R�U��2018 (restated*) is presented below. 
 

 Electricity supply and 
distribution  Gas distribution  Total  

Revenue under contracts with customers 418,470 44,578 463,048 
Other income 18,914 1,453 20,367 
Expenses (348,070) (24,213) (372,283) 
EBITDA** 89,314 21,818 111,132 
    
Depreciation and amortisation (49,481) (7,872) (57,353) 
Impairment and write-off expenses (83,080) 28,766 (54,314) 
Operating profit  (43,247) 42,712 (535) 

    
Finance income 74 15 89 
Finance (costs) (5,527) (1,100) (6,627) 
Share of (profit) of associates 149 30 179 

    
Profit before income tax  (48,551) 41,657 (6,894) 
Income tax 16,837 (4,678) 12,159 
Net profit for the period  (31,714) 36,979 5,265 

* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
**EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation/ amortization) is calculated as follows: Operating profit + Impairment and write-off 
expenses + Revaluation of property, plant and equipment + Depreciation and amortization. 

 

34 Related-party transactions 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���S�D�U�W�L�H�V���D�U�H���D�V���I�R�O�O�R�Z�V�� 

�x �8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�����W�K�H���P�D�L�Q���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����D�Q�G��its subsidiaries and associates; 
�x Associates of the Company; 
�x Management of the Company including companies in which they hold executive positions or companies which are controlled by them 

or over which a significant influence is exercised; 
�x All companies which are owned by the state or over which the state exercises a significant influence (transactions with these 

companies are disclosed when they are material). 

Purchase and sale of goods and services: 

�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�L�R�Q�V���Z�L�W�K���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���S�D�U�W�L�H�V���G�X�U�L�Q�J���W�Ke year 2019 and the balances arising on these transactions as at 31 December 2019 
are presented below: 

Related parties  Borrowings  Amounts 
payable  

 
 
Right -of-
use assets  

Accrued 
expenses  

Amounts 
receivable  

Prepayments 
and deferred 

charges  
Purchases  Sales  

Interest 
expense of 
borrowings  

Parent company  
�8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³ 

608,689 159 65 - - - 1,478 - 9,708 

Associates 892 4,867 - 90 - - 18,792 - 3 

�8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�³��
group companies 

32,320 1,355 11,596 3,959 27,649 - 36,037 188,931 260 

EPSO-G UAB group 
companies 

- 24,945 - - 7,097 401 167,923 1,355 - 

Total  641,901 31,326 11,661 4,049 34,746 401 224,230 190,286 9,971 

 

With the purpose to reduce costs of its working capital financing, on 18 May 2016 the Company concluded a termless UAB �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���*�U�R�X�S��
intercompany borrowing agreement, according to which it can obtain short term loans from other Group companies. The internal lending limit 
established from 26 June 2018 is EUR 190,000 thousand. The latter limit is valid until 12 March 2020. The market interest rate of 0,5% is 
determined for the one year period and coincides with interest rates of commercial banks. 
 
�%�D�O�D�Q�F�H�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J�V�� �U�H�F�H�L�Y�H�G�� �E�\�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �I�U�R�P�� �W�K�H�� �*�U�R�X�S�¶�V�� �F�D�V�K�� �S�R�R�O�� �D�F�F�R�X�Q�W�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�H�G�� �W�R�� �(�8�5�� ����������������thousand as at 31 
December 2019 (31 December 2018: EUR 121,543 thousand). In table above balance of cash pool is disclosed under borrowings �± EUR 
���������������� �W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G�� �Z�D�V�� �E�R�U�U�R�Z�H�G�� �I�U�R�P�� �S�D�U�H�Q�W�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �D�Q�G�� �(�8�5�� �������������� �W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G�� �Z�D�V�� �E�R�U�U�R�Z�H�G�� �I�U�R�P�� �R�W�K�H�U�� �8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V �J�U�X�S�¡�³�� �J�U�R�X�S��
companies. 
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The company purchased the following goods and services from other group companies: leases of assets, information technology and 
telecommunication services, organization and execution of tenders, accounting and personnel administration services, also construction, 
�U�H�F�R�Q�V�W�U�X�F�W�L�R�Q�� �D�Q�G�� �P�D�L�Q�W�H�Q�D�Q�F�H�� �R�I�� �H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�� �H�T�X�L�S�P�H�Q�W���� �7�K�H�� �P�D�L�Q�� �V�K�D�U�H�� �R�I�� �S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�V�� �I�U�R�P�� �8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�³�� �J�U�R�X�S�� �F�R�P�S�D�Q�L�H�V�� �E�Hlongs to 
purchase of electricity. Companies of EPSO �± G UAB group provide electricity and gas transmission services, public service offerings (PSO), 
and carry out contractual works. 

Terms of transactions with related parties 

The payment terms set range from 30 to 90 days. Closing debt balances are not secured by pledges, they do not yield interest, and settlements 
occur in cash. As at 31 December 2019, the Company had EUR 200 thousand of guarantees paid to Litgrid AB under the electricity balancing 
service agreement. As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have bad debt allowance for expected credit losses, receivables from related 
parties. 

�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�L�R�Q�V���Z�L�W�K���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���S�D�U�W�L�H�V���E�H�W�Z�H�H�Q���-�D�Q�X�D�U�\���D�Q�G���'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U�������������D�Q�G���W�K�H���E�D�O�D�Q�F�H�V���D�U�L�V�L�Q�J���R�Q���W�K�H�V�H���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�Lons as at 
31 December 2018 are presented below: 

Related parties  Borrowings  
Amounts 
payable  

Accrued 
expenses  Amounts receivable  

Prepayments 
and deferred 

charges  
Purchases  Sales  

Interest 
expense of 
borrowings  

Parent company  
�8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³ 586,241 320 - - - 1,407 - 6,655 

Associates - 2,949 302 17 81 21,493 - - 

�8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�³��
group companies 

45,223 2,236 79 64,748 1,284 81,431 120,141 61 

EPSO-G UAB group 
companies 

- 33,800 - 2,815 292 209,654 11,906 - 

Total  631,464 39,305 381 67,580 1,657 313,985 132,047 6,716 

 

Compensation to key management personnel 

Company  2019  2018  

   
Wages and salaries and other short-term benefits to management personnel 589 494 

Whereof: termination benefits 5 49 

Number of key management personnel 6 5 

The management includes heads of administration (including the board of the Company). 

35 Commitments and contingencies 

Capital expenditure commitments 

�,�Q���������������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���H�[�S�H�Q�G�L�W�X�U�H���F�R�P�P�L�W�P�H�Q�W�V���D�V�V�X�P�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���W�K�H���V�L�J�Q�H�G���F�R�Q�W�U�D�F�W�V���D�V���D�W���W�K�H���G�D�W�H���R�I���W�K�H���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�Dtements but not 
accounted for in the financial statements amounted to EUR 28 million (31 December 2018: EUR 45 million).  

Rate adjustments due to profit earned in preceding periods exceeding the return on investment permitted by the Commission (2019) 

Electricity business segment 

Based on its Resolution No O3E-569 of 17 October 2019 On recalculating the price caps for electricity distribution services provided by Energijos 
Skirstymo Operatorius AB through medium and low voltage networks for the year 2020, the Council set the price cap for the distribution service 
for 2020 and, based on its Certificate No O5E-517 of 16 October 2019 On recalculating the price caps for electricity distribution services provided 
by Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB through medium and low voltage networks for the year 2020 , the Council stated that the level of expected 
revenue from electricity distribution activities carried out by the Company in 2020 is reduced by EUR 41,875 thousand, including the impact of 
time value of money of EUR 1,388 thousand. The amount is the remaining part of the return on investments in 2016-2017 that was earned by 
the Company in excess of the level set by the Council for these years. 

In establishing the price caps for 2019 - 2020, the Council determined the amount of investments (i.e. the asset base) on the basis of the 
historical cost of the asset base rather than the asset base determined using the LRAIC (long-run average incremental cost) model approved 
by the Council. In its certificate No O5E-517 of 16 October 2019 On recalculating the price caps for electricity distribution services provided by 
Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB through medium and low voltage networks for the year 2020 , the Council stated the following: ���«���L�Q���R�U�G�H�U��
to maintain an integral financing of required and supported investments into assets optimized according to the LRAIC model the impact of said 
correction will be evaluated in further regulatory period while establishing the price cap (new regulatory period) according to the LRAIC model 
�X�V�H�G���I�R�U���V�H�W�W�L�Q�J���W�K�H���S�U�L�F�H���I�R�U���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V���«�!�� 

In 2018, the Company revalued its property, plant and equipment of electricity business segment to fair value. As an input to the fair value 
measurement, the independent property valuator used the assumption that going forward, the Council will use LRAIC model in its full extent 
(i.e. not adjusted) in determining the amount of the asset base.  
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Gas business segment 

Based on its Resolution No O3E-365 on 31 October 2019 On the correction of the price caps for natural gas distribution services provided by 
Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB for 2020, the Council set the price cap for the natural gas distribution service to be effective for year 2020 
and, based on its Certificate No O5E-538 of 21 October 2019 On the correction of price caps for natural gas distribution services provided by 
Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB for 2020, the Council stated that the level of revenue from natural gas distribution activities carried out by 
the Company in 2020 is reduced by EUR 9,791 thousand, including the impact of time value of money of EUR 264 thousand. The amount of 
the remaining part of the return on investments in 2014-2018 that was earned by the Company in excess of the level set by the Council (EUR 
19,054 thousand) will  be assessed when establishing the natural gas distribution price for the upcoming periods.  

Litigations 

The Plaintiff Vilniaus Energija UAB has filed a claim with the Vilnius Regional Court regarding the award of EUR 9,284 thousand from AB 
Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius. The plaintiff claims to have incurred EUR 9,284 thousand losses due to the fact that Energijos Skirstymo 
Operatorius AB during the year of �����������S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�G���R�Q�O�\���W�K�H���H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���S�U�R�G�X�F�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���3�O�D�L�Q�W�L�I�I�¶�V���F�R�J�H�Q�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q���S�O�D�Q�W�V���L�Q���W�K�H���W�H�F�K�Q�L�F�D�O���P�L�Q�L�P�X�P��
regime. The Company has not recognised any provision related to the claim, because the description for Public Service Obligations (PSO) 
provisions and other applicable legislation do not impose any obligation on the Defendant to purchase all electricity generated by the Plaintiff. 
On 17 March 2017, the Plaintiff updated the subject-matter of the claim and requested the court to award damages in the amount of EUR 10,712 
thousand. On 18 September 2017, the court of first instance passed the ruling whereby the claim was rejected in full. The claimant appealed 
against the court ruling. By the ruling of 6 November 2018, the Court of Appeal of Lithuania rejected the ruling of Vilnius Regional Court of 18 
September 2017 in part and remitted the case back to the court of first instance. On 22 January 2019, the claimant filed an appeal in cassation 
regarding the part of the ruling of the Court of Appeal of Lithuania dated 6 November 2018 that was left unchanged and the Supreme Court of 
Lithuania accepted the appeal. The investigation of the case has been suspended in the court of first instance by the request of the claimant 
until part of the case is reviewed under the cassation procedure. 
 
By the ruling of 6 May 2019, the Vilnius Regional Court resumed proceedings following the ruling of the Supreme Court of Lithuania of 17 April 
2019 to terminate the appeal proceedings. Vilnius Regional Court passed a judgement in the civil case on 28 January 2020, where it satisfied 
partially the claim of plaintiff Vilniaus energija UAB against the Company and recognized that Vilniaus energija UAB had been discriminated 
with regard to other combined heat and power plants. The court adjudged losses of EUR 2,2 million from the Company for behalf of Vilniaus 
energija UAB and 6 percent annual interest from the adjudged amount calculated from the day when the civil case was lodged in the court until 
complete execution of the judgement.  Vilniaus energija UAB asked in another part to recognize that it had been discriminated with regard to 
supply of balancing energy and to adjudge reimbursement of losses from the Company. This part of the civil claim of Vilniaus energija UAB was 
rejected.  The judgement of Vilnius Regional Court has not yet become effective. 
 
On 27 February 2020, the Company filed an appeal regarding the part of the judgement of Vilnius Regional Court dated 28 January 2020 that 
satisfied the claim of UAB Vilniaus energi�M�D���� �7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �F�R�Q�W�H�Q�W�V�� �9�L�O�Q�L�X�V�� �5�H�J�L�R�Q�D�O�� �&�R�X�U�W�¶�V�� �F�R�Q�F�O�X�V�L�R�Q�V�� �W�K�D�W�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�� �G�L�V�F�U�L�P�L�Q�D�W�H�G��
Vilniaus energija UAB with regard to other combined heat and power plants when purchasing eligible electricity. Based on the management 
estimates, the amount of energy purchased by the Company beyond the technical minimum amount of the producers has been distributed to 
all producers on a pro-rata basis, so that there is no breach of competition law. In the absence of unlawful actions by the Company, there is no 
obligation on the Company to compensate for the loss which Vilniaus Energija UAB alleges it has suffered. 
 
�,�Q�V�S�H�F�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�\�¶�V���6�$�,�'�,���6�$�,�)�,* 
 
On 26 March 2018 the Council initiated on-the-�V�S�R�W���F�K�H�F�N���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���U�H�J�X�O�D�W�H�G���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V���Z�L�W�K���D���Y�L�H�Z���W�R���D�V�V�H�V�V�L�Q�J���Z�K�H�W�K�H�U���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\��
complied with the requirements of legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania regarding reliability of electricity transmission and quality of service in 
the period from 1 January 2012 to 28 February 2018. During the meeting on 19 September 2019, the Council approved the on-the-spot check 
report in which the Council found that ESO failed to comply with legal requirements when registering transmission reliability indicators and that 
the ESO procedure governing the qualification of power interruptions needs to be adjusted. In its decision, the Council also noted that the 
amount of allowable return on investment in distribution services received by the Company during the period from 2012 to 2015 as a result of 
the electricity transmission reliability indicators that exceeded the minimum levels set by the Council should be evaluated by adjusting the 
�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���H�O�H�F�W�U�L�F�L�W�\���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���S�U�L�F�H���F�D�S���I�R�U���W�K�H���\�H�D�U����020.  
 
�,�Q���W�K�D�W���F�R�Q�W�H�[�W�����I�R�U���W�K�H���S�U�R�S�R�V�H���R�I���U�H�F�D�O�F�X�O�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�L�F�H���F�D�S�V���I�R�U���P�H�G�L�X�P���D�Q�G���O�R�Z���Y�R�O�W�D�J�H���G�L�V�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���V�H�U�Y�L�F�Hs for the year 2020, 
the Council �G�H�F�L�G�H�G�� �R�Q�� ������ �2�F�W�R�E�H�U�� ���������� �W�R�� �U�H�G�X�F�H�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �D�O�O�R�Z�H�G�� �U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H�� �E�\�� �(�8�5�� ������������ �W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G���� �3ursuant to the applicable 
legislation, the Council is entitled to impose sanctions on the energy company for violations of the conditions of regulated activities. Amount of 
sanction can be up to 10% of revenue from regulated activity. Accordingly, the Council drew up a report  in respect of the Company as at 30 
December 2019. The decision of the Council on the imposition of a sanction shall be taken within 6 months from the date on which the 
infringement was determined. At the reporting date, the decision regarding sanction are pending and, consequently, no provisions have been 
made in connection with the possible imposition of the sanction. 
 
*SAIDI - The System Average Interruption Duration Index; SAIFI - he System Average Interruption Frequency Index. 
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36 Capital risk management 
 
Pursuant to the Lithuanian Law on Companies, the authorised share capital of a public company must be not less than EUR 28.97 thousand 
�D�Q�G���W�K�H���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V�¶���H�T�X�L�W�\���V�K�R�X�O�G���Q�R�W���E�H���O�R�Z�H�U���W�K�D�Q���������S�H�U���F�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�X�W�K�R�Uised share capital. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 
December 2018, the Company complied with these requirements.  
 
�)�R�U���W�K�H���S�X�U�S�R�V�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�����F�D�S�L�W�D�O���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�V���L�V�V�X�H�G���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���D�Q�G���D�O�O���R�W�K�H�U���H�T�X�L�W�\���U�H�V�H�U�Y�H�V���D�W�W�U�L�E�X�W�D�Ele to the equity 
�K�R�O�G�H�U�V���R�I���W�K�H���S�D�U�H�Q�W�����7�K�H���S�U�L�P�D�U�\���R�E�M�H�F�W�L�Y�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���L�V���W�R���P�D�[�L�P�L�V�H���W�K�H���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U���Y�D�O�X�H�� 
 
�2�Q���������'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U���������������W�K�H���%�R�D�U�G���R�I���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡���8�$�%���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���W�K�H���G�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G���S�R�O�L�F�\���Z�K�L�F�K���H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�H�V���W�K�H���X�Q�L�I�R�U�P���G�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G���S�D�\�P�Hnt principles 
to be applicable to all companies of the Group. Dividend policy is one of the measures for capital risk management.  Based on this policy, the 
Company plans the distribution of dividends in view of the ratio of return on equity and net profit earned. According to dividend policy, 
appropriation of profit for the payment of dividends for the financial year or a period shorter than the financial year will depend on the ratio of 
return on equity, availability of financial resources for payment of dividends, implementation of economic projects important for the State and 
other significant circumstances. Between 60% and 85% of net profit is appropriated for the payment of dividends, depending on the ratio of 
return on equity at the end of the reporting period. A company is not obliged to distribute dividends only when it incurs net loss. A company will 
not pay any dividends when its financial debts (i.e. financial liabilities to credit institutions and other entities and finance lease liabilities that do 
not include trade payables) at the end of the reporting period are equal to or exceed four times the EBITDA (i.e. operating profit (loss) + 
depreciation and amortisation expenses + expenses on revaluation and provisions for emission allowances + impairment expenses of non-
current assets + write-off expenses of non-current assets) amount for the last twelve months as from the end of the reporting period.  
 
�'�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G�V���Z�L�O�O���Q�R�W���E�H���S�D�L�G���L�I���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���H�T�X�L�W�\�����D�I�W�H�U���W�K�H���S�D�\�P�H�Q�W���R�I���G�L�Y�L�G�H�Q�G�V�����E�H�F�R�P�H�V���O�R�Z�H�U���W�K�D�Q���W�K�H���V�X�P���R�I���L�W�V���V�K�D�U�H���Fapital, legal reserve, 
revaluation reserve and reserve for acquisition of own shares, and also if a company becomes insolvent or would become insolvent upon 
payment of dividends. A company will also be able not to pay dividends if its ratio of financial debts to equity becomes equal to or exceeds 1.0. 
 
When financing its business activities, the Company follo�Z�V���W�K�H���S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�R�Q�V���R�I���W�K�H���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�Q�J���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�L�H�V���R�I���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���³�*�U�R�X�S�´����
group companies for 2016�±�����������D�V���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H�G���E�\���0�L�Q�X�W�H�V���1�R���3�(�5�������������������R�I���W�K�H���V�L�W�W�L�Q�J���R�I���W�K�H���%�R�D�U�G���R�I���8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³���G�D�W�H�G���������-�X�Q�H��������������
The Company must follow an optimal capital structure assessed as D (net debt �± Note 17)/E (equity) ratio which cannot exceed the set 1.1x 
limit. Upon reaching the limit set in the financing strategy, further borrowing is not recommended. Where the D/E ratio is exceeded due to the 
results of operations (e.g. upon incurring significant losses) or by the decision of the shareholders (upon paying a significant share of retained 
earnings in dividends), the D/E ratio must be restored within 12 months from its breach by reducing the level of the financial debt and/or 
increasing own share capital through the shareholder's additional contributions. The decision on the optimal capital structure (concerning the 
debt to equity ratio), as agreed with the Company, is passed by the Group Finance and Treasury Service, which is responsible for the 
organisation of financing of the group (group companies) and establishment of guidelines. The latter is done with reference to the prevalent 
situation in the financial markets, availability and costs related to debt and/or capital, risk appetite, etc.  
 
Additionial information on capital position is provided below in the table: 
 

 2019 2018 (restated*)  

Net debt  (Note 17)  637,126 629,198 

   
Equity 663,918 629,634 

Total capital 663,918 629,634 

Capital and net debt  1,301,044 1,258,832 

Gearing ratio  49% 50% 

 
* Part of amounts does not agree with financial statements of 2018 due to the change in accounting methods disclosed in Note 4 
 

37 Financial risk management 
Credit risk 
 
In the electricity segment, trade and other receivables are generated from many customers however one customer (public supplier) comprise a 
significant portion of revenue and receivables exposing the Company to concentration risk. Credit risk or the risk of counterparties defaulting is 
controlled by the application of monitoring procedures. 
 
The Company does not issue guarantees to secure the fulfilment of obligations of third parties. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
�U�H�S�U�H�V�H�Q�W�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J���D�P�R�X�Q�W���R�I���H�D�F�K���L�W�H�P���R�I���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���D�V�V�H�W�V�����%�D�V�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���M�X�G�J�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W����the maximum 
risk approximates the amount of mortgage loans, other loans, trade and other receivables, and cash at bank, less recognised impairment loss 
at the date of the preparation of the statement of financial position. 
 
�%�H�F�D�X�V�H���R�I���W�K�H���V�S�H�F�L�I�L�F���F�K�D�U�D�F�W�H�U���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V�����Q�R���F�R�O�O�D�W�H�U�D�O���L�V���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�G���I�U�R�P���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���� 
 
�7�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V�� �W�U�H�D�V�X�U�\�� �P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�� �L�V�� �U�H�J�X�O�D�W�H�G�� �E�\�� �W�K�H�� �7�U�H�D�V�X�U�\�� �0�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W�� �3�R�O�L�F�\�� ���K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U�� �³�3�R�O�L�F�\�´���� �R�I�� �8�$�%�� �Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �J�U�X�S�¡�³�� �J�U�R�X�S����
approved by the �%�R�D�U�G���R�I�� �8�$�%���Ä�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���J�U�X�S�¡�³�� �R�Q�������� �)�H�E�U�X�D�U�\�� ������������ �D�V���Z�H�O�O���D�V���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���L�Q�W�H�U�Q�D�O���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V���� �3�X�U�V�X�D�Q�W���W�R���W�K�L�V���3�R�O�L�F�\���� �I�U�H�H��
liquid funds can be invested by the Company only in low-risk short-term (with the remaining maturity less than 549 calendar days) money market 
instruments and debts securities, i.e. term deposits, bonds, Government securities, of reliable financial institutions or entities that have been 
assigned a long-�W�H�U�P���F�U�H�G�L�W���U�D�W�L�Q�J���Q�R�W���O�R�Z�H�U���W�K�D�Q���³�$-�´���D�F�F�R�U�G�L�Q�J���W�R���W�K�H���U�D�W�L�Q�J���D�J�H�Q�F�\���)�L�W�F�K���5�D�W�L�Q�Js (or equivalent  rating of other rating agencies). 
In exceptional circumstances, free liquid funds may be held with other financial institutions that act under the licence issued by the Bank of 
Lithuania, which entitles them to provide financial services. The Company is allowed to hold funds with such financial institutions the amount 
not exceeding  the amount guaranteed under the Lithuanian Law on Insurance of Deposits and Liabilities to Investors. 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

 
The priority objective of investing activities is the ensurance of security of funds and maximisation of return on investments in pursuance of this 
objective.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company amounted to EUR 70,934 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 
106,347 thousand) as disclosed in section Financial instruments by category of this note. 
  
Interest rate risk 
 
�3�D�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���E�R�U�U�R�Z�L�Q�J�V���E�H�D�U���Y�D�U�L�D�E�O�H���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H���O�L�Q�N�H�G���Z�L�W�K���(�8�5�,�%�2�5���D�Q�G���H�[�S�R�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���W�R���W�K�H���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H��risk, and the 
�R�W�K�H�U���S�D�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶s borrowing bear fixed interest rate. As at 31 December 2019 borrowings with fixed interest rate are equal to EUR 
554,644 thousand (31 December 2018 �± EUR 366,288 thousand) and all remaining borrowings (Note 17) bear variable interest rate linked with 
EURIBOR. 
The Company did not have any derivative financial instruments to hedge against interest rate risk. 
 
�7�K�H���I�R�O�O�R�Z�L�Q�J���W�D�E�O�H���G�H�P�R�Q�V�W�U�D�W�H�V���W�K�H���V�H�Q�V�L�W�L�Y�L�W�\���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�R�I�L�W���E�H�I�R�U�H���W�D�[���W�R���S�R�W�H�Q�W�L�D�O���V�K�L�I�W���L�Q���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H�V�����Z�L�Wh all other variables held 
�F�R�Q�V�W�D�Q�W�����E�\���F�K�D�Q�J�L�Q�J���W�K�H���L�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���U�D�W�H�������7�K�H�U�H���L�V���Q�R���L�P�S�D�F�W���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���H�T�X�L�W�\�����H�[�F�H�S�W���I�R�U���L�P�S�D�F�W��on current year profit.  
 

  
Increase/ decrease, percentage 

points  Effect on profit before tax  

2019   
EUR 0.15 -123 

EUR -0.15 123 
   

2018   
EUR 0.15 -387 
EUR -0.15 387 

 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
 
All monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are denominated in the euro, therefore, the Company practically is not exposed to the foreign 
exchange rate risk.  
 
Liquidity risk 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�R�O�L�F�\���L�V���W�R���P�D�L�Q�W�D�L�Q���V�X�I�I�L�F�L�H�Q�W���F�D�V�K���D�Q�G���F�D�V�K���H�T�X�L�Y�D�O�H�Q�W�V��or have available funding through adequate amounts of committed 
�F�U�H�G�L�W���I�D�F�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���W�R���P�H�H�W���L�W�V���F�R�P�P�L�W�P�H�Q�W�V���D�W���D���J�L�Y�H�Q���G�D�W�H���L�Q���D�F�F�R�U�G�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���L�W�V���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�L�F���S�O�D�Q�V�����7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�X�U�U�H�Q�W���O�L�T�X�Ldity (total current 
assets / total amounts payable within one year and current liabilities) and quick ratios ((total current assets �± inventories) / total amounts payable 
within one year and current liabilities) as at 31 December 2019 were 0.25 and 0.24 (31 December 2018: 0.40 and 0.39), respectively.  
 
The current level of debt enables the Company to optimise the capital structure by financing its operations through long-term borrowing solutions, 
such as long-term loans or debt transfer agreements. As referred to in Note 17, for the purpose of the management of the short-term cash flow 
needs, the Company had EUR 51,644 thousand unused financing facilities under the agreement regarding the short-term lending to related 
parties platform. 
 
The financial statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis. Despite �W�K�H���I�D�F�W���W�K�D�W���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���F�X�U�U�H�Q�W���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���D�V���D�W��������
December 2019 exceeded current assets by EUR 232,211 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 186,432 �W�K�R�X�V�D�Q�G�������W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W��
is confident that this circumstance will not have a material impact on �W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���D�E�L�O�L�W�\���W�R���F�R�Q�W�L�Q�X�H���D�V���D���J�R�L�Q�J���F�R�Q�F�H�U�Q��  
 
�%�\���W�K�H���H�Q�G���R�I���W�K�H���������������G�H�F�U�H�D�V�H���L�Q���O�L�T�X�L�G�L�W�\���Z�D�V���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���V�S�H�F�L�I�L�F�V�� since most of the cash flow from operating activities is 
allocated to capital expenditures to distribution grid reconstruction and development (which are non-current assets), whereas payables for the 
�J�U�L�G���G�H�Y�H�O�R�S�P�H�Q�W���D�Q�G���U�H�F�R�Q�V�W�U�X�F�W�L�R�Q���D�U�H���F�O�D�V�V�L�I�L�H�G���D�V���F�X�U�U�H�Q�W���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V�����$�O�V�R���W�K�H���V�H�D�V�R�Q�D�O���Q�D�W�X�U�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�\ makes an impact on 
liquidity, since a significant part of the grid development and reconstruction works are completed at the end of the calendar year. In addition, the 
Company is the only one in Lithuania which owns more than 95% of the electricity distribution market and is strategically important for national 
security. The continuity of the Company's activities is ensured by regulating and approving the caps of distribution prices and the Company's 
�L�Q�Y�H�V�W�P�H�Q�W�V���F�R�V�W���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����$�O�V�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O���H�Y�D�O�X�D�W�H�V���D�Q�G���G�H�W�H�U�P�L�Q�H�V���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���F�D�S�D�F�L�W�\���D�Q�Q�X�D�O�O�\�����Z�K�L�F�K���L�V���V�Xfficient for the 
performance of regulated activities. 
 
It should be noted that on February 19th of 2020 a letter from the Group was received confirming the Group's intention to provide the necessary 
�I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�X�S�S�R�U�W���W�R���H�Q�V�X�U�H���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V���D�Q�G���I�X�O�I�L�O�O�P�H�Q�W���R�I���R�E�O�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q�V���I�R�U���D period of at least one year.  
 
�7�K�H���W�D�E�O�H���E�H�O�R�Z���V�X�P�P�D�U�L�V�H�V���W�K�H���P�D�W�X�U�L�W�\���S�U�R�I�L�O�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���D�V���D�W���������'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U�������������D�Q�G�������������E�D�V�H�G��on contractual 
undiscounted payments.  

Company  Up to 3 months  3 to 12 months  1 to 5 years  Over 5 years  Total  

Lease liabilities - - 19,343 3,445 22,788 
Borrowings 148,944 33,741 76,656 473,271 732,612 
Trade and other payables 63,363 - 3 - 63,366 

At 31 December 2019  212,307 33,781 96,002 476,716 818,766 

      
Borrowings  136,323 51,564 90,482 428,819 707,188 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

Trade and other payables 74,542 2 3 - 74,547 

At 31 December 2018  210,865 51,566 90,485 428,819 781,735 

 
Fair value 
 
�7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���D�V�V�H�W�V���D�Q�G���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���Q�R�W���G�H�V�L�J�Q�D�W�H�G���D�W���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���D�U�H���W�U�D�G�H��receivables and other receivables, trade and other 
payables and non-current and current borrowings. 
 
�7�K�H�� �F�D�U�U�\�L�Q�J�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�µ�V�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �D�V�V�H�W�V�� �D�Q�G�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O�� �O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V�� �D�S�S�U�R�[�L�P�D�W�H�V�� �W�K�H�L�U�� �I�D�L�U�� �Y�D�O�X�H���� �H�[�F�H�S�W�� �I�R�U�� �P�R�Utgage loans as 
disclosed in Note 9.  
 
The fair value of borrowings is estimated based on discounted probable future cash flows using prevailing interest rates. The fair value of loans 
and other financial assets is estimated using market interest rates.  
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments: 
 
a) The carrying amount of current trade receivables and other receivables, current trade and other payables and current borrowings 

approximates their fair value. 
b) The fair value of non-current borrowings is estimated based on the quoted market price for the same or similar loan or on the current rates 

available for debt with the same maturity profile. The fair value of non-current borrowings with variable interest rates approximates their 
carrying amounts. The fair value of non-current borrowings with fixed interest rates also approximates their carrying amounts.  

 
Financial instruments by category 

 
Carrying 
amount  
In total  

Level 1  
Fair value  

Level 2  
Level 3  

As at 31 December 2019      
Other non-current financial assets (Note 9) 415 - - 415 
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) 65.744 - - 65.744 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) 4.775 4.775 - - 
Total  70.934 4.775 - 66.159 

As at 31 December 2018      
Other non-current financial assets (Note 9) 210 - - 210 
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) 103.871 - - 103.871 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) 2.266 2.266 - - 
Total  106.347 2.266 - 104.081 

 

  
Carrying 
amount  
In total  

Level 1  
Fair value  

Level 2  Level 3  

As at 31 December 2019      
Borrowings (Note 17) 641.901 - - 641.901 
Trade and other payables (Note 24) 63.363 - - 63.363 
Other liabilities  3 - - 3 
Total  705.267 - - 705.267 

As at 31 December 2018      
Borrowings (Note 17) 631.464 - - 631.464 
Trade and other payables (Note 24) 74.544 - - 74.544 
Other liabilities 3 - - 3 
Total  706.011 - - 706.011 
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�&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H��year ended December 2019 

38 Events after the reporting period 
On 3 October 2019, the Project Management Committee of Verslo Aptarnavimo �&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%���D�Q�G���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�����R�I��
which Ignitis Group UAB is a shareholder, by implementing strategic plan approved by the Board on 21 January 2019 to optimise the 
management and governance of Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras UAB and Igniti�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%���K�D�V���G�H�F�L�G�H�G���W�R���D�S�S�U�R�Y�H���D���S�U�R�M�H�F�W��
plan which provides that these companies continue as one company as from 1 January 2020. During the reorganisation Verslo Aptarnavimo 
Centras UAB, which ceased its activities without the liquid�D�W�L�R�Q�� �S�U�R�F�H�G�X�U�H���� �Z�D�V�� �P�H�U�J�H�G�� �Z�L�W�K�� �,�J�Q�L�W�L�V�� �*�U�X�S�¡�V�� �3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð�� �&�H�Q�W�U�D�V�� �8�$�%�� �Z�K�L�F�K��
continues its activities. The assets, rights and obligations of Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras UAB are transferred to the company �,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V��
�3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�����D�Q�G���W�K�H���V�K�D�U�H�K�R�O�G�H�U�V���R�I���W�K�H���U�H�R�U�J�D�Q�L�V�H�G���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����H�[�F�H�S�W���I�R�U���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�����U�H�F�H�L�Y�H���L�Q���U�H�W�X�U�Q��
�W�K�H���V�K�D�U�H�V���R�I���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%���I�R�U���Q�R���F�R�Q�V�L�G�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�����D�Q�G���D�F�F�R�U�G�L�Q�J�O�\�����W�K�H���V�K�D�U�H���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���R�I���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V��
UAB is increased. Following cumulative conditions are satisfied, the reorganisation was finalised 31 December 2019. Verslo aptarnavimo centras 
UAB was removed from the Register of Legal Entities on 02 January 2020. 
 
Information on the company involved in the reorganization ���,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V���8�$�%�����D�Q�G���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\���E�H�L�Q�J���U�H�R�U�J�D�Q�L�]�H�G�����9�H�U�V�O�R��
aptarnavimo centras UAB) before and after the reorganisation: 
 
 

 Before reorganisation  After reorganisation  

 �,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð��
Centras UAB  

Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras 
UAB 

�,�J�Q�L�W�L�V���*�U�X�S�¡�V���3�D�V�O�D�X�J�Ð���&�H�Q�W�U�D�V��
UAB 

Issued capital (EUR)                     6 960 000                          580 000                               7 914 645 

Number of shares (units)                   24 000 000                       2 000 000                             27 291 878 

Nominal value per share (EUR) 0,29 0,29 0,29 

 
The said reorganization of associates did not have impact on financial position or operating results of the Company as merely the legal 
composition of investees changed. 

********* 
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Reporting period covered by the Annual Report  
 
The Annual Report provides information to shareholders, creditors, and other stakeholders of Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius 
�$�%�����µ�(�6�2�¶�����µ�W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�����D�E�R�X�W���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���R�S�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�V���G�X�U�L�Q�J������������ 
 
 
Legal basis for preparation o f the Annual Report  
 
�7�K�H���$�Q�Q�X�D�O���5�H�S�R�U�W���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���K�D�V���E�H�H�Q���S�U�H�S�D�U�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���$�G�P�L�Q�L�V�W�U�D�W�L�R�Q���L�Q���D�F�F�R�U�G�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�Q��
Law on Securities, the Law on Companies, the effective version of the Rules on the Disclosure of Information and the 
Guidelines on the Disclosure of Information approved by the Board of the Bank of Lithuania, as well as the Description of the 
Guidelines for Ensuring the Transparency of Activities of the State-owned Enterprises approved by the Government of the 
Republic of Lithuania and other legal acts.  
 
Individuals responsible for information contained in the Annual Report  
 

Job title  Full name  Telephone number  

Chief Executive Officer Mindaugas Keizeris (8 5) 277 7524 

Finance and Administration Service Director �$�X�J�X�V�W�D�V���'�U�D�J�Ì�Q�D�V (8 5) 277 7524 

Director of Finance Department �$�U�W�Ì�U�D�V���3�D�L�S�R�O�D�V (8 5) 277 7524 

 
 
Information on the availability of the report and the documents used in preparing the report, and on means 
�R�I���P�D�V�V���P�H�G�L�D���L�Q���Z�K�L�F�K���W�K�H���F�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�X�E�O�L�F���U�H�S�R�U�W�V���D�U�H��published  
 
�7�K�H���U�H�S�R�U�W���D�Q�G���W�K�H���G�R�F�X�P�H�Q�W�V�����R�Q���W�K�H���E�D�V�L�V���R�I���Z�K�L�F�K���L�W���Z�D�V���S�U�H�S�D�U�H�G�����D�U�H���D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H���D�W���W�K�H���K�H�D�G���R�I�I�L�F�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�����$�J�X�R�Q�Ð��
g. 24, Vilnius), on working days from Mondays through Thursdays 7.30 a.m. �± 4:30 p.m., on Fridays 7.30 a.m. �± 3:15 p.m. 
 
The report is also available on the website of the Company at www.eso.lt and the website of NASDAQ Vilnius stock exchange 
at www.nasdaqbaltic.com. 
 
All public announcements, which are required to be published by ESO according to the effective legal acts of the Republic of 
�/�L�W�K�X�D�Q�L�D�����D�U�H���S�X�E�O�L�V�K�H�G���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���Z�H�E�V�L�W�H (www.eso.lt) and the website of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius stock exchange 
(www.nasdaqbaltic.com). 
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS OF THE COMPANY 8 

Table 1 . Key operating and financial indicators  
 

Key operating indicators of ESO  

 
Operating indicators  

 
2019 2018 

Change  
  +/- % 

Distributed electricity via medium and low voltage 
networks TWh 9.55 9.59 -0.04 -0.42 

Guaranteed supply of electricity2 TWh 0.47 0.51 -0.04 -7.84 

Distributed volume of natural gas TWh 6.97 7.60 -0.63 -8.29 

Supply quality indicators of the network       

Electricity 
 

SAIDI (with force majeure) minutes 91.8 81.376 10.43  

SAIFI (with force majeure) times 1.31 1.14 0.17  

Gas 
 

SAIDI (with force majeure) minutes 1.249 0.606 0.643  

SAIFI (with force majeure) times 0.008 0.006 0.002  

Key financial indicators of ESO 1         

    
2019 20187 

Change  

    +/- % 

Revenue from contracts with customers2 �(�8�5���¶������ 413,144    463,048 -49,904 10.8 

Other income2 �(�8�5���¶������ 5,706 20,367 -14,661 -72.0 

Purchase of electricity, gas and related services2 �(�8�5���¶������ 186,098    282,498    -96,400    -34.1    

Operating expenses �(�8�5���¶������ 98,182    89,785    8,397    9.4    

EBITDA  �(�8�5���¶������ 134,570    111,132    23,438    21.1    

EBITDA margin % 32.13    22.99      

Adjusted EBITDA3 �(�8�5���¶������ 180,488    161,287    19,201    11.9    

Net profit (loss)4 �(�8�5���¶������ 34,313    5,265    29,048    551.7    

    
 As at 31/12/2019   As at 

31/12/20187 

Change  

   +/- % 

Total assets �(�8�5���¶������ 1,706,606    1,634,214    72,392    4.4 

Equity �(�8�5���¶������ 663,917    629,634    34,283    5.4 

Borrowings �(�8�5���¶������ 641,901    631,464    10,437    1.7 

Borrowings, net �(�8�5���¶������ 637,126    629,198    7,928    1.3 

Return on equity (ROE) % 5.31 0.85   

Return on assets (ROA) % 2.05 0.36   

Turnover of assets5 times 0.24 0.28   

Equity ratio  % 38.90 38.53   

Borrowings, net / 12-month EBITDA times 4.73 5.66   

Borrowings, net / 12-month adjusted EBITDA times 3.53 3.90   

Borrowings, net / Equity % 95.96 99.93   

Free cash flow �(�8�5���¶������ 6,804 -221,459    228,263 -103.1 
1 �'�H�V�F�U�L�S�W�L�R�Q���R�I���(�6�2�¶�V���L�Q�G�L�F�D�W�R�U�V���L�V���D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H���D�W����http://www.eso.lt/en/for-investors/alternative-performance-measures.html  
2 As from 1 October 2018, ESO has discontinued the public electricity supply activity. Following elimination of the impact of discontinued public supply activities in the period January�±
December 2018 revenue amounted to EUR 409.6 million and the costs for the purchase of electricity, gas and related services �± EUR 180.3 million. 
3 The Company adjusted the EBITDA by the difference between actual profit earned during the reporting and earlier periods and the allowable return on investments for the respective 
�S�H�U�L�R�G�V���H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���1�D�W�L�R�Q�D�O���(�Q�H�U�J�\���5�H�J�X�O�D�W�R�U�\���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����K�H�U�H�L�Q�D�I�W�H�U���³�W�K�H���1�(�5�&�´�����D�Q�G���P�D�G�H���D���Q�H�Z���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V���L�Q�F�R�P�H���D�G�M�X�V�W�P�H�Q�W���E�\���H�O�L�P�L�Q�D�W�L�Q�J���Q�H�Z���F�X�V�W�R�P�H�U�V�¶���G�H�I�I�H�U�H�G���L�Q�F�R�P�H���D�Q�G��
restoring the net income effect of the new customers for the current year, as well as eliminated the impact of other atypical, one-time factors that are not directly attributable to the current 
period. The difference resulted from the operational efficiency improved by the Company, as well as other factors. More information about adjusted EBITDA is provided in the section 
�³�(�%�,�7�'�$�´�� 
4 The increase in the Company's net profit was driven by significantly lower prices for electricity, gas and related services as a result of discontinued public electricity supply activities as from 
1 October 2018. 
5 Revenue from contracts with customers was used for the calculation of the ratio 
6 Comparative indicator was revised. 
7 Comparative indicators were recalculated.8 This Report includes certain financial measures of historical financial performance, financial position, or cash flows, which are not defined or 
�V�S�H�F�L�I�L�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���,�)�5�6�����³�$�O�W�H�U�Q�D�W�L�Y�H���3�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���0�H�D�V�X�U�H�V�´�������7�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\���F�R�Q�V�L�G�H�U�V���W�K�D�W���W�K�H�V�H���P�H�D�V�X�U�H�V���D�U�H���U�H�O�H�Y�D�Q�W���D�Q�G���U�H�O�L�D�E�O�H���L�Q���D�V�V�H�V�V�L�Q�J���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���D�Q�G��
position, however such measures are not a substitute for financial measures under IFRS and should be read in conjunction with �&�R�P�S�D�Q�\�¶�V���S�X�E�O�L�V�K�H�G���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V 


















































































































